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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
075 & #L 2

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS Bk
The following is a summary of the audited consolidated results of I TNAKRKEBR NI HEBEE 2 & F
the Group for the respective years as hereunder stated. ERLE o

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t—-RALEE
2021 2020 2019
—E-—% ZZZTH ZT-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT TAET TAET

Revenue I &= 89,668 61,119 80,022 145,846
(Loss)/profit attributable FBRARBEBALZ

to the owners (BB, &

of the Company (904) 6,055 (11,487) (825,678)
Dividends iz 8 = = - -
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION B 35 AR R 3R R

The following is a summary of the audited consolidated MU TFNAAREERTHHEBESE 2 EFE
statement of financial position of the Group as at the respective AR R RERME o
dates as hereunder stated.

As at 31 December
R+=HA=+—~H
2021 2020 2019
—E-—F ZT=TF ZT-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FEL FHBT

Plant and equipment B 5 R 5% 1,519 1,652 1,370 339
Investment properties BEME 24,411 26,001 30,523 -
Right-of-use assets CHRESE 1,265 4,832 1,156 1,172
Interest in joint ventures REEDE Z$& 80 5,753 3,504 1,698
Deposits, prepayments e ENE IE&

and other receivables H e W1 IA

(non-current portions) GERBHH) = - 62,691 38
Financial assets at fair value RAVEBB

through other comprehensive EftZ2EKzE AL 2

income SHMEE 9,859 56,877 73,345 603,385
Financial assets at amortised 12 # # 5k A A Bk 2

cost i@aﬁﬁ = = = 59,755
Loan and interest receivables & U & X & &l 8 172,289 217,864 167,440 154,196
Trade receivables JFE 5 BR 5K 654 19 - 55,788
Financial assets at fair value ®AFEFBEZR

through profit or loss ARZeREE = = = =
Other current assets HRn#EE 274,762 204,497 138,211 352,895
Current liabilities mBAE (63,353) (44,539) (21,752) (261,797)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEAR (637) (766) (1,207) =
Other non-current liabilittes ~ H At 3ER B & & = (1,472) (395) =
Representing: g
Share capital % 4,257 3,870 3,870 3,870
Reserves 1B 389,572 439,878 424,962 938,687
Non-controlling interests FEE IR HE 27,020 26,970 26,054 24,812
Shareholders’ equity [ B A &5 420,849 470,718 454,886 967,369
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2018

e
HK$'000
FET

180,048

(2,199,094)

ZiR A M

2018
T —)\F
HK$'000

TAT

1,019

94

369,660

157,295
907,098
43,750

45,677
182,487
(140,309)

3,870
1,537,637
25,364

1,566,771



Dear Shareholders,

In 2022, Zhong Ji Longevity Science forged ahead and made
steady progress despite challenging circumstances with
announced HKEX and Listing Committee to suspend trading
decision in the Company’s shares (from January to late July
2022) and the COVID-19 pandemic (from January to December
2022). The Company respected the laws of scientific
development and adhered to the concept of “providing the best
longevity biological products and longevity management services
at a global height and international standard”. The Company
continued to improve our industrial and product chains while
enhancing our corporate governance and business operations to
ensure the healthy and sustainable development of the Company.

Later July 2022, the Company worked hard with our partners and
overcame difficulties to successfully appeal to, the Listing
Review Committee after verifications considering all facts and
circumstances finally concluded that the longevity science
business of Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group has a promising
prospect and could develop into a sizeable, viable and sustainable
business in the future. Consider the interests of all investors and
resume trading has offered the Company with a normal and fair
development environment, laying a solid foundation for the
healthy and sustainable development of Zhong Ji Longevity
Science.

In 2022, the Company improvised its services and product
chains around “longevity biological products and longevity
management”, have initially formed a layout of Research &
Development and production in the US, services in Hong Kong
China and Japan, with marketing clients in China. In terms of
longevity biological products, four longevity biological products
developed and produced by the US division all received the
highest global standard of certification, and have formed strategic
sales partnerships with Sinopharm Group, Naber Pharmacy, Hong
Kong Mannings Pharmacy and Wing Wah Pharmacy, etc. All of
them were well-recognized by high net worth individuals. In
terms of longevity management, we have been committed to
providing international advanced medical services certified by the
world’s highest standards and with the best clinical results based
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CHAIRMAN STATEMENT
EREME

on our membership scheme. The Company have established the
Greater China Strategic Collaboration Centre with Thermo Fisher
Scientific, a global leader in scientific services with a market
value of over HK$20,000 billion, the Hong Kong International
Advanced Medical Center with the Center for Translational
Medicine of Stanford University, and joined hands with the Xinhu
Wealth and other strategic partners to build the
membership-based international longevity management
organization of the world's highest standard focusing on high net
worth individuals, providing international advanced medical
services in Hong Kong, Shenzhen, Los Angeles and Tokyo
respectively.

In 2022, with respect to the lending and financing consultation
business, given the economic downturn and increased business
risks arising from the COVID-19 pandemic, we adhered to a
strategy, result-oriented approach to continuously
improve and upgrade our operational standards with a view to
better protecting the healthy and sustainable development of the
Company and the interests of our shareholders.

value and

Looking ahead to 2023, despite persisting uncertainties arising
from factors such as the economic downturn, geopolitical risks,
and currency and financial policy risks, we believe that the
recovery brought about by the resumption of cross-border travel
will certainly drive the Company’'s growth. In the future, the
Company will focus on the long-term interests of our
shareholders by continuously optimising the industrial and
product chains, and improving our corporate governance and
business operations, in order to ensure the healthy and
sustainable development of the Company.

Last but not least, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to
the Board of Directors and our members of staff for their loyalty,
hard work, professionalism and valuable contribution. Going
forward, we, as always, will adhere to the rules and laws in
scientific development and give our utmost effort to deliver
longevity biological products and longevity management services
of world-leading international standard, and reward the steadfast
support of the society at large towards Zhong Ji Longevity
Science!

YAN Li
Chairman
Hong Kong, 18 April 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B8R BB

INTRODUCTION

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited (the “Company”),
together with its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) have
been focusing on expanding its longevity science business. In
addition to operating and managing its existing businesses of
money lending & financial advisory business, securities and other
investment business, and property investment business.

On Year 2016 to 2020, despite the Vendor irrevocably
undertaking on secure relevant loans operating licenses such
proposed profits guarantee Caijia P2P internet loans Business
were prohibited in operation and force closure with curb on
various Acquisition Target Caijia P2P companies domicile in
various cities, due to People's Republic of China (“PRC")
government P2P Finance legislations publicly announced in Year
2015 & 2016 promulgated to new Regulatory policy & B 48 4 &
MR BERRESPRKQ2019) 83R—FANEREERFSSPHEE
BEANEEHRAGMNIEEE R (Guidance on statutory demand
in transform Internet Finance Lending Intermediaries into Small
Loan Finance Companies). On consequence, during 11
November 2021 and 17 December 2021, the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange has issued a show case letter on non-compliance with
Rule 13.24 demonstrated by the Company acquired Caijia P2P
loans Business revenue has significantly declined from HK$490.7
million of operating year 2015 to minimal HK$0.02 million in Year
2018 (the “Caijia P2P Business"”), has failed to maintain a
sufficient of operations in compliance to Rule 13.24
therefore warrant a suspend in trading of the Company shares
herein (the “suspend trading decision”). Thereafter on 15
March 2022 hearing with the Listing Committee has upheld this
Suspend Decision pursuant to rule 6.01(3) of the Listing Rule.

level

Pursuant to same rule on subsequent 5 July 2022 appeal hearing
by Listing Review Committee with a final outcome received and
announced on 25 July 2022, considering all the announced
outlined facts and reasons, this suspend trading decision was
overwhelmingly overthrown with a resume of trading decision
therein (the “resume trading decision”).

e
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BRI _ETH AR BISE6.01(3) 4 =5 L B E (2R E -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE R

The considered facts, not limited to, the Company submitted that
its circumstances fell within paragraph 8(b) of GL106—-19 which
sets out that an issuer experiencing a temporary reduction or
suspension of operations due to market conditions would not be
considered to have failed Rule 13.24(1) only because of
temporary circumstances and transition in the sector. The
Company also referred to the Listing Issuer Regulation
Newsletter of December 2020. The Company stressed that the
changes in loan interest income derived from the P2P Business
were mainly due to the compliance requirements under national
policies issued to gradually phase out or prohibited Caijia P2P
Business in the PRC. The Company’s position accordingly was
that changes in its Caijia P2P Business income should not have
been taken into account in the overall assessment of the
Company’'s Money Lending Business based on the principles
outlined in GL106-19 and the newsletter.

Also, as submitted The Company had never terminated or run-
down its principal Money Lending Business (with Financial
Advisory), nevertheless a difficult transition between Years 2019,
2020 (and 2021) under regulatory environment, which the PRC
authorities after curbing P2P internet finance loans since Year
2015 now had also promulgated a new policy to transform
existing non-defaulting P2P loan business to small loans for
companies. The Company’'s Money Lending Business (including
the Financial and Investment Advisory Services) had been
reformed accordingly to meet the requirements of financial
policies and regulations in the PRC since Year 2021. Hence, the
Company its Money Lending Business (including the Financial and
Investment Advisory Services) remained a key business segment
of the Company and was carried out under two models:- (i)
lending to corporate customers, and (ii) providing secured loans
byway of strategic cooperation with three PRC fund companies
(the “Strategic Partners”) that hold lending licenses via the
broad customer base of the Strategic Partners should be
regarded as customers of the Group.

8 Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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Since Caijia P2P Internet loans business was ceased by authority
but Company others secure mortgage loans (i.e. non-P2P money
lending business), namely “Money Lending & Financial Advisory
Business in compliance with above-mentioned Small Loan
Finance Companies guidance law has operated into Two models:
(a) A “Strategic Partners Model” managing a sizeable portfolio of
loan assets (1st and/or 2nd mortgage home loans or secured
loans (including outstanding principal and interest) via in
cooperation with Strategic Partners whom has adequate Loan
Finance license, without Company assuming role of a direct
lender, whereby Company owned 100% portfolio capital or with
10% capital contribution only. (b) The “Corporate and personal
borrowers Model” wherein Company act as a direct lender via
Company's loan Agreements in both China and Hong Kong, with
such loan assets. Our Loan Strategic Partners were: China
Foreign Economy and Trade Trust Co. Ltd 1B ¥4 & B E 5 (5 5F
BR A& (“FOTIC”") and Shenzhen Fanhua Joint Investment
Group Co. Ltd RYIZEH SR ESEBRAAF (“Fanhua”) & &
EEMBREEEABR AR ("Haier”).

On the Year 2022, the existing Money Lending & Financial
Advisory Business has emerged form ex-post P2P loans
Business transition phase and continue with a steady recovery
growth path, despite amid the COVID-19 stringent market
environment considering major clientele cities Beijing, Shanghai,
Shenzhen, Chongging and others were imposed by massive
quarantine isolations, cities or district zones lock down and/or
transport restrictions or bans during August to December months
of Year 2022. This has restraint physical brokerage of home loans
or secured loans accessibility with hammered property
transaction levels in both PRC mainland and Hong Kong.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB R
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEIREN mE DN
Further, the Company has diversified into Longevity Science

Business in second half of Year 2020, involved: (i) the provision
of diagnostic consultations and testing (Testing Services); (ii) the
production and distribution of longevity biological products. The
Company also planned to expand its product portfolio through its
research and development capabilities (R&D) and efforts
developing new formulae through improving its existing formulae.
One of its major products (ZJ1) containing nicotinamide
mononucleotide (NMN) which had a unique formula and was one
of the world’s first NMN supplement packaged in soft capsules
received FDA certification and PDR certification. In addition the
Company was selling timed-release vitamin C (VC) products with
the Group’s formula both in the PRC and Hong Kong. The
Longevity Science Business consisted of 32 people including
research and development (R&D) staff, doctors, nurses, and
laboratory staff. The Company outlined it had a number of
distinguished persons acting as advisers on R&D to the
Longevity Science Business including notably a Nobel Prize
winner. With respect to the Testing Services, the Company set
out that the two examination centres of the Group had obtained
approval of the Department of Health of Hong Kong and had
commenced operations, with one operated as a daily license
clinic as well.

In financial year 2022, the Group continue enhanced its financial
performance by diversified into promising longevity medical
health business comprise Zhong Ji Longevity Science's Hong
Kong day-time medical centres, which provide advance Tumor
Cells screening, Immunity/Killer cell Test, Joint Health Blood &
Micronutrients Test, Female & Male Fertility & Salivary Hormone
Test, Comprehensive Thyroid assessment and patent Third
Generation Whole Genome Sequencing Genetic Test. The
Longevity medical business further offer Autologous NK Cells
Storage, High Efficacy CBNK Cells, improve subhealth and
Cancer prevention and anti-aging. After tests and treatments, the
clients are offer with products sale of Second- Generation High
Potency MSC, High Potency Antioxidant Supplement, ZHJ
Vitamin C, Nicotinamide Mononucleotide (“NMN") Supplement
tablets, offering the primary sale income and memberships
revenue of Zhong Ji Longevity Science Health business. Through
our patent innovative longevity health care solutions, the Group is
committed to offer an advance medical business into Great China
region and Hong Kong.

In the future, the Company will continue to respect the laws of
scientific development and do our utmost to provide
world-leading and state-of-the-art longevity biological products
and longevity management services, for giving back to the
community’s support for Zhong Ji Longevity Science.
The report is presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is
the same as the functional currency of the Group.
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (“reporting year"”), the
coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19") against the global
economy continued to post uncertainties in the year of 2022,
despite the launch of three rounds vaccination in different
countries around the world, the recovery pace remained sluggish,
the new virus variant that forced countries to implement cities
lock down or transport/travel halt measures to combat the
spread of the pandemic in PRC. Further, the global expansionary
monetary policy had triggered the inflationary and debt default
risk, now observed in PRC property market overall across Beijing,
Chongging, Chengdu, Suzhou, Tianjin, Shanghai cities, caused
sluggish impact on the home loans or secured loans performance
of the Money Lending & Financial Advisory Business.

The Group was principally engaged in the Money Lending &
Financial advisory business, securities and other investments, and
property investments. Given such restraint Trading environment
and sluggish sentiment in PRC property market, in mitigate the
volatility risk, the Group took a rather prudent approach in
operating the Money Lending business except via Strategic
Partners loans originated, thus a static performance was
observed. Nevertheless, the newly ventured Longevity science
business recorded a pretty impressive set of results for the
Group in 2022.

During the report year, the Group recorded a total revenue of
approximately HK$89,668,000 (2021: HK$61,119,000) with profit
for year amounted to approximately HK$701,000 (2021:
HK$6,200,000). The Money lending and financial advisory
Business demonstrate a static revenue of approximately
HK$45,748,000 and a segment profit of approximately
HK$30,913,000. Nevertheless, the longevity science business
contributed revenue of approximately HK$43,920,000 and a
segment profit of approximately HK$8,953,000 which served as
a cushion to alleviate the overall Company performance.

The basic and diluted loss per share were approximately HK$0.01
cents (2021: earnings per share of HK$0.04 cents).

As at 31 December 2022, the consolidated net assets of the
Group were approximately HK$420,849,000 (2021:
HK$470,718,000).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Longevity Science Business

Recognising the strong growth potential of the longevity science
sector, the Group has been stepping up its investment to
accelerate its transformation since last year. During the reporting
year, the Group's longevity science business delivered respectful
performance despite difficult pandemic operation environment.

The revenue of this segment amounted to approximately
HK$43,920,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
HK$22,446,000), of which, approximately HK$26,370,000 was
generated from diagnostic consultation and medical testing, and
approximately HK$17,550,000 was contributed by the sales of
longevity biological products, with segmental profit of
approximately HK$8,953,000 for the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: HK$3,500,000). The promising China GuoYao sale &
distribution network will further enhance our China sale in
upcoming year.

Indeed the COVID-19 and the aging population have aroused
public high concern for health across the globe, resulting in
unprecedented potentials for the development of Longevity
products and testing services in the healthcare and medical
industry.

Strengthening
capabilities
During the reporting year, Zhong Ji Longevity Science advanced
its transformation of longevity science business from all fronts,
with a focus on strengthening the Group’s hard and soft
capabilities. The Group recruited a seasoned team of
biotechnology and management talents, including the
appointment of Academician Randy Wayne Schekman, a Nobel
laureate in Physiology or Medicine, as the Honorary Chairman
and Chief Scientist of the Group, to immensely enhance the
Group’s research and development (“R&D") capability, thereby
enabling the Group to achieve its strategic goals. In addition, the
Group adopted a share award scheme, which aims to recognise
employees and individuals who have contributed to the Group's
development and business growth as well as to attract talents in
the industry.

in-house R&D and production
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Striving to expand and enhance longevity biological
products

In respect of sales and production of longevity biological
products, by fully leveraging the Group's expertise in the cell
industry and ongoing enhancement of R&D and production level,
the Group has commenced the development and production of
its flagship NMN product “ZJ1" and VC sustained-release tablets
and calorie-burning tablets, as well as other longevity biological
products in California, United States since last year. The four
existing products of the Group have already acquired the world’s
highest certification in standard as well as safety certification for
sterility test, and are well received by high-net-worth individuals.
During the period under review, the Group's scientific research
team boosted the R&D progress of “ZJ1” to the seventh
generation with the introduction of the longevity functional
beverages, safeguarding the health and longevity of people
around the world who strive for the quality of life. In terms of
marketing and sales strategy, the Group will capitalise the
existing customer base, marketing network and sales channels of
ZJ1 International Medical Group (Hong Kong) to gradually set up
the “Internet + Healthcare” longevity system platform — Zhong
Ji Longevity Cloud* (FRERSE).

Establishing partnerships with world-class companies
The Group entered into a MOU in relation to forming a strategic
partnership with Thermo Fisher Scientific (Hong Kong) Limited
(“Thermo Fisher”), a forerunner in the field of life sciences.
Thermo Fisher will prioritise the Group in the provision of its
latest life science technology, software and solution, so as to
propel the Group’s development in longevity science and medical
diagnosis, enhancing the productivity and R&D capability of the
Group’s laboratory.

The management of the Group is confident about the business
performance in the 2023, and believes that the longevity science
business will gradually support the Group’s revenue growth and
become a growth driver for Zhong Ji Longevity Science in the
future, in particular relying on China GuoYao sale & distribution
contracts networking in Hubei, Guangdong, Shenzhen, states
across 2,000 pharmacy outlets and other distribution channel
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Now, the Group already launched an overseas flagship store on
Tmall Global website for sale of ZJ1 series of nutritional
supplements, including ZJ1 NMN multi-series longevity
supplements, ZJ1 VC tablets and other products, expand with
cross-border sales channel and revenue stream into Greater
China region from Hong Kong base. The Group biological
supplements sale was champion as 2nd Top Sale in July, August,
September Sale month of Duo Ying “#l3& " platform.

The management of the Group is optimistic on the development
of the longevity science business, and believes that the longevity
science business will be the driver of the Group's revenue
growth in the future, together with existing license Money
Lending business steady growth.

Money Lending & Financial Advisory Business

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a segmental revenue
of approximately HK$45,748,000 (2021: HK$38,660,000) and a
segmental profit of approximately HK$30,913,000 (2021:
HK$26,872,000) were recorded. The increase in segmental
results was due to an increase in interest receivables balances
derived by Strategic Partners loan portfolio in PRC state in Other
Receivables during the reporting year. Simsen Development
Company Limited, through its wholly-owned subsidiary
established in the PRC mainland China, is principally engaged in
the provision of short to medium-term 1st and 2nd mortgages
via Strategic Partners, offering related financial management and
advisory services with presence across Beijing, Shanghai,
Guangzhou, Tianjin, Chongging and Wuxi. The Strategic Partners
and the PRC subsidiary monitored closely the repayment
progress and assess the recoverability of the 1st and 2nd
mortgages loan receivable from time to time. The PRC subsidiary
is of the view that majority of the existing Strategic Partners loan
has been active but the collection on expired loan repayments
were slow or derail by PRC Government announced deferred
loans repayment relief arrangement compensate salaries workers
loss of income due to COVID-19 isolation measures.
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In Hong Kong, since obtaining the money lenders licence under
the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) in 2011, Joy Wealth Finance Limited (“Joy Wealth”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has provided a wide
variety of loans with an accumulated amount of approximately
HK$2,536,000 (2021: HK$2,536,000). Interest rates ranged from
12%-15% per annum during the reporting year (2021: 10%—
15%). For the year ended 31 December 2022, Joy Wealth did not
derive any interest income (2021: nil) on the loan and interest
receivables. Money lenders licence was renewed and granted to
Joy Wealth on 18 August 2022 to carry on business as a money
lender to 8 April 2023.

As 11 August 2022 announced, the Company has setup
Independent Recovery Committee, pursuant to regulatory
authority past guidance letters in recover of Hong Kong Joy
wealth outlined 36 loans, being priorly impaired, of aggregate
outstanding amount approximately HK$1,076,476,999 as at 31
December 2019. The Committee will deploy its own third-party
assessment, implement necessary recovery actions and take
adequate steps (including but not limited to criminal proceedings)
that should be taken by the Company against the Borrowers, as
it deems appropriate. The Committee shall ascertain from the
Company supplied materials and documents, financial records
and/or any electronic records of these 36 arrear loans. Both
Hong Kong and PRC legal Counsel and other recovering
professionals will be engaged by the Independent Recovery
Committee in pursuance this outstanding approximately
HK$1,076,476,999 loans, as at 31 December 2019. Apart from
legal actions, the Independent Recovery Committee also actively
negotiating with the borrowers to recover the outstanding loan
and interest receivables, assess the effectiveness of proceeding
existing or potential legal procedures for taking over the
ownership of pledged assets from the borrowers and guarantors.
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Securities and Other Investment Business

Securities Investment

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held equity securities listed
on the Stock Exchange for long term investment. However, Hong
Kong economy was dampened by the macro environment and
COVID-19. With poor investment sentiment during the reporting
year, the Group's investment in the listed securities led to a net
fair value loss of approximately HK$11,366,000 (2021: net fair
value loss of HK$10,795,000) recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. The net fair value loss
recognised as other comprehensive income for the year was due
to the decrease in the market value of certain listed equity
investment during the reporting year. Significant investments in
listed securities are discussed as below.

Investment in shares of Imperial Pacific

The major balance of the aforementioned listed securities
represented the Group’s investment in 271,345,000 shares of
Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited (“Imperial Pacific”,
a company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange with
stock code: 1076), representing approximately 3.8% of the
issued share capital of Imperial Pacific as at 31 December 2022.
Investment cost of the share interest in Imperial Pacific was
approximately HK$76,490,000. Imperial Pacific, through its
subsidiaries, is mainly engaged in gaming and resort business,
including the development and operation of a hotel and casino
resort on the Island of Saipan. As at 31 December 2022, the fair

value of the shares of Imperial Pacific held by the Group
amounted to HK$24,145,000 (2021: approximately
HK$24,145,000), representing 46.2% (2021: 46.2%) of the

Group’s total investment in listed securities and approximately
4.7% (2021: 4.7%) of the Group's total assets. Meanwhile, there
was neither disposal nor addition of shares of Imperial Pacific
during the reporting year (2021: Nil).

As at 31 December 2022, the operation of Imperial Pacific was
temporarily ceased since March 2020, to combat against the
COVID-19.

The Group regularly monitors its investment performance and
make appropriate investment decisions regularly. In addition, the
Group would allocate part of its idle resources from time to time
to purchase principal-guaranteed wealth management products to
increase its overall return.
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Property Investment Business

The Group commenced the property investment business during
the year ended 31 December 2021 and the properties held by
the Group are held in the location of Mainland China and the
Island of Saipan. As all the properties were just acquired during
the previous year and due to the pandemic, they were vacant as
commercial shops, residential unit and multiple rooms apartment
and not yet generated any revenue to the Group. The Group
incurred some miscellaneous expenses with regards to the
properties during 2022. The Group will continue to monitor the
market condition and will find suitable tenants which can
contribute stable rental income to the Group or to dispose the
investment properties for capturing profitable capital
appreciation.

Unlawful & Unauthorized Transfer of Saipan Leasehold
Interest

During recent audit exercise and its effort to value the Property
for audit of its financial results for the year ended 31 December
2022, the Company has discovered that the leasehold interest of
the Property was assigned by its indirect subsidiary Keen State
Global (CNMI), LLC (“Keen State Global Saipan”) to AC Pacific
Development, LLC and Katarina Saipan 1, LLC pursuant to an
Lease assignment dated 28 August 2022, being recorded and
executed under File No0:22-1362 at Commonwealth Recorder's,
Saipan (“Lease Assignment”) without any knowledge and
authority of Zhong Ji, the ultimate holding company of Keen
State Global Saipan.
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On March 2023, the Company conduct internal enquiries
including with ex-company internal legal counsel and ex-Chairman
whom remained until end of March 2023 as the sole director of
Keen State Global Limited BVI, parent holding of Keen State
Global Saipan. All these internal enquiries confirmed none of
Company staffs or directors or ex-directors have effectuated any
changes to this unlawful and unauthorized assignment of
leasehold interest. At same times, Hong Kong and Saipan law
firm were engaged in conduct extensive company and property
search on Keen State Global Saipan, has revealed and reported in
conclusion: (i) without meeting filed by Keen State Global Saipan
with Department of Commerce on 15 August 2022 removal of
ZHENG Dong Ting as director of Keen State Global and
appointed Mr. CHI Howyo as new director; whereby the said
ZHENG Dong Ting was signing as the director of Sole member,
Keen State Global BVI, such action and consent was unlawful
and unauthorized (“First Forged Consent”) because Mr. ZHENG
was not sole director of sole member Keen State Global Limited
BVI and has no authority to appoint Mr. CHI Howyo as director
of Keen State Global Saipan to execute any sale. (i) without
meeting filed by Keen State Global Saipan with Department of
Commerce on 15 August 2022, by Mr. CHI in connection with
the sale of its interest in the Property. (“Second Forged
Consent”). This CHI Howyo purported to signed on behalf of the
sole member of Keen State Global Saipan. Yet, in the signature
section the sole member is referred to as “Keen State Global
(CNMI) LLC" and the said Howyo CHI was signing on behalf of
the sole member.

The said ZHENG Dong Ting and Howyo CHI have never been
known to ZhongJi and other members of the subsidiaries of
ZhongJi. Such Lease Assignment was therefore a document
forged by the alleged director of Keen State Global Saipan, who
was never lawfully and properly appointed as director of Keen
State Global Saipan. The First Forged Consent and the Second
Consent are also forged as the Signatory on behalf of Keen State
Global BVI has no capacity to act for Keen State Global BVI,
thereby this transfer was unlawful and unauthorized transaction.
Now, the Company has authorized the Saipan law firm
commence legal actions for invalidate this forged Lease
Assignment, recover possession of leasehold interest, trace the
consideration provided by the assignees under the Lease
Assignment; rectify the record of Keen State Global Saipan filed
with Department of Commerce; and report the case on behalf of
ZhongJi to the Police of Saipan or other appropriate authority.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had recorded net current
assets of approximately HK$246,217,000 (2021:
HK$232,256,000); and cash and cash equivalent of approximately
HK$60,069,000 (2021: HK$19,437,000). The Group did not enter
into financial instruments for hedging purpose.

Capital Structure

There was an increase to the authorised and issued share capital
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022. As at
31 December 2021, the total number of issued shares of the
Company was 4,257,112,915 with par value of HK$0.001 each
(2021: 3,870,102,650 shares with par value of HK$0.001 each).

Significant Investment, Acquisition and Disposals
There was no significant investment, acquisition and disposals
that should be notified to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The performance and prospect of the significant investments of
the Group for the current year under review were discussed
under the sections of “Securities and Other Investment
Business” above.

Segment Information
Details of segment information of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 are set out in note 4 to this announcement.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2022, the employees of the Group were
mainly stationed in Hong Kong and the PRC. In-house training
programs were provided for its employees to enhance their skills
and job knowledge. The management of the Company would
continue to foster close co-operation among the employees.

The remuneration policies of the Company aim at ensuring that
remuneration levels are appropriate and in line with the
Company's target, mission and business performance. To do so,
the Company considers various relevant factors such as the
remuneration levels of its market competitors, market practices,
job duties, responsibilities and scope, financial and non-financial
performance, as well as the suitability of performance-based
remuneration arrangements.
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Details of Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not pledge any assets
to banks or other financial institutions nor did the Group have any
corporate guarantee given to any entity (2021: Nil).

Future Plans for Material Investment or Capital Assets
It is the Group's corporate mission to continue to explore ways
to improve its financial performance, to diversify its operations
into new and more profitable businesses and to broaden the
sources of revenue within acceptable risk level. Hence, the
Company does not rule out the possibility of investing in or
changing to other profitable business as long as it is in the
interest of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. Also,
as part of its routine exercise, the Company
performance of its existing investment portfolio and evaluates the
investment potentials of other investment opportunities available
to the Company from time to time. Subject to the results of such
reviews, the Company may make suitable investment decisions
according to the then circumstance and information available
which may involve the disposal of the whole or part of its
existing investment portfolio and/or change of the asset
allocation of its investment portfolio and/or expanding its
investment portfolio with a view of realising and/or optimising
the expected return and minimising the risks. Meanwhile, the
Company does not preclude the possibility that the Company
may implement debt and/or equity fund raising plan(s) to satisfy
the financing needs arising out of any business development of
the Group as well as to improve its financial position in the event
that suitable fund raising opportunities arise.

reviews the

As at the date of this report, the Company had not entered into
any agreement, arrangement, understanding, intention or
negotiation that should be disclosed pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Treasure Policy

The Group has adopted a treasury policy on 24 May 2011 in
relation to the Group's investments in securities of other listed
companies on the Stock Exchange. The objective of the policy is
to enable the Group to control and govern the possible future
securities investments (if any, which may or may not occur).
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Working Capital and Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2022 (defined
as the Group's total interest-bearing borrowings divided by the
Group's total equity) was approximately 1.6% (2021: 1.6%).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Business transactions of the Group are mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The Group has not
implemented any foreign currency hedging policy at the moment.
However, in the view of the fluctuation of Renminbi in recent
years, continuous monitoring on the foreign exchange exposure is
carried out and the management will consider hedging the
foreign exchange exposure if it has material impact on the
Group.

Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided for in its financial statements
(2021: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (2021: Nil).

PURCHASE,
SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year.

SALE OR REDEMPTION OF

DIVIDEND
The Directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SEMNEREEER[RE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yan Li (“Mr. Yan"”), aged 52, joined the Company as an
executive Director in November 2020, was appointed as the
Chairman of the Board and the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Board in December 2020 and was appointed
the chairman of share award committee of the Board in May
2021. He received the award of International Honorary Fellow of
Greenville University in the United States in 2020, was the vice
president of Shenzhen Non-Governmental Organization Federation
and the vice president of Shenzhen General Chamber of
Commerce. Mr. Yan has over 8 years’ experience in the
management and administration in the fields of advanced medical
and biological technology. In 2014, he founded Zhong Ji 1
International Medical Group (HK) Ltd. (“"HK Zhong Ji 1”) and is
currently a director and the chief executive officer of HK Zhong
Ji 1. HK Zhong Ji 1 is dedicated to integrate leading resources
about the health of knee joint around the globe and establish the
world’s leading international advanced medical transformation
platform through cell testing, cell storage and enhancement, cell
and gene therapies and the research and development,
transformation and sale of biotechnology products. The Asian
Integrated Cell Laboratory under HK Zhong Ji 1 is the world’s
leading autoimmune cell bank. Currently, Mr. Yan also holds
directorships in the Company’s subsidiaries.

Mr. Yan Yifan, aged 32, joined the Company as an executive
Director and the chef executive officer in April 2022. Mr. Yan
Yifan graduated from Henan University of Economics and Law.
He has served as the general manager of Mailyard Health Group
(Hubei) Company Limited since April 2021 and served as the
general manager of Zhong Ji 1 International Medical Group (Hong
Kong), the shares of which are beneficially owned by Mr. Yan Li,
the chairman of the Board and an executive director, from July
2013 to March 2021. Mr. Yan Yifan is also the nephew of
Mr. Yan Li.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Xiaoshuang (“Mr. Li"”), aged 49, joined the Company as an
executive Director in August 2021. Mr. Li is an EMBA from
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business, was appointed as a
consultant of the Company in December 2020 and is currently an
executive director of Zhong Ji 1 International Medical Group (HK)
Limited (a company which shares are beneficially owned by
Mr. Yan Li, the chairman of the Board and executive Director). He
was elected as a member of the National Committee of the
Chinese People’'s Political Consultative Conference for two
consecutive terms in 1993 and 1997. Mr. Li was granted the
titles of one of the top 10 athletes in China, in Asia and in the
world on several occasions. In 1992, he won the gold in the
men’s floor (gymnastics) at the 25th Olympic Games in
Barcelona and became the leading figure of the Chinese men's
gymnastics team. In 1996, Mr. Li won another gold in the men’s
artistic individual all-around at the 26th Olympic Games in
Atlanta. After retiring from the Chinese gymnastics team, Mr. Li
started his own business in January 2000 and he has extensive
experience and abilities in business operation and corporate
management.

Ms. Cao Xie Qiong (“Ms. Cao Xie"), aged 54, joined the
Company as an executive Director in December 2020. Ms. Cao
Xie holds a Master of Business Administration from the Business
School of The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
and is an honorary professor of the College of Business & Public
Management of Wenzhou-Kean University. She is a founding
member of Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives
Association and a member of the Zhejiang Provincial Committee
of the Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference. She
was a tourism ambassador for Zhejiang Province, a tourism
spokesperson of Anhui Province, an overseas promotion
ambassador for the Expo in Shanghai, a host at TVB in Hong
Kong as well as a film and TV producer. She invested in the food
and beverage industry in 2011 and was the brand director and
group vice president of two listed companies. She entered the
advanced biomedical technology sector in 2017 and is currently
the executive chairperson of the Weissman Cancer Prevention
Foundation.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEZNSREREGE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. He Yiwu (“Dr. He"), aged 59, joined the Company as a
non-executive Director in August 2021. Dr. He obtained his PhD
in 1993 from Boston University. He is currently chief innovation
officer and senior advisor to the president of The University of
Hong Kong, chairman of the board and managing director of HKU
Innovation Holdings Limited and senior advisor to the chairman of
China National Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. (Sinopharm). He
was formerly senior program officer and deputy director of the
Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation, chair professor at the University
of Science and Technology of China, global head and senior
director of GlaxoSmithKline, senior vice president of BGI Group,
executive director of the International Vaccine Association and
director of the P4 Medicine Institute in the United States.

Mr. Lyu Changsheng (“Mr. Lyu”), aged 62, join the Company as
an independent non-executive Director in August 2022. He has
extensive leadership experience in investment consulting. Over
the past 20 years, he has proven to possess progressive and
comprehensive corporate development knowledge. Mr. Lyu is
familiar with a variety of management functions of an
organization including initiating, developing and implementing
procedures to improve business performance. He has experience
in the past serve in various listing entity as chairman of the
board or as executive director, no limited to but includes DeTai
New Energy Group Limited (stock code: 559).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee See Barry (“Mr. Lee"), aged 56, joined the Company as
an independent non-executive Director in March 2022. He is also
the chairman of the audit committee and a member of each of
the nomination committee, the remuneration committee, the risk
management committee and the share award committee of the
Board. Mr. Lee graduated from Lingnan University, Hong Kong, in
1990 with a diploma (honours) in the financial service profession.
Currently, he is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Lee has over 30 years of experience
in audit, accounting and financial management. He has served as
a senior partner of Sysble Consultants since 2005, during which,
he provided financial controller services to major customers
including China CBM Group and Oriental Speech Therapy* (% 77
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wang Ning (“Mr. Wang”), aged 44, joined the Company as
an independent non-executive Director in April 2022. She is also
the chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of
each of the audit committee, the nomination committee, the risk
management committee and the share award committee of the
Board. Mr. Wang obtained an EMBA from Fudan University,
Shanghai, and graduated from Anhui Normal University, majoring
in hotel management. He served as an independent non-
executive director of RMH Holdings Limited, a company listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8437), the vice
president of Youth Committee of Shenzhen International Chamber
of Commerce and the president of Shenzhen Youth Entrepreneur
Promotion Association. Mr. Wang is experienced in real estate
development, corporate management, venture capital, and the
management of real estate and investment companies listed on
the Stock Exchange.

Professor Huang Cibo (“Prof. Huang”), aged 60, joined the
Company as an independent non-executive Director in April
2022. He is also a member of each of the audit committee,
nomination committee, the remuneration committee, the risk
management committee and the share award committee of the
Board. Prof. Huang graduated from the Department of Medicine
of Xiangya School of Medicine, is among the first batch of
renowned doctors in the PRC. He currently serves as the
director of the Internal Medicine Branch of the Chinese Medical
Association, the vice president of the Rheumatology and
Immunology Branch and the director of the Immunosorbent
Branch of the Chinese Medical Doctor Association, the director of
the Rheumatology Branch of the Cross-Straits Medical and Health
Exchange Association, and the special consultation expert of the
Central Health Care Committee. He has worked in 301 Hospital,
Southern Hospital, People’s Hospital of the Guangdong Province
and Beijing Hospital for nearly 40 years, mainly engaged in
clinical diagnosis and treatment of internal medicine and
rheumatic immune diseases, scientific research and teaching, and
health care work for local senior cadres of the military.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEZNSREREGE

HONORARY CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF SCIENTIST
Academician Randy Wayne Schekman (“Academician
Schekman”), is a profound cell biologist. He received a BA in
Molecular Sciences from the University of California, Los Angeles
in 1971 and received a doctorate in biochemistry in 1975 from
Stanford University for research on DNA replication. He has been
a member of the National Academy of Sciences since 1992, and
was elected the President of the American Society for Cell
Biology in 1999. He was the founding director of the Stem Cell
Center of the University of California, Berkeley in 2015. He was
former editor-in-chief of Proceedings of the National Academy of
Sciences. In 2011, he was announced as the editor-in-chief of
elife, a high-profile open-access journal published by the Howard
Hughes Medical Institute, the Max Planck Society and the
Wellcome Trust launching in 2012. He shared the 2013 Nobel
Prize for Physiology or Medicine with James Rothman and
Thomas C. Sudhof and received the Golden Plate Award of the
American Academy of Achievement in 2017. Academician
Schekman is currently the Chairman of Zhong Ji 1 International
Medical Group (USA) and the President of World Life Sciences
and Healthcare Association.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged an external service provider, Mr. Wan
San Fai, Vincent (“Mr. Wan") as its company secretary to fill the
casual vacancy left by the resignation of Mr. Liu Wai Kin (“Mr.
Liu”) with effect from 31 May 2022. Mr. Wan holds a Bachelor
of Arts degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has been the chief financial
officer and company secretary of Pan Asia Environmental
Protection Group Limited (Stock code: 00556.HK) since 2007. Mr.
Wan has more than 20 years' experience in auditing, accounting
and financial management.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange. The address of its registered office is Victoria
Place, bth Floor, 31 Victoria Street Hamilton, HM 10, Bermuda.
The principal place of business of the Company is Suite Nos.
01-03, 19/F., Sino Plaza, 255-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
through its subsidiaries, engaging in the business of longevity
science business, money lending and financial advisory business,
securities and other investments and property investments. The
activities and the particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The discussion and analysis of principal activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), including financial key
performance indicators, a fair review of the Company’s business,
a description of principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Company and future development in the Company’'s business,
can be found in “Financial Results”, “Business Review” and
“Outlook” sections under the *“Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
-

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
POLICIES

It is the Company’s belief that improvements in environmental,
social and governance (“ESG") matters will enhance the
long-term performance of the Company as well as the benefits of
the Company’'s primary stakeholders, which include the
Shareholders, customers, employees, suppliers and other
business partners. Taking environmental policy as an example,
the Group is committed to build up an environmental-friendly
working environment by promoting energy savings in the offices
and collecting waste papers for recycling. The Group will
continue to make efforts to minimise its operational impact on
the environment and the use of natural resources. An ESG report
will be published separately on the Company’s website to report
the Company’s ESG policies and its compliance with the “comply
or explain” provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide
contained in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules for the year ended
31 December 2022. The said ESG report is expected to be
published on the Company’'s website no later than the end of
April 2023.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group, to the best of
our knowledge, has complied with the Money Lenders
Ordinance, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the Listing
Rules, the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and other relevant laws and
regulations.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 71
and page 72 respectively.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration, form, frequency and amount of any dividend
payout of the Company must be in accordance with relevant
laws, rules and regulations and subject to the bye-laws of the
Company. Subject to compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and the bye-laws, in deciding whether to propose any
dividend payout, the Board will take into account the Group’s
financial results, the earnings and distributable reserves, the
operations and liquidity requirements, the debt ratio and possible
effects on the credit lines, and the development plans of the
Company.

28 Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
2022 Annual Report

B HEaREBRE

ARRIMEE BE HeRkEA(ERE - H8R
ERDATEAZKEEHRALDRRERERE [
BEARREERHDE (BIERE  FF - B8 -
HEBMEREMEBSEMH AR - LIRBBE A
Bl AEBBAZRYRBER TN IHERE £
MAEHREHNERERREEKIERK - A&
EREEE IR EEEHRERRABRZ
FEATE - ARABREBBITEHIERE -
HERERRE  NWEREBE-_T-__F+=
A=+—HLEFEZERE HeRERBEENUK
B EMABIMESE -+ HRE e REARS
ESIFMETETHBERIE X Z2ER - AR A
EHESFER - E_=FNAREEERIEEH

MR B REAEE o
B EER AR

RBE_ZE-__F+-_A=+—HLEFE &K
PFEM AEBEBETHREAKDN - FERQ
AMER - ETRA - BERPEGKA(EHFRBE
EHfpl]) - BRE-NN—FRREN K E A
BERRIER -

RERDE
AEBBE—_T_—_F+_A=+—HLEFEZ
XEDRENRENRNAZGEBEEREES
EHEHEEERE -

EETRBRERE -

B S BUR

RRARMARBERERE RA EZRREER
AR A B B E EA R BN EIR - =
BERERSE EETERER R FZRR
REAAMBZRBRT NAERERSEKMNER
B EFENERASEZMBELE  BILR
AEDIKFEE EERRBESHK AFEL
ENHEEREARELE LR EUREARRZ
TR E -



DONATIONS
There was no donation made by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL AND MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE
NOTES

Details of the movement in share capital of the Company and the
Convertible Notes during the year ended 31 December 2022 are
set out in note 31 and note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as the Share Option Scheme and the Convertible Notes
issued, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter
into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Movements in the distributable reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 75.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Bye-Laws and the laws in Bermuda.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2022 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. YAN Li (Chairman)

Mr. YAN Yifan (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 8 April 2022)

Ms. CAO XIE Qiong

Mr. LI Xiaoshuang

Mr. LI Jiuhua (resigned on 8 April 2022 due to personal and
other business affairs)
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Non-Executive Directors

Ms. CHOI Ngai Wah (resigned on 3 August 2022 due to the
pursuit of personal and other business commitments)

Dr. HE Yiwu

Mr. LYU Changsheng (appointed on 1 August 2022)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LEE See Barry (appointed on 31 March 2022)

Mr. WANG Ning (appointed on 8 April 2022)

Prof. HUANG Cibo (appointed on 8 April 2022)

Ms. WANG Weixia (resigned on 7 April 2022 due to personal and
other business affairs)

Mr. TAM Ho Leung Simon (resigned on 11 April 2022 due to
personal and other business affairs)

Mr. CHAI Nan (resigned on 7 April 2022 due to personal and
other business affairs)

Brief biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
22 to 26 of this annual report. Mr. Yan Li holds 491,435,175
Shares and through his wholly and beneficially owned company,
90.76% shareholding interest in HK Zhong Ji 1, which in turn
holds convertible notes issued by the Company in a principal
amount of HK$1,840,000,000, the conversion rights of which, if
exercised in full, are convertible into 9,200,000,000 Shares. Mr.
Yan Yifan is the nephew of Mr. Yan Li. Other than the aforesaid,
none of the Directors has any relationship with the substantial
shareholders as at the date of this report.

Mr. Yan Yifan, Ms. Cao Xie Qiong, Mr. Lyu Changsheng and Mr.
Lee See Barry, who was appointed by the Board since the last
annual general meeting, shall retire from office at the
forthcoming annual general meeting pursuant to clause 102(B) of
the Company’s Bye-laws and being eligible, has offered herself
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company, which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

The Board has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS
Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in
information on the Directors since the last published 2022
interim report of the Company and up to the date of this report
were set out below:

(@)  Mr. Lyu Changsheng was appointed as a non-executive
director with effect from 1 August 2022.

(b)  Ms. Choi Ngai Wah was resigned as a non-executive Director
with effect from 3 August 2022 due to the pursuit of
personal and other business commitments.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group's business to which the Company, any of its
fellow subsidiaries or its parent company was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTOR’S RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the section of “Share Options” disclosed below, at no
time during the year ended 31 December 2022 was the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors
and their respective close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) is considered to have any interests in the businesses
which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, other than those
businesses where the Directors were appointed as directors to
represent the interests of the Company and/or the Group.

INTERESTS IN A COMPETING

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

There was no connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions undertaken by the Company during the year ended
31 December 2022 and up to date of this report which was
required to be disclosed pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to clause 178 of the Company's Bye-Laws, every
Director, secretary and other officers shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of assets of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
he/she may incur or sustain by reason of any act execution of
their duty in their offices.

Such provision was in force during the course of the financial
year ended 31 December 2022 and remained in force as of the
date of this report. The Company has taken out and maintained
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance throughout the vyear,
which provides appropriate cover for the Directors.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted the share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on
12 June 2012 (the “Adoption Date”). The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to provide incentives to the grantee, including
employee, officer, agent, consultant or representative of the
Group (including any executive or non-executive director of any
member of the Group), to contribute to the Group and to enable
the Group to recruit high-calibre employees and attract resources
that are valuable to the Group. The Share Option Scheme shall
be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing from
the Adoption Date and will expire on 11 June 2022.

Following the expiration of the Share Option Scheme, the
Shareholders approved the adoption of a new share option
scheme of the Company (the “New Share Option Scheme") at
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 29th July,
2022, the New Share Option Scheme was set up for the primary
purpose to enable the Group to motivate the participants of the
New Share Option Scheme to utilise their performance and
efficiency for the benefit of the Group and to attract and retain or
otherwise maintain an ongoing relationship with the participants
whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the long term
growth of the Group, it is important that the Group should be
permitted to provide them, where appropriate, with an incentive
by offering them an opportunity to obtain an ownership interest
in the Company and to reward them for contributing to the
success of the business of the Group. The New Share Option
Scheme will expire on 29th July, 2032. For details, please refer
to the circular of the Company dated 28 June 2022.
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At the annual general meeting held on 2 June 2017, the
Shareholders duly approved the existing scheme mandate limit
under the Share Option Scheme be refreshed and renewed
provided that the total number of shares of the Company which
may be allotted and issued pursuant to the grant or exercises of
the options under the Share Option Scheme (excluding options
previously granted, outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised
under the Share Option Scheme) shall not exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at 2 June 2017, that is
387,010,265 shares of the Company. The Directors are
authorised, subject to compliance with the Listing Rules, to grant
options under the Share Option Scheme up to the refreshed limit
and to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and
deal with shares of the Company pursuant to the exercise of
such options granted under the Share Option Scheme. Share
options granted should be accepted within 28 days after the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per each grant of the share
options. The subscription price will be a price determined by the
Board and at least the highest of: (a) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
on the date of grant of the option, which must be a business
day; (b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and
(c) the nominal value of the shares. The total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of options must not exceed
30% of the number of shares in issue from time to time. No
options may be granted if such grant would result in the 30%
limit being exceeded. Details were shown in the circular of the
Company dated 28 April 2017.

The maximum number of shares of the Company (issued and to
be issued) upon exercise of the share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including options exercised, cancelled or outstanding)
to each eligible person in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue
unless approval of the Shareholders is obtained. Any grant of
share options to a Director, the chief executive of the Company,
substantial Shareholder, or Controlling Shareholder or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), is subject
to approval by the independent non-executive Directors
(excluding independent non-executive Director who is the grantee
of the share options). In addition, where the Board proposes to
grant any share options to a substantial Shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director or any of their respective
associates, and such share options, if exercised in full, would
result in the total number of shares of the Company issued and
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to be issued upon exercise of all the share options already
granted and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) to such person in the past 12-month period up
to and including the date of grant in excess of 0.1% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue on the date of grant
and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
shares of the Company on the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5,000,000, such further grant of share options is subject to
the Shareholders’ approval in general meeting.

On 31 December 2020, the Company granted an aggregate of
386,800,000 share options to ten (10) consultants of the
Company (the “Consultant(s)”) (none of the grantees nor any of
their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) are
Directors, chief executives or substantial shareholders (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Company at the time of the grant of
the share options) with an exercise price of HK$0.400 per new
share. Each Consultant is entitled 38,680,000 share options. The
Board had set out performance targets for the Consultants as
part of the conditions for grant of the Options. Such performance
targets dictated that each of the consultants would create
revenue for the Group of a certain amount within three years
from the grant of the share options, which includes introducing
clients, investors and potential business opportunities to the
Company, recommending and advising on potential acquisition
projects and assisting and advising in potential fund raising
activities. To the best knowledge of the Directors, the duties of
the Consultants are as follows:

(1)  Consultant A — introduce partners and investors to the
Company
(2) Consultant B — provide financial advice and strategic

business strategies to the Company
(3) Consultant C — introduce clients to the Company
(4)  Consultant D — introduce clients to the Company
(5)  Consultant E — introduce clients to the Company

(6) Consultant F — introduce clients to the Company
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(7)  Consultant G — introduce clients and investors to the
Company

(8)  Consultant H — introduce clients to the Company

(9) Consultant | — introduce clients to the Company

(10) Mr. Li Xiaoshuang: introduce clients to the Company

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief
having made all reasonable enquiries, save for Mr. Li Xiaoshuang,
who was an independent third party at the time of the grant of
the share options, and subsequently resigned as consultant and
was appointed as an executive Director on 30 August 2021, all
the remaining consultants are independent third parties of the
Company. None of the Consultants holds share options entitling
them to subscribe for Shares exceeding 1% of the total issued
Shares of the Company as at the date of grant. The period during
which these share options can be exercised is from
31 December 2023 to 30 December 2030.

Movements of the aforesaid share options during the period
were as follow:
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Save as disclosed above, there were no share options granted
and exercised under the Share Option Scheme during the Year.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted the share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 18 May 2021. The purpose and the
objective of the scheme are to recognise the contributions of
certain participants to the development and growth of the Group
and to provide them with incentives in order to retain them for
the continual operation and development and to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group.

The Company may from time to time, allot and issue new shares
in the share capital of the Company to the trustee as directed by
the Board and/or share award committee, which shall constitute
part of the trust fund, for the grant of restricted shares to
selected participant(s) as set out in the rules of the Share Award
Scheme and the trust deed. The Board shall not make any
further award which will result in the aggregated number of
restricted shares granted pursuant to the Share Award Scheme
(excluding restricted shares that have been forfeited in
accordance with the Share Award Scheme) exceeding 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at 18 May 2021, that is
387,010,265 shares of the Company.

No shares were awarded under the Share Award Scheme of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, the chief executive of the Company nor their close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interests or
short positions in the shares of the Company, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which any such Directors or the chief
executive of the Company is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFQO); or (b) were required to be recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) were required to be notified to
the Company or the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing rules, were as follows:
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Exe®mE
EERBESTRAERERTHEMAE
Hﬁﬁ‘}fZH’ifﬁ HBERORES RS
RXR

R-ZTE-_—F+—_A=+—H EF  AQA&K
BITBRABRBEECEEHEA(EER ETR
AN RARRRG « ARR MR EE(E&
B 2& 5K B & 5 Bl 55 XV EB) 48 B A% 1) X (& &
HEH@QEREESFRBEGAIEXVEFETRSSD
HBAARRRIRBR Iz Em AR (BEEM
ZEARREZTSI RS TR ABRIEZEH K
BIEBBRBERARNEEEBCETIAE)
% () BERIEF FH K B E K HIE 35215658 AXRA A
BEEzERMAZEZRAE  FH(C)ARE
ETRAIEE TS EMBITAERHETE S
RGMZLETRBANARBNBRIT 2R R
KRBT

Number of
Number of underlying Total number of
Shares held in Shares held Shares in
long position (L)/ long position (L)/ long position (L)/ Percentage
Name of Directors Capacity short position (S) short position (S) short position (S) (Note 1)
FEFaEL)/ FEHFAEL) #&(L), Batt
BBl &6 ERCRHLBE ERCIHEBROEE BERCIRHEH (B et1)
Mr. YAN Li (Note 2) Beneficial owner and 491,435,175 (L) 9,200,000,000 (L) 9,691,435,175 (L) 227.65% (L)
interest of controlled 9,200,000,000 (S) 9,200,000,000 (S) 216.11% (S)
corporation
B kA& (HiE2) EmnBEAARTES
NEHE =
Ms. CAO Xie Qiong Interest of spouse 46,600,000 = 46,600,000 (L) 1.09% (L)
EE e Fic 458 8 &1
Mr. LI Xiaoshuang (Note 3) Beneficial owner = 38,680,000 (L) 38,680,000 (L) 0.91% (L)
NG (T 5E3) EnBERA
Notes: B &z -
1. This represented the approximate percentage of the total number of issued 1. WHER=ZZE-=_F+=-A=+—"RAZEBITRHE
Shares as at 31 December 2022. E i ON= s A
2. Mr. Yan Li held 491,435,175 Shares and through his wholly and beneficially 2. B EERAFLABITRBROHEEBELEE =

owned company, 90.76% shareholding interest in Zhong Ji 1 International
Medical Group (Hong Kong) Limited, which in turn holds convertible notes
issued by the Company in a principal amount of HK$1,840,000,000, the
conversion rights of which, if exercised in full, are convertible into
9,200,000,000 Shares.

3. Mr. Li Xiaoshuang held 38,680,000 share options of the Company entitling
him to subscribe for 38,680,000 Shares.

EEZRARBERRTREIRERBEEEARAA
90.76% R HEHERE MEABPEFEBREELEELR
AR FEAARRRFTE1TA£ 5 451,840,000,000/8 7T 2
ARRER WEETEMABLBRE: NALRs
9,200,000,0000% f&% {7

3. /NS A F5 538,680,000 A A A BB E - T E
2 838,680,000 % A 19 KO #E 7 o
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company and/or their
respective close associates had any interests or short positions in
any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO).

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, so far as being known to the Directors
or chief executive of the Company, the interests and short
positions of the substantial Shareholders or other persons (other
than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) in the
Shares and underlying Shares which have been disclosed to the
Company pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO and have been recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

BREXFIHBEEIN RZEZZF+A=1+—
H BEARRESEA&ZaTHAB R, K
EXAZETRH B ARARQR sk H A @A
E(TEABEHFRBEERGIEXVER) ZERBED
EERDERESRHEEEAERSAR -

FTERRARKRD  HERORESZZE
3¢

RZBE-_—F+_A=+—H BARRESH
RETBABRA  EERRKEMAL (KA
RAIESd&EeTEABRIN R D &8 R GH
REBREBEFESRHAEKRNEXVEFE2R3D Z
ZIEXERARBEERE L ARIEZE SR H
BEIEBIE336 AR BATFTEZER Mo RS &
KEWT

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company: RAEQATEBRZEFR:
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Number of underlying  Total number of issued share
Shares held in  Shares entitled in Shares in capital of the
long position (L)/ long position (L)/ long position (L)/ Company
Name Capacity short position (S) short position (S) short position (S) (Note 1)
BART
L BETRAZ
FRERL/  HEWL/XRS) HEWL/ KRS BOEAL
2R/ #4 EL) REORGHE HERHHE RHEY (1)
Harmony Delight Holdings Limited Beneficial owner - 1,100,000,000 (L)  1,100,000,000 (L) 241.95%I(L)
(“Harmony Delight”) (Notes 2 and 3) Person having a security interest in shares 9,200,000,000 (L)  9,200,000,000 (L)
WRERARDR (WA 22k3) ERAEA
HERNERES AL
Ma Hongyi (Note 4) Beneficial owner - 100,000,000 (L} 100,000,000 (L) 244.30% (L)

Interest of controlled corporation
ELEAA
REG AR

SEEMWH4)
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Name

B/ 1A

Zhong Ji 1 International Medical Group
(Hong Kong) Limited (“Zhong Ji 1)
(Notes 3 and b)

AR RN R BEEAERAT
(T E1% ) (W i23K5)

China International Osteoarticular Medical
Group Limited (Note 6/

China International Osteoarticular Medical
Group Limited (476)

Wong So Wai

5358

So Hoi Wing, Jackson

Capacity

54

Beneficial owner

Vi

EZfAA

Interest of controlled corporation

REHA

AR

Beneficial owner

ERARA

Beneficial owner

Number of
Shares held in
long position (L)/
short position ()

Rl
RRS)IRGHA

500,500,000 (L)

300,000,000 (L)
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BExewns
Approximate
Number of percentage of
underlying  Total number of issued share
Shares entitled in Shares in capital of the
long position (L)/ long position (L)/ Company
short position (S) short position () (Note 1)
BAAR
X BETRAZ
FEL/KRS) BRI/ RAS) BOEAR
RERGEE ReEH (hi1)
9,200,000,000 (L) 9,200,000,000 (L) 216.11% (L)
9,200,000,000 (S)  9,200,000,000 (S) 216.11% (S)
9,200,000,000 (L) 9,200,000,000 (L) 216.11% (L)
9,200,000,000 (S)  9,200,000,000 (S) 216.11% (S)
- 500,500,000 (L) 11.76 (L)
- 300,000,000 (L) 7.05 (L)

EERS BREAA

Notes: K aF

1. Based on a total of 4,257,112,915 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2022. 1.

2. Harmony Delight held convertible notes with conversion price of HK$0.2 per 2.
Share issued by the Company (the “Convertible Notes"”) in the principal
amount of HK$220,000,000.

3. On 5 November 2020, a mortgage was entered into between Zhong Ji 1 as 8.
mortgagor and Harmony Delight as mortgagee in respect of the Convertible
Notes in the principal amount of HK$1,840,000,000.

4. Harmony Delight was wholly owned by Mr. Ma Hongyi. 4,

6. Zhong Ji 1 held the Convertible Notes in the principal amount of 5.
HK$1,840,000,000.

6. Zhong Ji 1 was 90.76% owned by China International Osteoarticular Medical 6.

Group Limited, which in turn wholly owned by Mr. Yan Li.

LURZ=ZZFT=Z=—F+=—A=+—H2Z4&%#4,257112,915
BEZETRHDHER -

16 A0 #5 5 A2 R BT 3% 17 A £ %8 /3220,000,0007%8 7T 2
AMERE  AREASREMN2ET(AMHRKEERE
Bl -

R-ZZE-_TF+—AFRA PEIFUEARIBA) 2
(B EIEN) 5 A€ % A1,840,000,0007% 7T 2 7] &2
RERTL—BIKE -

WMMBBEEAEEERERES -

FE1SR A A £ %8 A1,840,000,00058 T 2 7] # iE =
% -

7 E15% A China International Osteoarticular Medical
Group Limited#%590.76% ## * if1China International
Osteoarticular Medical Group Limitedia B8y kA& &
HE -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Company
had not been notified of any other interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or recorded in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for employment contracts, no other contracts relating to the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount
of revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest customers and
the largest customer represented approximately 46% and 23%
respectively (2021: 59% and 31% respectively) of the Group's
total revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount
of cost of services attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers and the largest supplier represented approximately 92%
and 44% respectively (2021: 80% and 31% respectively) of the
Group’s total cost of services.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in any of the Group's five largest
customers and suppliers as at 31 December 2022.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group has joined the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) for all of its employees in Hong Kong and
defined contribution retirement plans for the Group’s eligible
employees in the PRC. Particulars of the MPF Scheme are set
out in “Retirement benefits costs” section under note 3.2 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
As at 31 December 2022, 4,257,112,915 ordinary shares with a
par value of HK$0.001 each were in issue. Details are set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the best knowledge of the Directors, the Board
confirmed that the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float as required under the Listing Rules during the year ended
31 December 2022.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

The Group has not made any material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries during the reporting year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of significant events occurring after the reporting date are
set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

The Company’'s Consolidated financial statements for the years
ended 2021 were audited by KTC Partners CPA Limited ("KTC").

KTC resigned as auditors of the Company with effect from
12 January 2022 and the Board resolved to appoint new Auditor,
Elite Partners CPA Limited (“Elite”) as the new auditors of the
Company with effect from 12 January 2023 to fill the casual
vacancy. Details of the change of auditors are disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 12 January 2023.
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A resolution for reappointment of Elite as auditors of the ABREERTAARAZEAEMZRAZRGNLE
Company will be proposed at forthcoming annual general ERERFEFEAE HEZ -
meeting.

On behalf of the Board REEZE

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited FERENESEERAA
Yan Li FE

Chairman v

Hong Kong, 18 April 2023 BB —E-_=mA+/\H
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Al A N/
TEERRE

The Board is committed to uphold a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the belief that they
are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence
and maximising Shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its
corporate governance practices from time to time in order to
meet the rising expectations of Shareholders and comply with
increasingly stringent regulatory requirements (both locally and
internationally), and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the code provisions (“Code
Provision(s)”) set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules during
the year.

The Company has complied with the risk management and
internal control code provisions D.2.4 during the year. In
particular, the Risk management Committee monitors the
Company to disclose the following:

(@)  the process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks;

(b)  the main features of risk management and internal control
system;

(c)  an acknowledgement by the Board that it is responsible for
the risk management and internal control system and
reviewing its effectiveness;

(d)  the process used to review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system; and

(e)  the process used to resolve material internal control defects
for any significant problems disclosed in its annual reports
and financial statements.

A comprehensive analysis of the risks affecting the business of
the Company and the mitigation measures is set out in the
section of “Risk management and internal controls” on pages 57
to 59 in this Annual Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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THE BOARD

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises of four
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. Formal letters of
appointment for Directors setting out the key terms and
conditions of their appointment were executed by all Directors.
Mr. Yan Li, Mr. Yan Yifan and Ms. Cao Xie Qiong were not
appointed for a specific or proposed term; and Mr. Li
Xiaoshuang, Dr. He Yiwu, Mr. Lyn Changsheng, Mr. Lee See
Barry, Mr. Wang Ning and Prof. Huang Cibo were appointed for a
term of two years but all Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The key responsibility of the Board is overseeing the business
and how the management serves the interests of the
Shareholders and other stakeholders. The Board assumes
responsibility for leadership and control of the Company and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith in the best
interests of the Company and its Shareholders, and ensure good
corporate governance and compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements.

The roles of the Board include reviewing and guiding corporate
strategies and policies, monitoring financial and operating
performance and setting appropriate risk management policies.
All Directors should take decisions objectively in the interests of
the Company. To achieve this, the Board has adopted corporate
governance principles aimed at ensuring that the Board is
independent and fully informed on the key strategic issues facing
the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, risk management and
internal control, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of
the Board, directing, and coordinating the daily operation of the
Company are delegated to the management.
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THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board has established five board committees, being the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Risk Management Committee and the Share
Award Committee (collectively the “Board Committees”) to
oversee different areas of the Company’s affairs. All Board
Committees are provided with sufficient resources to perform
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense.

Under the Bye-Laws of the Company, one-third of the Directors,
or if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest one-third, shall be subject to retirement by
rotation. They are required to retire from office at each annual
general meeting and their re-election is subject to a vote of the
Shareholders. Retiring Directors are eligible for re-election at the
annual general meeting at which they retire. Further, any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company but shall
be eligible for re-election at the meeting. Separate resolutions are
proposed for the election of each Director.

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in
pages 22 to 26 of this annual report, which demonstrates a
diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualification.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are Mr. Yan Li and
Mr. Yan Yifan respectively.
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As at the date of this report, the composition of the Board and

the Board Committees are given below and their
responsibilities are discussed in this report.

Audit
Board of Directors Committee
Exg ERZEE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. YAN Li SRS =
Mr. YAN Yifan B—NEE =
Mr. LI Xiaoshuang EYIN-F -2 =
Ms. CAO XIE Qiong B2at+ =
Non-Executive FHBTES
Directors
Dr. HE Yiwu 7R 1+ =
Mr. Lyn Changsheng aRkBRE =
Independent BIYFHTES
Non-executive
Directors
Mr. LEE See Barry Z=BRE chairman
e
Mr. WANG Ning TEEE member
Bk 8
Prof. HUANG Cibo = AN B member
D=t

respective

Nomination
Committee

REEZEE®

chairman
Er

member
member
member

An updated list of the Directors, identifying their roles and
functions at the Company, is available on the websites of the

Company and the Stock Exchange.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Bye-laws and the CG Code, every Director is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once
every three years. All the non-executive Directors are subject to
the aforesaid retirement requirements and are appointed for a

specific term of not more than three years.
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The Board has three independent non-executive Directors, and at
least one of them has the appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise as
required under the Listing Rules. The Board has received from
each of the independent non-executive Directors an annual
written confirmation of his independence pursuant to the Listing
Rules, and considered that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

The number of Board meetings, committees meetings and
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general meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2022 ZE=2 % ZE2LZLREASAEALZ
and the Directors’ respective attendance record are summarised & = 2 H & 40 SEE a 20 T ¢
as follows:
Number of Meetings Attended/Eligible to Attend
LE/REREEEENY
Risk Annual
Audit Nomination Remuneration Management General
Name of Director EEpg Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EZ® ENZEe® REZEE FHZEE REREEZEE RRAFAS
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. YAN Li EvEita 35/36 > 4/4 = n 111
Mr. YAN Yifan (appointed on B-NEERZT=Z
8 April 2022) MANBEZH) 27/28 = - - = Nn
Ms. CAO Xie Qiong ERut 12/36 - - - - 17
Mr. LI Xiaoshuang TNELE 23/36 - - - - 11
Mr. LI Jiuhua (resigned on PNERER=Z-ZF
8 April 2022) MA\NBEE) 8/8 = = = = =
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Ms. CHOI Ngai Wah (resigned on ERETT (NS4
3 August 2022) NA=ZAEMA) 7/29 - - - - /1
Dr. HE Yiwu AR ELT 4/36 = = = = N
Mr. Lyn Changsheng (appointed on aRBEEMRZIZ=Z
1 August 2022) NA—BEZT) 6/7 - - - - -
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFH{TES
Ms. WANG Weixia (resigned on TEERT (K==
7 April 2022) MA+HE{E) 38 212 n n - -
Mr. TAM Ho Leung Simon BEREE(RZSZF
(resigned on 11 April 2022) MA+—REfE) 2/8 202 202 212 - -
Mr. CHAI Nan (resigned on -t o O
7 April 2022) MA+HEE) 2/8 2/2 111 111 - -
Mr. LEE See Barry (appointed on FREE(RZE=Z
31 March 2022) ZA=t—-REZH) 26/29 313 313 313 1 N
Mr. WANG Ning (appointed on TERE(RZZZF
8 April 2022) MANREZ) 2027 313 202 212 111 N
Prof. HUANG Cibo (appointed on BERIR(MZE=ZF
8 April 2022) MANREZT) 19/27 2/3 2/2 212 i 111
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Regular Board meetings are convened and held by the Company,
and the Directors are given adequate notice to attend such
regular Board meetings or other Board meetings. The Directors
are also provided in a timely manner with appropriate information
in such form and of such quality as will enable them to make an
informed decision and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities as Directors. Minutes of regular Board meetings,
other Board meetings or other committees meetings are
recorded in sufficient details. Draft and final versions of minutes
are circulated to all Directors for comments and records
respectively, within a reasonable time after the Board meetings
or committee meetings are held. Final versions of minutes are
kept by the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) and are open for inspection at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice by any Director.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

For having a diversified Board which is regarded as an essential
element in the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development, in August 2013, the Board adopted a
Board Diversity Policy with principles as summarised below.
The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses the
composition of the Board and makes recommendations to the
Board on appointment of new Directors. The Nomination
Committee also oversees the conduct of the annual review of
the effectiveness of the Board. In reviewing and assessing the
composition of the Board, the Nomination Committee will
consider the benefits of all aspects of diversity in order to
maintain an appropriate range and balance of talents, skills,
experience and background on the Board. In recommending
candidates for appointment to the Board, the Nomination
Committee will consider candidates on merit against objective
criteria and with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service etc.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate
respect of the legal action against the Directors and the officers
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2022.

insurance cover in
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Each newly appointed Director is provided with comprehensive
induction to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the
operations and businesses of the Group as well as his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

During the vyear, all Directors were provided with regular updates
on the Group’'s business and operation and information which
covered topics including but not limited to the CG Code, the
disclosure and compliance of inside information, updates and
changes in relation to legislative and regulatory requirements in
which the Group conducts its business for their study and
reference. During the vyear, all Directors have participated in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills, with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code
by reading relevant news, journals, magazines and relevant
publications. The Company has provided information relating to
the regulatory update and extracted certain materials from the
website of the Stock Exchange to directors for their own study
to strengthen their understanding on the Listing Rules from time
to time.

Further pursuant to HKEX guide in respect to various matters
(unaudited Results announcement, Loan repayment extension,
settlement agreement) breach of Listing Rules 2.13(2) 13.13
13.15 14.34 and 13.09, on attempts to improve the Company
internal controls, on 17 and 24 March 2023 the Company
compliance solicitor have conducted relevant courses in training
the Company executive directors and relevant staffs on Rule 2.13
and Chapters 13 & 14 of the Listing Rules, require each director
to comply with Listing Rules to the best of his/her ability and
use his/her endeavours to procure the Company’'s compliance
with the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions as set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed (the
“Model Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having
made enquiry to all Directors, they all have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards as set out in the
Model Code during the year.

Issuers
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises of three independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
Wang Ning (Chairman), Mr. Lee See Barry and Prof. Huang Cibo.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee are:

(@)  to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on
such remuneration;

(b)  to have the delegated responsibility to determine the specific
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management (i.e. the model described in the code
provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code), including benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment, and make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors. The
Remuneration Committee should consider factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-
based remuneration;

(c) to review and approve performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time;

(d) to review and approve the compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management in connection
with any loss or termination of their office or appointment
to ensure that such compensation is determined in
accordance with relevant contractual terms and that such
compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive for the
Company;

50 Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
2022 Annual Report

EEZEE

FMEES

BEARSHY FHZEEXKERR=Z2%
VHERTEFTIERLA (TR FTREELEER
BRBE -

FEEe A RBIER:

@ MARFREREELSREEEMRAHMN
Z IR N IR A R A I BT 7 BN SR L IE
RMAZAEZEFRAEFSREES:

b) EEZSEXRET EBET2BHUTESEK
SREEEZREFMGEBIERER
<RI ST AR SCB.A. 2(c) (i) PRt i ) - B IE
eEMNE BRARSENEBEESR(ER
BRI BLIBBEREENREE) ALk
HATEEZHFHREZTSREES - 0
ZEEREREFABRAMNOFHMH - AN
HHRERESBE  AEEREAMBA
MERGHFARBERREE 2HFMESE
ESHE:

c) FAREFETRIARZIEESHEBESEM
B R ERRBEE ZHMW

(d) BEELEANRTESESREEAE]
HERFERIBBRZEMANOEE -
NERZEHBERSOGRR— % EREE
HENER B BENAQAME NA
NEFEE - FBBEE:



(e)  to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that such arrangements are determined in
accordance with relevant contractual terms and that any
compensation payment is otherwise reasonable and
appropriate; and

(f)  to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration.

The remuneration payable to the Directors and senior
management is determined by reference to their experiences and
duties with the Company and the estimated time spent by them
on the Company’'s matters. During the year, 4 meetings were
held to (a) review the Company's policy on remuneration of the
Group; (b) review the performance and recommended the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management to the
Board; and (c) recommend the remuneration of newly appointed
Directors and senior management to the Board.

Details of the Directors’ and the chief executive’'s remuneration
are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises of the chairman of the board and three independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Yan Li (Chairman), Mr. Lee See
Barry, Mr. Wang Ning and Prof. Huang Cibo.

The role and function of the Nomination Committee are:

(@) to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and length of service) of the
Board at least annually; and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to implement the
Company's corporate strategy;

(b)  to consider the skills mix needed in respect of the Directors
and make recommendations to the Board;

(c)  to identify and nominate candidates to fill casual vacancies
of the Directors for the Board’s approval. Academic and
professional qualifications, business experience, expertise
and knowledge as well as other requirements under the
Listing Rules will be assessed to determine if the
nomination is suitable;
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(d) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and review the independent non-executive
Directors’ annual confirmations on their independence; and
make disclosure of its review results in the Corporate
Governance Report;

(e) to regularly review the time required from a Director to
perform his responsibilities;

(f)  to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of the
Directors and succession planning for the Directors in
particular the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive;

(g) to do any such things to enable the Nomination Committee
to discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the
Board; and

(h)  to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that
may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the Company’'s constitution or imposed by
legislation.

During the year, 7 meetings were held by the Nomination
Committee to, among other things, (a) review the structure, size
and composition of the Board, (b) make recommendation for
appointment of the Directors, (c) assess the independence of
each of the independent non-executive Directors, and (d) review
the Board Diversity Policy to ensure its effectiveness and
considered the Group achieved the policy since its adoption.

Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises of
three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Lee See Barry
(Chairman), Mr. Wang Ning and Prof. Huang Cibo.
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The role and function of the Audit Committee are:

Relationship with the Company’s auditors

(a)

to be primarily responsible for making recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of the external auditor and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the external auditor before the audit
commences, the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations, and ensure co-ordination where more
than one audit firm is involved;

to develop and implement policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services. For this
purpose, external auditor shall include any entity that is
under common control, ownership or management with the
audit firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed third
party having knowledge of all relevant information would
reasonably conclude as part of the audit firm nationally or
internationally. The Audit Committee should report to the
Board, identifying any matters in respect of which it
considers that action or improvement is needed and making
recommendations as to the steps to be taken; and

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company's relations with the external auditor.

BEZZ8

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
/JE % =] /L:l i& &

SzAERBERS:

BHARAREZ R

a

(c)

IKE NN RE ENEE

ERAEFSRMHES  HAENBEZH
%m 7 BN 2 BS R fR R 0 K BE 3R {E AR B R %
Ao BB B B K R A A BB A R R

BEANEERSMERINEZBMES
BUTBMZBEFREAER ERZEE
S 7 A BT 1E 79 46 B 55 B2 SN S A BRAT &Y
WZBEERBERAEERAET &
y? RZEET2EZRTIERETH

=[]
o

1

LN HS A% BN B2 4 3F 12 BUR A% ) R BUR
W FABTT - RULREM S - HNEE I BiAm
BRER BT ZHHNAEE N R — 25 % -
PRERSEEREZ THEAERE  H— @
REMEMEEBENNE=N  EAHE

BRATEHTZHREBNZAERENA
AIMATHBERREN — 806 E /%

B BERZESRMEMAERNITEIHNK
ENFEEHRNEFERELRLES

BEEERARD
FEREK o

& B2 HMIE A% BAD 2 E R R 9

hERSNSEEMERAT 53
—BCCEER



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERME

Review of financial information of the Company

(e)

54

to monitor integrity of financial statements of the Company
and the Company’'s annual report and accounts, interim
report and, if preparation for publication of quarterly
reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgements contained in them. In this regard, in reviewing
the Company’s annual report and accounts, interim report
and if prepared for publication, quarterly reports before
submission to the Board, the Audit Committee should focus
particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgemental areas;
(i)  significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv) the going concern assumption and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

legal

as regards to (e) above:

(i) members of the Audit Committee must liaise with the
Board, the Company’'s senior management and the
person appointed as the Company’s qualified
accountant and the Audit Committee must meet, at
least twice a year, with the Company's external
auditors; and

(i)  the Audit Committee should consider any significant
or unusual items that are, or may need to be,
reflected in such reports and accounts and must give
due consideration to any matters that have been
raised by the Company’'s staff responsible for the
accounting and financial reporting function,
compliance officer or external auditors.
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Oversight of the Group’s financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems

(9)

(m)

to review the Group's financial controls, and unless expressly
addressed by a separate board risk committee, or by the
Board itself, to review the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with the management to ensure that management has
performed its duty to have effective systems. This discussion
should include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or
on its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings;

internal audit function exists, to ensure
coordination between the internal and external auditors, and
to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the Group,
and to review and monitor its effectiveness;

where an

to review the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management in
respect of the accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor's management letter;

to report to the Board on the matters set out in this terms
of reference;

to review the Company's arrangements for its employees
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. The Audit Committee shall ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action; and

to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.
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Corporate Governance Functions

(g) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

()  to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

(s)  to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(t) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and the
Directors; and

(u)  to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the half-
yearly and annual financial results and reports as well as the
effectiveness of the Company's risk management and internal
control systems and internal audit function. The Audit Committee
also met the external auditor and monitored the re-appointment
of external auditor. Besides, the Audit Committee performed the
corporate governance duties as delegated by the Board as
discussed above.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee during the year.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the total remuneration
paid to Elite Partners CPA Limited was HK$1,400,000 for audit
services provided for the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE GROUP’S
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of financial statements of the Group which are
prepared in accordance with the relevant statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards in force, and are published in
a timely manner. The Directors are responsible for selecting and
applying on a consistent basis suitable accounting policies and
ensuring timely adoption of Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

The Board understands the importance of presenting a clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Group’s overall performance,
financial positions as well as prospects in a timely manner; and
the Board is pleased to report that, so far, the annual and interim
results of the Group are announced within the prescribed
periods.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Board acknowledges its responsibility in (i) maintaining the
risk management and internal control system for the Group to
safeguard the investments of the Shareholders and assets of the
Group at all times; and (ii) evaluating the effectiveness of such
system. The system of internal control aims to help achieving the
Group’s business objectives, safeguarding assets and maintaining
proper accounting records for provision of reliable financial
information. However, the design of the system is to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement in the financial statements or loss of assets and to
manage, rather than eliminate, the risks of failure when business
objectives are being sought.

Main Features
Described below are the main features of the Group's risk
management and internal control framework:

Control Environment

o The Directors and senior management are committed to
developing and maintaining high professional and ethical
standards and the Group provides sufficient training to
accounting and financial personnel to keep pace with the
growth and/or complexity of the business.
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Risk Assessment
o Mechanisms are in place to identify and assess the risks of
fraud that affect achievement of the Group's objectives.

° Any risk identified should be reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board and be investigated. Immediate
action should be taken to mitigate the risk.

Information and Communication

o Administrative information system provides necessary
information to an appropriate employee of the Group at the
necessary level of detail on a timely basis.

° Channels are established for employees of the Group to
communicate suspected improprieties upstream through

other than a direct supervisor.

Control Activities

o Policies and procedures are laid down for key business
processes for ensuring management directives are carried
out.

° Control activities include segregation of duties, authorisation,
physical count, access control, documentation and records,
etc.

Monitoring

o Ongoing assessment of control systems’ performance is
carried out.

o Professional third party is engaged to assess and comment

on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems.

Identifying, Evaluating and Managing Significant Risks
The management has regular meetings with officers from
different operation divisions to identify significant risks and to
discuss the likelihood of occurrence, the impact of such risks and
risk mitigation strategic. The management then reports to the
Audit Committee and the Board with recommendations and
mitigation measures. The Board is responsible for determining
the risk mitigating strategy.
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Internal Audit

The Group has outsourced the internal audit function by engaging
a professional third party to assess and comment on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems during the year. There was no significant
deficiencies in risk management and internal controls reported by
such professional third party.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

In relation to the handling and dissemination of inside information
under the SFO, the Group has established the policy of
disclosure of inside information as an integrated part of its risk
management and internal control policy to provide guidance for
reporting and disclosure of inside information. Such policy,
together with the "“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” issued by Securities and Futures Commission, are
also distributed across all relevant divisions and employees who
are likely to be in possession of inside information. Under such
policy, the Directors or management shall report any potential
inside information to the Board as soon as possible, so that the
Board can determine whether the matter or its development is
inside information and make disclosure whenever necessary.

Review of Effectiveness
The Audit Committee also
identified by external auditor, regulatory authorities, the
management and the outsourced internal audit function and
evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems at least annually. The
Audit Committee in turn reports any material issues to the
Board.

reviews internal control issues

The Board has conducted review on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022, covering all material controls in
the financial, operational and compliance controls. The review
also considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programs and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions. The
Board considers the risk management and internal control system
effective and adequate. The Board confirms that the Group has
complied with the Code Provisions on risk management and
internal control as set out in the CG Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2022.
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On 23 February 2023 pursuant to HKEX guide on various
matters of past years (unaudited Results announcement, Loan
repayment extension, settlement agreement) breach of Listing
Rules 2.13(2) 13.13 13.15 14.34 and 13.09.

On attempts to improve the Company internal controls, on 17
and 24 March 2023 the Company compliance solicitor have
conducted relevant courses in training the Company executive
directors and relevant staffs on Rule 2.13 and Chapters 13 & 14
of the Listing Rules, require each director to comply with Listing
Rules to the best of his/her ability and use his/her endeavours to
procure the Company’s compliance with the Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Wan undertook
taken no less than 15 hours of professional training to update his
skills and knowledge during the reporting period.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with the Shareholders
through general meetings and Shareholders are encouraged to
participate.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

On 30 March 2012, the Board adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy to comply with the updated Listing Rules
and to reflect mostly the current communication practices of the
Company with its Shareholders. Such policy aims to (i) promote
effective communication with Shareholders and other
stakeholders; (ii) encourage Shareholders to engage actively with
the Company; and (iii) enable Shareholders to exercise their rights
as Shareholders effectively. However, the Board will review the
Shareholders’ Communication Policy on a regular basis to ensure
its effectiveness and compliance with the prevailing regulatory
and other requirements.

The Company established a range of communication channels to
provide its Shareholders and stakeholders with balanced and
understandable information about the Company. These include
annual general meeting, annual report, interim report, various
notices, announcements and circulars. The annual general
meeting and other general meetings of the Company are primary
forum for communication between the Company and its
Shareholders. The Company shall provide Shareholders with
relevant information on the resolution(s) proposed at a general
meeting in a timely manner in accordance with the Listing Rules.
The information provided shall be reasonably necessary to enable
Shareholders to make an informed decision on the proposed
resolution(s).
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special
General Meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a special
general meeting shall be convened by the members of the
Company holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth (10%) of such of the paid-up capital of the
company as at the date of the deposit carries the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company. The requisitionists must
submit their requisition in writing, in which it must state the
objects of the meeting, and be duly signed by the requisitionists,
mailed and deposited at Suite Nos. 01-03, 19/F., Sino Plaza,
255-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong (attention
of the Company Secretary).

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting for
a day not more than 28 days after the date on which the notice
convening the meeting is given, the requisitionists, or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3
months from the said date. Any reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionists by reason of the failure of the Directors duly to
convene a meeting shall be repaid to the requisitionists by the
Company.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings by Shareholders

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, proposals at
Shareholders’ meetings can be put forward by the members of
the Company holding at the date of the submission of the
proposals not less than one-twentieth (5%) of such of the paid-
up capital of the Company as at the date of the submission
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company;
or not less than 100 Shareholders.

The submission of the proposals must be made within 3
business days after a notice of the Shareholders’ meeting have
been served to all registered Shareholders by the Board. The
proposals must be written and must state the objects of the
proposals, and must be signed by the proposers, and mailed and
deposited at Suite Nos. 01-03, 19/F., Sino Plaza, 255-257
Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong (attention of the
Company Secretary); and may consist of several documents in
like form, each signed by one or more proposers.
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The proposals will be verified with the Company’s share registrar
and upon its confirmation that the proposals are proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to update the
resolutions by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all registered Shareholders, provided
that the proposers have deposited a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses involved in publishing
supplementary circular and updating related resolutions. On the
contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in order, the
proposer will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, no
resolution will be updated as requested.

Procedures for Sending Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the
attention of the Company Secretary, by email: ir@zhongji.com.hk,
fax: (852) 2526 5733, or mail to Suite Nos. 01-03, 19/F., Sino
Plaza, 255-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company maintains a website at
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/zhongjilongevity, where information of
the Company including the list of Directors, announcements,
circulars and reports released to the Stock Exchange and other
information are posted. Information on the Company's website
will be updated from time to time.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There was no amendment made to the constitutional documents
of the Company during the year.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

18 3 % AN R

elite
- partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ZHONG JI
SCIENCE GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

LONGEVITY

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhong
Ji Longevity Science Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries collectively referred to as (the “Group”) set out on
pages 71 to 200, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BHERSNERERFRATF
(RERZAMELZHERLA)
EERR

=R

AEZBEHUATEBEIRMDEEFINERET
E200EWFERSHEEEERAR (EAR )
REMBRARUATAEBERE]DNEGEEMB
MABR WP BBREER_FT__F+=
A=t —HANGEEMBE AR BREBEEZZA L
FENKFEBEER HKAE2HKREREK KA
RaZPHRNGRATRER UREAMB
BERME BRIESHTHREME -

BMRE ZERAVERREREET S E:
MAe((E8EHA)BEMNE BB R
HEA((BEBMKEREER]) EEiMF S H <
T BEER-_ZE_—_F+_A=t—HH&KA
BERAREEZALFENGAMBERERER
BABESRE YCHEBREBARIKEHNNIEE
MEZBEME -

FEESHEREARAS 63
—eo—EER



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
8 3 % BB

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

were of most significance
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment of loan and interest receivables

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
8 37 % BB

FHEETERG
FRERER ERE

Impairment assessment on loan and interest receivables and other receivables

JE W B 3R F B R B A JE 7K IR 2 B 18 AF A

As at 31 December 2022, the net carrying amounts of
loan and interest receivables and other receivables
amounted to approximately HK$172,289,000 and
HK$146,134,000 respectively.
R_ZE-_—_F+=-A=+—8 BERERERMNEE@EF
B2 5l 49 43172,289,0007% JT 5 146,134,000% 7T °

Management judgment is required in assessing and
determining the recoverability of loan and interest
receivables and other receivables and adequacy of
allowance made using the expected credit losses (‘ECL")
model under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”.
BEEAVBEREENFIRIemIT A FABEHE
EER(EAHEEFBDRATEREETERKRER LT
BUAREMEBYRRIENTKEM RIEHENBEER TR R
B BEEAED A -

We had identified impairment assessment on loan and
interest receivables and other receivables as a key audit
matter because the assessment of the recoverability of
loan and interest receivables and other receivables and
recognition of loss allowance are inherently subjective
and require significant management judgment, which
increases the risk of error or potential management
bias.

B AP E A R W B SR R B A R E At FE U Bk TR B R B AT
BAABARETEE RERSTHERERKEINEAK
Hh R IER AT B ML R EREERERNFAEE
Bl FTEBTEEBEHERAL MG NERSIE
EIRERAAER -

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of loan and interest receivables and other
receivables included:

BAFIRE IR B U E TR F B DA R E At 18 W 5Kk TE B R
B EETHEFBRE:

o We discussed with management and independent
external valuer engaged by the Group in relation to
the methodology, basis and assumptions used to
see whether the methodology and assumptions
used were reasonable and appropriate;

J BMEEEER ESEZENBEINBEER
WAL  EREREBR  UEEMANGER

BERERAREREE:

o We checked the accuracy, appropriateness and
reliance of the input date used; and

J ZMREMAE ASBNERE  BEEMLRAE
N

o We evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent external
taking into account its experience and
qualifications.

J BMEZRBLIIMBEEMOLCR R ERETME
HEeeh eI REBMNL -

valuer

We considered the management’s conclusion to be
consistent with the available information
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

OTHER MATTERS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on these statements on 10
June 2022.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’'s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
8 37 % BB
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
8 3 % BB

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Chan Wai Nam, William with
Practising Certificate number P05957.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
10/F, 8 Observatory Road
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
Hong Kong

18 April 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

4= A 4E %
AR TE m

Year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZE-_—_F#+-_A=+—RHIFE

2022 2021
—=E—-= —E-—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
K7 at FHE T FE T
REVENUE W &= 5 89,668 61,119
Cost of sales 85 & Bk 2N (5,831) (9,210)
GROSS PROFIT E F 83,837 51,909
Other income and gains, net H U A Rk & F 58 7 309 1,863
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (2,842) (2,752)
Administrative expenses THEAX (41,114) (43,746)
Impairment losses under expected EHEEBBEERAT
credit loss model, net of reversal EEE - kD 9 (28,306) 4,475
Loss on withdrawal of joint ventures B & & b % &5 18 (202) -
Fair value losses on investment REYMENFEEE
properties 16 (314) (4,997)
Share of results of joint ventures BhEELECEE (1,628) 900
Finance costs 81 7% S 8 (417) (692)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B B A% F 9 9,323 6,960
Income tax expense Frigfi A x 10 (8,622) (760)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRRF 701 6,200
Attributable to: BEEBR
Owners of the Company KRABHEE A (904) 6,055
Non-controlling interests IF 2 B 2= 1,605 145
701 6,200
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE EEREAAREBTARZ
ATTRIBUTABLE sR(ER)BR
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 14
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings FREARAREE HK(0.01) cents HK0.04 cents
for the year (E518),&F (0.01) & 1L 0.047%& 1

PEESNSEEARAT 71
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AR A 2 E W WK

Year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—#+-_fA=+—HItFE

2021
—E—F
HK$'000
T
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 701 6,200
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ Hib2m(E1E), WH
INCOME
Other comprehensive (loss)/income REGZHBREEFHES
that may be reclassified to TE S EMmEmE(EE), S
profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of & BIINERREE ZE X X5
foreign operations (37,390) 20,427
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income FIREZRHEEHFHEE
that may be reclassified to profit or BRzHEM2E(EE) WE
loss in subsequent periods S (37,390) 20,427
Other comprehensive loss that TERERBEEH»ESE
will not be reclassified to BmcBEMmEmEE:
profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Equity investments designated at fair ErAEATFESBEMETA
value through other comprehensive W ARZBEREE
income:
Changes in fair value NEEEF (32,917) (10,795)
Net other comprehensive loss TERHEEHBEENIEE
that will not be reclassified to profit EmzHMtE2MmEEFE
or loss in subsequent periods (32,917) (10,795)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ FRHME2E(EER) WE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET KR IE
OF TAX (70,307) 9,632
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FRZE(BE) WHEBE
(LOSS)/INCOME FOR THE YEAR (69,606) 15,832
Attributable to: BB
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETET =N (69,656) 14,916
Non-controlling interests IE 1 IR B A 50 916
(69,606) 15,832

72 Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

wr e B A% R 0 R 3R

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Plant and equipment

Investment properties

Right-of-use assets

Interests in joint ventures

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Loan and interest receivables

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Loan and interest receivables

Trade receivables

Deposits, prepayments and other
receivables

Tax recoverable

Amounts due from related companies

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals

Other borrowings

Lease liabilities

Amount due to a director
Amounts due to related companies
Contract liabilities

Tax payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities
Lease liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

NET ASSETS

ARBEE
5 & &

BEME

EHERE
\BELE R
E@¥@ﬁﬂﬁm%ﬁ
W“A%Zﬁﬂﬁ%
e W B R A B

FRBEEMRE

REBEE

FE

& W & 5% KRS
& W B K
B AR
J& W 5% TR
] Y [B] 75 7R
& W B Hgt 2 =] 5K 1R
RehBEEEY

AR EAM

mEEEHBE

REBEE

FE& 1+ RR 3K

Hit BN RBEREHERN
Hib g &

HEAE

& — %%%iﬁ

& 1 B8 Bt % B SR IR
BREE

%Hﬁﬁ

mBAERER
REBEEFE

BEERERABAR

FENRBEE
EXERBRE
HEAE

FRBEABRR

EEFRE

Notes

HiF

15
16
17
18

9,
21

20
21
22

23

28
24

25
26
27
17
28
28
28

30
17

31 December 2022
—E-—f+-A=+—~H

2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
FE T
1,519 1,652
24,411 26,001
1,265 4,832
80 5,753
9,859 56,877
138,135 145,585
175,269 240,700
3,809 1,020
34,154 72,279
654 19
183,983 176,358
3,718 4,072
23,183 3,610
60,069 19,437
309,570 276,795
1,087 254
11,311 11,599
10,290 7,740
1,472 3,718
= 6,926
= 7,817
23,662 1,126
15,531 5,359
63,353 44,539
246,217 232,256
421,486 472,956
637 766
= 1,472
637 2,238
420,849 470,718
T ERSEHBEEFRAT 73
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2022 2021

—=E2_= —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Ht & FTEx FAT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRR#E

Share capital [N 32 4,257 3,870
Reserves 1 389,572 439,878

Equity attribute to owners of the BEEREQXTEEBA
Company ZFE = 393,829 443,748
Non-controlling interests IF 12 P 2 27,020 26,970
Total equity DB 420,849 470,718

The consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 200 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
18 April 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

Yan Li
v
Director

EZE
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Attributable to owners of the parent

ARAREAES
Equity
Share PRC  Exchange Share component of Non-
Share premium Fair value  Contributed statutory  fluctuation option  convertible Accumulated controlling Total
capital account reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve notes losses Total interests equity
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢/ (Note d) (Note e/ (Note f] (Note 31)
TERERZ
Bx  BROERR ATERE  RABR vEERES EXRDEE BRAERE BEB6  EHER @i FRREE  ERAR
(H#a) (Kb (Hie) (Hitd) (Kie) 67 (H31)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR iR TER T#r T#n T TR TR TR TER T#r T#r
At 31 December 2021 RZB--F+-A=1-H 3,870 932,470 (140,742) 217,102 25,021 5,188 n 1,755,856 (2,415,089) 443,748 26,970 470,718
Loss for the year FRER © @ ® ® @ o © © (904) (904) 1,60 0
Other comprehensive (loss)fincome for ~ SR E {2 & (F8)/ h&:
the year:
Changes in fair value of financial assets EATERBEMRENEAELZ
at fair value through other SHEEZATESD
comprehensive income = = (32,917) = = = = = = (32,917) = (32,917)
Exchange differences on translation of ~ BEENERBEL 2 ERES
foreign operations = = = = = (35,835) = = = (35,835) (1,555) (37,390)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FR2E(KE)/ hadE
for the year ° o (32,917) o o (35,835) ° ° (904) 69,656) 50 (69,606)
Transfer of fair value reserve upon REERATERALMZAREA
disposal of equity investments at BRERERERATERER
fair value through other
comprehensive income = = 11,365 = = = = = (11,365) = = =
Shares issued in respect of prepayment B[ EF BT TR {H
of consultancy fee 387 19,350 = = = = = = = 19,737 = 19,731
At 31 December 2022 RZFZZ%+ZA=1-H 4,251 951,820 (162,294) 217102 25,021 (30,647) 7 1,755,856 (2,427,358) 393,829 21,020 420,849
Attributable to owners of the Company
ARAREARE
Equity
Share PRC Exchange Share  component of Non-
Share premium Fair value  Contributed statutory  fluctuation option convertible  Accumulated controlling
capital account Teserve surplus reserve reserve Teserve notes osses Total interests  Total equity
CEVEs ¥
B ROAEER ATERE  EHRH CEREREE EXRIRE BRERR EaBh  2AEAR @i kEREE  ER4E
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
T#T TR TR FhT TR T #T T#x T TR FhT AT
At 1 January 2021 R=%=-%-5-A 3,870 932,470* (138,506)* 277102 25,045* (14,468)* 7t 1,755,856* (2,412,609 428,832 26,064 454,886
Profit for the year FRET S = = S = = = = 6,055 6,055 145 6,200
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for ~ £AEM2 AN/ (Hlg) :
the year:
Changes in fair value of financial assets EATHEBEMZAREAEZ
at fair value through other SHEEZATEED
comprehensive income = = (10,795) o = o = = o (10,795) o (10,795)
Exchange differences on translation of ~ REBNEBREEZERER
foreign operations o o o o o 19,656 o o o 19,656 m 20,427
Total comprehensive (loss)fincome for M2 E () /h#L£E
the year - - (10,795) - - 19,656 - - 6,055 14,916 916 15,832
Transfer of fai value reserve upon REERATERREMRAREA
disposal of financial assets at BIEREERBELTARR
fair value through other
comprehensive income o = 8,559 - - - - - (8,559) - - -
Appropriation o statutory reserve HRzAREHE = = = = 24) = = - % - - -
At 31 Decerber 2021 RZF=-F+Zf=1-H 3870 940 (14074 277102 26,021 5,188 7 1766856 (2416089 443748 6970 470718

*

financial position.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of *
HK$389,572,000 (2021: HK$439,878,000) in the consolidated statement of

FPERSHEKERRAE

TECCFFR

ZEREBEEEERAVEMRARRAZKA L RS
389,572,000 7T (= Z =~ —4F : 439,878,000/ 7T) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AR BER

Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_E-_—_F+-_A=+—BHIFE

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

76

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue of shares at a
price in excess of their par value per share and is not distributable but may
be applied in paying up unissued shares of the Company to be issued to
the shareholders of the Company as fully paid bonus shares or in providing
for the premiums payable on repurchase of shares.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve represents cumulative gains and losses arising from
revaluation of equity instruments at FVTOCI that have been recognised in
other comprehensive income, net of amounts reclassified to profit or loss
when those equity instruments at FVTOCI are disposed of or are
determined to be impaired. Gains and losses arising from revaluation of
equity instruments at FVTOCI will not be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus arose in the previous years represented the net
effect of the capital reduction, the share premium cancellation and the
elimination of accumulated losses of the Company. Under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus account of the
Company is available for distribution. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus
if: — it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due; or — the realisable value of its assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium accounts. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as
at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company did not have any reserve
available for distribution to shareholders.

PRC statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the People's
Republic of China (“PRC"), the PRC subsidiaries are required to provide for
PRC statutory reserves, including enterprise expansion fund and general
reserve fund, by way of appropriations from its statutory net profit (based
on the PRC statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries) but
before dividend distributions.

All appropriations to the funds are made at the discretion of the board of
directors of PRC subsidiaries. The board of directors of the PRC
subsidiaries shall decide on the amounts to be appropriated based on its
profitability each year.

The enterprise expansion fund may be used to increase registered capital
subject to approval from the relevant PRC authorities. The general reserves
fund may be used to offset accumulated losses or increase the registered
capital subject to approval from the relevant PRC authorities.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share options reserve

The share options reserve represents the fair value of unexercised share
options granted by the Company recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy of share-based payments set out in Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SCEEEESRER

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Bank interest income
Finance costs
Dividend income

Dividend received from joint ventures
Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Impairment loss of loan and interest

receivables, net

Impairment loss of trade receivable,

net

Impairment loss of other receivables,

net

Share of results of joint ventures

Fair value gains on investment
properties

Written off of plant and equipment

Impairment loss on goodwill of
joint ventures

Loss on withdrawal of joint venture

Decrease/(increase) in loan and interest

receivables
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade receivables

Increase in deposits, prepayment and

other receivables
Increase in trade payables

(Decrease)/increase in other payables

and accruals
Increase in contract liabilities
(Decrease)/increase in amount due
from/to related companies

Cash generated from/(used in)
operations

Income tax refund/(paid), net

Interest element on lease liabilities

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities

RETHZHERE

Bx Bt A1 i T

LTS HEL 2/ E
RITH B WA

A& KR

B B YA
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ERREENE
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Year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZE-_—_F#+-_A=+—RHIFE

2021
—E - —4F
HK$'000
FE T
9,323 6,960
(144) (93)
83 692
- (13)
- (900)
658 601
3,550 3,776
(11,077) (21,465)
9 9
39,374 16,981
1,628 (900)
314 4,997
455 39
433 -
202 24
44,808 10,708
22,576 (25,250)
(3,134) (902)
(703) (28)
(43,916) (31,284)
833 254
(1,312) 5,464
22,536 1,106
(29,488) 1,564
12,200 (38,368)
98 (2,166)
(334) (678)
11,964 (41,212)
T ERSEHBEEFRAT 7
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FAREeRER

Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_E-_—_F+-_A=+—BHIFE

2022 2021
—E-= —ETE-—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B iF FE T FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received B4 F B 144 93
Capital injection to joint ventures MeEErEITE = (3,642)
Investment refund from joint ventures WE&E D ¥EMNIEEER
due to withdrawal 3,371 1,767
Dividend received from joint ventures ¢ & 4 1 % U EL & IR 5 - 1,489
Dividend received B Wi B - 13
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE BELEZE
equipment 15 (1,030) (889)
Proceed from disposal of financial HERATFEEBHEA
assets at fair value through other 2HKEAR SR
comprehensive income B EMSHRE 14,102 5,673
Net cash generated from investing KREEZHMERESFHE
activities 16,587 4,504
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METH2HERE
ACTIVITIES
Repayment on lease liability BEEHEBRE (3,696) (3,482)
New other borrowing raised FESCHMER 3,168 -
Advanced from a director —REBFIX - 6,926
Repayment to director BERTES (6,926) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from mEES(FTR), A&
financing activities IR & 55 (7,454) 3,444

2022 Annual Report
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2022 2021
—E=-= —F-—
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
K& FET FHET
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH SFAREREEEEY
EQUIVALENTS FOR THE YEAR T & 21,097 (33,264)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHzReRReEEY
beginning of the year 19,437 40,797
Effect of foreign exchange rate INEERSE 2 &
changes 19,535 11,904
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERZREERBEESEEY
AT END OF THE YEAR 60,069 19,437
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF HEeERREEBEYES
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: o
Cash and bank balances e RIR 174 8 24 60,069 19,437

FERSHEREARAT 79
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4R B AR T ot

31 December 2022
T _H+-_F=+—H

1.

80

GENERAL INFORMATION

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited (formerly known
as Asia Pacific Silk Road Investment Company Limited) (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). In the
opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company
and ultimate holding company of the Company is Zhong Ji
1 International Medical Group (Hong Kong) Limited,
incorporated in Hong Kong. As 31 December 2022, the
directors of the Company consider the ultimate controlling
shareholders of the Company is Mr. Yan Li, who is also the
chairman of the Company. The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the corporate information section to the annual
report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are as follows:

o Longevity science business

o Money lending & Financial Advisory
o Securities and other investments

o Property investment

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

During 11 November 2021 and 17 December 2021, the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange has issued a show case letter
on non-compliance with Rule 13.24 demonstrated by the
Company acquired Caijia P2P loans Business revenue has
significantly declined from HK$490.7 million of operating
year 2015 to minimal HK$0.02 million in Year 2018 (the
“Caijia P2P Business"”), thereby has failed to maintain a
sufficient level of operations in compliance to Rule 13.24
therefore warrant a suspend in trading of the Company
shares herein (the “suspend trading decision”). Thereafter
on 15 March 2022 hearing with the Listing Committee has
upheld this Suspend Decision pursuant to rule 6.01(3) of
the Listing Rule.

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

Pursuant to same rule on subsequent 5 July 2022 appeal
hearing by Listing Review Committee with a final outcome
received and announced on 25 July 2022, considering all
the announced outlined facts and reasons, this suspend
trading decision was overwhelmingly overthrown with a
resume of trading decision therein (the “resume trading
decision”).

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the Group's annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2022 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual
HKFRS 3 Framework
Amendment to Covid-19-Related Rent
HKFRS 16 Concessions beyond 30 June
2021

Amendments to Property, Plant and Equipment

HKAS 16 — Proceeds before Intended
Use
Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Cost of
HKAS 37 Fulfilling a Contract
Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2018-2020

The application of amendment to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years
and/or the disclosures set out in these financial statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBWERME

31 December 2022

T _H+-_F=+—H

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

HKFRS 17 (including
the October 2020
and February 2022
Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Insurance Contracts’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale and

HKFRS 16 Leaseback®
Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current and

related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)"

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Amendments to Definition of Accounting

HKAS 8 Estimates’
Amendments to Deferred Tax related to Assets
HKAS 12 and Liabilities arising from a

Single Transaction’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

a Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all the new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in
the foreseeable future.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The directors of the Company have, at the time of
approving the consolidated financial statements, a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income, that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iRA M mRM T

31 December 2022
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.

$ 84

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in
use in HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs are to be used to
measure fair in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation technique
equal the transaction price.

value
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement

date;
o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are

observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’'s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iRE IS MR M T

31 December 2022
—E-__F+=-RA=+—H
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #ZEeUBBRRGREERTES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT B (®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 ERGFHEBEAE)
Investments in a joint ventures REELEZRE

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture.
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in joint ventures are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity
method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of joint ventures is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the joint
venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's investments in the joint ventures, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of joint ventures is included as
part of the Group’s investments in joint ventures.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared
with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with
the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(ili)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group;
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #ZEeUBBRRGREERTES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT B (®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 ERGFHEBEAE)
Related parties (Continued) BHs (&)
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following b) BEEZAEFETIEMGEHEZ
conditions applies: (Continued) EEE: (&)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled (vii ZEEBH@IEBEREZLATLT
by a person identified in (a); 2 I 5k 2k R 42 5l

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (Vi @INEARATZALTHZE
influence over the entity or is a member of ﬁ*ﬁiﬁ@@ﬁ FZA
the key management personnel of the iﬁ’jEif‘iﬁJ‘R ZEBZ
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and T)IE BEs—%

ﬁia\

(vii) the entity, or any member of a group of (viii) ZERIEMBERZEM
which it is a part, provides key KERA BASEHAE
management personnel services to the BB ARRMEIEZEERA
Group or to the parent of the Group. R -

Plant and equipment BERZE

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less B R &R AR RETITERE
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. MBEBEAR BERKEIER
The cost of an item of plant and equipment CHRABREEBAGBUALBEES
comprises its purchase price and any directly REERERMEIERERAE 2F
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working A EZE BN -

condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of plant and BMERZEHERAEERMES
equipment have been put into operation, such as MEERRESZERAT - L%E’\Fiﬁﬁ
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the MEEEKRAR - W& ERIEE
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is AlEEEARARE I gk EZéf?
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria Zﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁ’éﬁﬂtﬁiﬁﬁﬁ (o
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is BELRZBZEELDBAIERES -
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a AIAEEGRZEHX R RBE L
replacement. Where significant parts of plant and BE UREFHELAFEAFHRE

equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, ITHREFE -
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets

with specific useful lives and depreciates them

accordingly.
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3.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Leasehold Over the shorter of period of the
improvements lease terms and 20%

Medical machinery 20%

Furniture, fittings 20% to 33%
and equipment

Motor vehicle 25%

Where parts of an item of plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives
and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #ZEeUBBRRGREERTES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT B (®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 ERGFHEBEAE)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of
the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the statement
of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
an investment property are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from
business combinations, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee

(@) Short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets
The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to leases of buildings that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on
a straight-line basis or another systematic basis
over the lease term.

(b) Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease
incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and
° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the

Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on
which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued)
Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life
and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a
separate line item on the consolidated statement
of financial position.

(c) Refundable rental deposits
Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS
9”) and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

(d) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the
Group recognises and measures the lease
liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.

¢ 96

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement
date;

amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities
are adjusted by interest accretion and lease
payments.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(d)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group lease liabilities (and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the related
right-of-use assets) whenever:

remeasures

o the lease term has changed or there is a
change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes
in market rental rates following a market
rent review/expected payment under a
guaranteed residual value, in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a
separate line item on the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in
which the Group applied the practical expedient,
the Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or
more underlying assets; and
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
(e) Lease modifications (Continued)

o the consideration for the leases increases
by an amount commensurate with the
stand-alone price for the increase in scope
and any appropriate adjustments to that
stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted
for as a separate lease, the Group remeasures
the lease liability based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of
lease liabilities by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.
When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(f)

Changes in the basis for determining the
future lease payments as a result of interest
rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the
future lease payments as a result of interest
rate benchmark reform, the Group applies the
practical expedient to remeasure the lease
liabilities by discounting the revised lease
payments using the unchanged discount rate and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the related
right-of-use assets. A lease modification is
required by interest rate benchmark reform if,
and only if, both of these conditions are met:

o the modification is necessary as a direct
consequence of interest rate benchmark
reform; and

o the new basis for determining the lease
payments is economically equivalent to the
previous basis (i.e. the basis immediately
preceding the modification).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(g) Covid-19-related rent concessions
In relation to rent concessions that occurred as
a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic,
the Group has elected to apply the practical
expedient not to assess whether the change is
a lease modification if all of the following
conditions are met:

° The change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

° any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or before
30 June 2021; and

° there is no substantive change to other
terms and conditions of the lease.

A lease applying the practical expedient
accounts for changes in lease payments
resulting from rent concessions the same way it
would account for the changes applying HKFRS
16 if the changes are not a lease modification.
Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are
accounted for as variable lease payments. The
related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the
amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognized in the
profit or loss in the period in which the event
occurs.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iRE IS MR M T

31 December 2022
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #ZEUEHMRGFREERTIE=S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT B (®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 ERGFHEBEAE)
Financial instruments THTA
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised TREEREREBEEDREEERS

when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"))
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income and
interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.

¢ 102

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(@)  Financial assets
(i)  Classification and subsequent

measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is to
collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI"):

the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is
achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(a)  Financial assets (Continued)

(i)  Classification and subsequent

measurement of financial assets
(Continued)
All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the
date of initial application of HKFRS 9/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in
a business combination to which HKFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term;
or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a

portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging
instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that are
required to be measured at the amortised
cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income
Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial
assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit
impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from
the next reporting period. If the credit risk
on the credit impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer
credit impaired.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(a)  Financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Equity instruments designated as at
FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at
FVTOCI are subsequently measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
the fair value reserve for financial assets at
FVTOCI; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss
will not be reclassified to profit or loss on
disposal of the equity investments, and will
be transferred to accumulated losses.

Dividends from these investments in
equity instruments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Group's right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the other income
line item in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment
assessment under expected credit loss
(“ECL") model on financial assets at
amortised cost which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL
for trade receivables. The ECL on these
assets are assessed individually for debtors
with significant balance or collectively
using a provision matrix with similar credit
risk characteristics based primarily on the
debtors’ aging profiles.

For all other instruments, the Group
measures the loss allowance equal to 12m
ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognizes
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based
on significant increases in the likelihood or
risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(@) Financial assets (Continued)
(iv) Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor's
ability to meet its debt obligations;
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Impairment of financial assets

(Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

(Continued)

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results

of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the

economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that result
in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying
significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(a)  Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the
Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

° significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

o a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Impairment of financial assets

(Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

(Continued)

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

o it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating that
the counterparty is
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under
liguidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over
two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

in severe financial
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(a)  Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of
the probability of default, loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a
default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default
and loss given default is based on
historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective
risks of default occurring as the weights.
The Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL on trade receivables using
a provision matrix taking into consideration
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables
are considered on a collective basis taking
into consideration past due information and
relevant credit information such as
forward-looking macroeconomic
information.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B MR wARME

31 December 2022
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(a)  Financial assets (Continued)
(iv) Impairment of financial assets

(Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)
For collective assessment, the Group takes
into consideration the following
characteristics when formulating the

grouping:
° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors;
and

° External credit ratings where
available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit
impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade
receivables, where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(a)  Financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the assets expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset’'s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in
equity instrument which the Group has
elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the fair value
reserve for financial assets at FVTOCI is
not reclassified to profit or loss, but is
transferred to accumulated losses.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(b)  Financial liabilities and equity

(i)

(iii)

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified
either as financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets
of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group's financial liabilities including
trade payables, other payables, borrowing,
lease liabilities and amounts due to related
companies are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
(b)  Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

(v)

Changes in the basis for determining

the contractual cash flows as a result
of interest rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining
the contractual cash flows of a financial
asset or financial liability to which the
amortised cost measurement applies as a
result of interest rate benchmark reform,
the Group applies the practical expedient
to account for these changes by updating
the effective interest rate, such change in
effective interest rate normally has no
significant effect on the carrying amount of
the relevant financial asset or financial
liability.

A change in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows is required by
interest rate benchmark reform if and only
if, both these conditions are met:

° the change is necessary as a direct
consequence of interest rate
benchmark reform; and

o the new basis for determining the
contractual cash.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #ZEeUBBRRGREERTES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT B (®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 ERGFHEBEAE)

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax
because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease liabilities,
the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets
or the lease liabilities.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #ZEeUBBRRGREERTES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT B (®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 ERGFHEBEAE)
Income tax (Continued) A8 % (&)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes requirements to the
leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on
right-of-use assets over the lease payments for the
principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net
deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs;

° the Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group's unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)
A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a
net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance
obligations (including allocation of
transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one
performance obligations, the Group allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or
service underlying each performance obligation is
determined at contract inception. It represents the
price at which the Group would sell a promised good
or service separately to a customer. If a stand-alone
selling price is not directly observable, the Group
estimates it using appropriate techniques such that
the transaction price ultimately allocated to any
performance obligation reflects the amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the promised
goods or services to the customer.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition on performance
obligations for contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue from the following
major sources:

Revenue from rendering of financial and investment
consulting services are recognised at the point in time
when the related financial and investment consulting
services are delivered to the customers.

Revenue from provision of diagnostic and medical test
services are recognised at the point in time when the
diagnostic and medical test services are rendered to
the customers.

Revenue from sales of health and medical products is
recognised at a point in time when the control of the
health and medical products have been transferred to
the customer.

Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without taking
into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group's estimate of equity
instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on assessment of
all relevant non market vesting conditions. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share options
reserve.
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to employees (Continued)
When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to service providers
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair
value of the goods or services received, except where
that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which
case they are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted, measured at the date the entity
obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the
service. The fair values of the goods or services
received are recognised as expenses (unless the
goods or services qualify for recognition as assets).

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a first-in, first-out/weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs
directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental
costs which the Group must incur to make the sale.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
asset, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #ZEeUBBRRGREERTES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT B (®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 ERGFHEBEAE)

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Group recognizes as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct
or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit
or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they become receivable.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit
schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits
the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) a after deducting any amount already paid.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that\ period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Ownership of investment properties

The Group's management needs to assess whether the
Group has the ownership of the investment property in
Saipan was valid. The judgements the Group used in
determining if it has ownership over the investment
property in Saipan detailed in Note 16.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the directors of
the Company have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the Group's
investment properties in the PRC are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time. As a result, the management of the Group has
determined that the presumption that investment properties
measured using the fair values model are recovered
through sale is rebutted and the Group estimated the
deferred tax on the basis of recovering through use.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Provision for ECLs on loan and other receivables

The allowance for ECLs on the loan and other receivables
is estimated based on assumption about the risk of default
and credit risk of respective receivables. The loss allowance
amount is measured at difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows with the consideration of expected future credit
loss of the respective receivables. Such assessment
involves high degree of estimation and uncertainty. When
the actual future cash flows are less or more than
expected, a material ECLs or material reversal of ECLs may
arise, accordingly.

The following significant judgements are required in
applying the accounting requirements for measuring the
ECL:

Significant increase of credit risk

As explained in Note 3, ECL are measured as an allowance
equal to 12-m ECL or lifetime ECL for respective
receivables. An asset will use lifetime ECL when its credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.
HKFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a significant
increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk
of an asset has significantly increased, the Group takes into
account quantitative and qualitative reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information including available
customers’ historical data and existing and forecast market
conditions.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Provision for ECLs on loan and other receivables
(Continued)

Model and assumptions used

ECLs on the loan and other receivables which are not
assessed to be credit impaired are estimated using a
calculation model using observable data as at the end of
the reporting period, including the difference between (i) the
effective interest rates of interest charged by the Group for
similar categories of the loans and other receivables; and (ii)
the risk-free rate, and adjusted by forward looking
information, for example, GDP growth, etc. Judgements is
applied in identifying the most appropriate ECL model as
well as for determining the assumption used in the model,
including those relate to key drivers of credit risk.

The Group's allowance for ECLs on loan receivables may
also take into account the subsequent settlement, collateral
valuation and the management's judgement on the
effectiveness and marketability of the collateral properties
and customers’ capability of payment at the estimated
valuation and the actual valuation may differ from the
estimation.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group's loan and
other receivables are disclosed in notes 21, 23 and 40.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuers.
The determination of the fair
assumptions of market conditions which are set out in note
16.

value involves certain

In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the
Company have exercised their judgement and are satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions. Whilst the Group considers valuations of
the Group’'s investment properties are the best estimates,
the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic has resulted in greater
market volatility depending on how the Covid-19 pandemic
may progress and evolve, which have led to higher degree
of uncertainties in respect of the valuations in the current
year. Changes to these assumptions, including the potential
risk of any market violation, policy, geopolitical and social
changes or other unexpected incidents as a result of
change in macroeconomic environment or other unexpected
incidents would result in changes in the fair values of the
Group’s investment properties and the corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of the
Group’s investment properties is approximately
HK$24,411,000 (2021: HK$26,001,000).
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5.
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REVENUE 5. Wz
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) WmEFoEHR
2022 2021
- —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHE T F& T
Revenue from contracts with customers & & Bf ¥ 3R & % A
within the scope of HKFRS 15 FI5FEERZ
REEFEHZ
I 25
Sales of health and medical products HERENMEE
= m 17,550 17,692
Provision of diagnostic and medical test RIEEZEREE
services A AR 7 26,370 4,754
Rendering of financial and investment R RIEE
consulting services B8 8 AR 75 = 11,442
43,920 33,888
Timing of revenue recognition within EARAMEREER
the scope of HKFRS 15 FI5REERZ
W 55 7R SR B
Point in time basis P {0 B ) B4 43,920 33,888
Revenue from other sources H fth 2R W =
Loan interest income ERF BB A 45,748 27,218
Dividend income & 20 A - 13
45,748 27,231
Total revenue recognised during FARAZHA KR
the year 89,668 61,119
(ii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining (ii) ?PHEFEFEANRKBIZEN
performance obligation for contracts with REER
customers

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its contracts for sales
of health and medical products, provision of diagnostic
and medical test services and rendering of financial
and investment consulting services such that the
above information does not include information about
revenue that the Group will be entitled to when it
satisfies the remaining performance obligations under
the aforesaid contracts that had an original expected
duration of one year or less.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision-makers (“CODM"), review the Group's
internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. Information reported to the chief
operating decision makers, for the purpose of resources
allocation and performance assessment, focuses on the
types of goods or services delivered or provided.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
commenced the business of provision of diagnostic
consultation, health and medical testing and checking as
well as distribution of healthcare supplements, and it is
considered as a new operating and reportable segment by
the CODM.

The Group's reportable and operating segments are as
follows:

(a) Longevity science business: provision of diagnostic
consultation, health and medical testing and checking
as well as distribution of cancer prevention &
immunity healthcare supplements;

(b)  Money lending and financial advisory business:
provision of loan financing for earning interest income
and provision of financial advisory and management
services rendering various loans fees;

(c)  Securities and other investments: holding of equity
investments, investment in short to long-term financial
assets for dividend income; and

(d)  Property investment: investment in properties for rental
income and/or for potential capital appreciation.

No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at
the above reportable segments of the Group.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022
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6.

§ 132

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/
(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s loss before tax
except that bank interest income, loss on disposal of plant
and equipment, share of results of joint ventures, finance
costs as well as head office and corporate income and
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude tax recoverable and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax
liabilities and other unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

e BER (4

puly

)

REHBBERD R ZRREFERR
EEENTHERASESKEN X
B pHRBDHERAIZHRH B R (E
18) R0 - BIAKARR B ATRR(EE)
B KAEBRBAEN (BR)ZFE
HERAEEBVAIERZFAETZER
— B MHENEREMBRBTANREK
A HEBELRBEEBER BHEAELE
ZHEB - MBERANAR @R ER R AR
AR -

B B AT U 3 A TR A B B
MARMEBENDEEBEEE
ETBRRZEFEE -

LAt 51%
E

BRI ER
ﬁﬂz DEE

EE‘ ENHIE  BERBARBENAREAMR
RaRERMARABIREEEEE

i% BoOMBEETEREZERE -

Money lending

Longevity and financial Securities
science advisory and other Property
Year ended 31 December 2022 business business investments investment Total
RE BER EER
BE-B--F+-A=+-HLEE NELE SRBAEE Hi R & NERE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET TET TEx
Segment revenue ol 16
Revenue from external RENREFPZW
customers 43,920 45,748 = = 89,668
Segment results ﬁ"‘[‘¥*§ 8,957 30,913 (17) (314) 39,539
Reconciliation: Hik
Bank interest income fﬁﬁﬂ EHA 144
Finance costs ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ (417)
Share of loss of joint ventures fE{h A& %ﬁ%@ﬁﬁ (202)
Corporate and other unallocated 22 & & £k D
expenses, net %58 (48,387)
Profit before tax BR Bt AT R 9,323
Other segment information: H2HEH :
Fair value losses on investment REMEZ DT E
properties B = - - 314 314
Depreciation of right-of-use FTREEENE
assets 3,339 = = = 3,339
Depreciation of plant and BERSERNE
equipment 1,092 = = = 1,092
Impairment losses under BHEEHBER \Z
expected credit loss model, ik EE&TE MEr &
net of reversal (1,056) 29,362 = = 28,306
Capital expenditure* N 1,030 - - - 1,030

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
2022 Annual Report



OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

RasMER @

Money
lending and
Longevity financial Securities
science advisory and other Property
Year ended 31 December 2021 business business  investments investment Unallocated Total
k5 BER FHR
BE_T-_—F+-_A=+-—HIEE BELERE SREAEHR Hink & MERE ROE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTET TET FTET FTET TET
Segment revenue R
Revenue from external REIARE 2 K&
customers 22,446 38,660 13 - i 61,119
Segment results DHEE 3,600 26,872 (5) (4,997) = 25,370
Reconciliation: B
Bank interest income HATF B A 92
Finance costs B TS B AN (692)
Share of loss of joint EHEECERE
ventures 900
Corporate and other AR R EAM KD B
unallocated expenses, M FE
net (18,710)
Profit before tax R %t AR A 6,960
Other segment HitnpHEH:
information:
Fair value losses on BREMEZATEER
investment properties - - = 4,997 - 4,997
Depreciation of right-of-use 1 BEEEHRE
assets 2,948 828 - - - 3,776
Depreciation of plant and ~ HER&FE T E
equipment 120 412 - - 69 601
Impairment losses under ~ BHIEEBBEERTZ
expected credit loss RMEBE  MEED
model, net of reversal = (4,475) - - = (4,475)
Capital expenditure* ERER* 866 5 = 18 - 889
@ Capital expenditure consists of additions to plant and equipment and 2 BARZBEANEBRERRBEARREDE

investment properties including assets from the acquisition of assets
and liabilities or subsidiaries.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

6. HEpHER B

Money
lending and
Longevity financial Securities
science advisory and other Property
31 December 2022 business business investments investment Total
RE BER BHER
—E-—f+=-HA=+-—H NEBXYE SRMEAEHR HiRE MERE st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER THER FTET FET THER
Segment assets PHEE 40,992 371,080 11,125 24,411 447,608
Reconciliation: # -
Corporate and other unallocated  AFA R HMAD EE E
assets 37,231
Total assets EERE 484,839
Segment liabilities AEHEE 24,154 7,485 = = 31,639
Reconciliation: HAE -
Tax payable ERHIE 15,531
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE -
Corporate and other unallocated AR K EMKRDEEE
liabilities 16,183
Total liabilities aEBRE 63,353
Money
lending and
Longevity financing Securities
science advisory and other Property
31 December 2021 business business investments investment Total
RE EBEER &5 Rk
—E-—#+=-A=+-—H MEBXEE SREANED Hih k& MERE ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FET
Segment assets PHEE 35,559 324,999 56,888 26,001 443,447
Reconciliation: R
Corporate and other unallocated A& & Hth k5 &
assets BE 74,048
Total assets AELEAE 517,495
Segment liabilities PHEE 3,920 18,303 = = 22,223
Reconciliation: E 3
Tax payable EA#IE 5,359
Deferred tax liabilities REHREEE 766
Corporate and other unallocated RAIREM KRS EE AR
liabilities 18,429
Total liabilities BEBE 46,777
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(Continued)

Geographical information

RasMER @

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets

REMREFEEZW = kRBEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-= —_ T . Sl —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET FET T T
Hong Kong BB 14,657 15,503 2,784 8,935
Mainland China AR A 75,011 45,616 162,819 162,138
The Island of Saipan ENES = = 11,670 12,750
89,668 61,119 177,273 183,823
The revenue information is based on the location of WRERURPEABKE - IERSHE
customers. The non-current assets are based on the EREEMEMABEKERTRIERTE ARK

locations of the assets and exclude equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

Information about major customers

A summary of revenue earned from each of the individual
customer with its corresponding segment, which
contributed over 10% of the Group's revenue for the year is
set out below:

AP EEBEMEEREARZIEAR

& o

FREIXEEFZEH

KEHAEBEFAWRI0%A EZ2%F 7D B
EREPZEEHREZEHIIMT :

2022 2021
—E-C-& —E_—&
Money Money
lending and lending and
financial financial Securities
advisory advisory and other
business Total business investments Total
EER HER EAR
SRERE Fob SRFAE HitiR & o
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER FTET FTET THET
Customer A EEH 8,570 8,570 8,639 = 8,539
Customer B BEZ 6,788 6,788 5,315 - 5,315
Customer C EFR = = 3,978 14,672 18,650
15,358 15,358 17,832 14,672 32,504
hERSHEEEARAT 135 @
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OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 7. HWARWKZEFRE
2022 2021
—E=-= T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FH T
Bank interest income ;RITH B U A 144 93
Exchange (loss) and gain, net MW (B 18) R &= % 58 (367) 7
Government grants* B # Bh 532 -
Dividends received from joint ventures BElEEPERE
(note 18) (B 7#18) = 900
Others Hifb - 863
309 1,863
& The government grants include subsidies received under the * BRI B EREEBERNTREBRNZ MR

Employee Support Scheme of the Government of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. There were no unfulfilled conditions
or contingencies relating to the subsidies.

MEIFERBM A T BREBZSHUZ

REKGHEIEIAEE -

FINANCE COSTS 8. WEMAK
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T8 FET
Interest on other borrowings HEiEEFE 83 14
Interest on lease liabilities (note 17(c)) MEAGEFB (K Z17() 334 678
417 692

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
2022 Annual Report



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBWMERME

31 December 2022
—E-__F+=-RA=+—H

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9. KRFEAIEFR
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REB 2 BEBATEFRIOER(ER) AT
(crediting): BIE&ZE R
2022 2021
—=2-= —E_—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTH T FAE T
Depreciation of plant and equipment M EREETE 658 601
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 3,550 3,776
Impairment loss of goodwill in EECEFBZREER
joint ventures 433 -
Loss on withdrawal of joint ventures WEEEREESE 202 =
Reversal of loan and interest B E R EFE
receivables gl (11,077) (21,465)
Impairment of trade receivables JE U BR OB B 9 9
Impairment loss of other receivables H to i 4R 3k TH R B &5 18 39,374 16,981
Impairment losses under expected credit FEHEEBEELN T2
loss model, net of reversal BAEEE - MR 28,306 (4,475)
Auditor's remuneration e & 1,400 1,513
Employee benefit expenses (excluding EERAAXZ
directors’ and chief executive's (TEREESERE&ER
remuneration) (note 17) THAE ZH M)
(H1aE11)
— Wages and salaries —IE8kE® 9,817 15,693
— Pension scheme contribution — RIKE 5T 8 #3K 396 2,060
10,213 17,753
TERSNSREEMERAT 137 ¢
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10.

¢ 138

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FTEHEAX
2022 2021
—=E=-= —ET-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THT F& T
Current tax: B HA
Hong Kong BB
Charge for the year FREZH - 920
Overprovision in prior years BAEFEBBEES = =
= 920
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") PRI EMEH
([E#mEH))
Charge for the year FRZ M 8,685 66
Underprovision in prior years BEFEREIE = 247
8,685 SIS
Deferred tax iR A T 18 (63) (473)
Total tax charge for the year FRHRIE XL B 8,622 760

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime in Hong Kong,
the first HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits of the
qualifying corporation in the Group are taxed at 8.25%, and
assessable profits above HK$2 million are taxed at 16.5%.
The assessable profits of corporations in Hong Kong not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The two-tiered profits tax rates regime is applicable to the
Group for both years.

Under the Law of the EIT and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%
for both years.

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to
the profit/(loss) before taxation per consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

follows:

Fit 18 B B8 ()

FAMBHRAXATEGABREREMERE
WaEROBRRAER,(BE) YR A8

2022 2021
—ZE=-= — T —fF
HK$000 HK$'000
THER FAT
Profit before tax BREREA,(EBE) 9,323 6,960
Tax at the statutory tax rate BRAEMEGFE 2MIE 20,203 546
Expenses not deductible for tax AR X 31,838 4,819
Income not subject for tax BAERB A (32,749) (2,380)
Tax losses utilised from previous periods 8 FB 18 7 Hi 5 4 78 /&5 48 (15,567) (5,305)
Tax losses not recognised REER T IEE B 4,897 3,041
Under/(over)-provision in previous year BAFEREERR (BREEE) - 247
Others - (208)
Income tax expense for the year FRFTE R 8,622 760
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBWERME

31 December 2022
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 1.
REMUNERATION

EERRETHRAEHMH

BIEEM LT RAREBATHIIRE
ERNEERBSTHRALFHMT

Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for the vyear,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

¢ 140

Salaries, Pension
allowances and scheme Total
Fees benefits in kind contribution remuneration
e 28 Bk a8
He RENEF # FMas
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER TR THR THER
2022: —E-CE:
Executive directors: WITES:
Mr. YAN Li SRt - 600 18 618
Ms. CAO Xie Qiong BEEUL - 600 18 618
Mr. LI Jiuhua (resigned on FNERE(RZT=ZF
8 April 2022) mANBET) - 749 5 754
Mr. LI Xiaoshuang TNERE - 600 18 618
Mr. YAN Yi Fan (appointed on B-NEE(RZT=ZF
8 April 2022) MANBEZE) 875 - - 875
Non-executive directors: EHTES:
Ms. CHOI Ngai Wah (resigned on BEET L (RZFT==4F
3 August 2022) NA=ZREA) "M - - 1M
Dr. HE Yiwu AFREL - - - -
Mr. LYN Changsheng (appointed on ERBEE(RZF=ZF
1 August 2022) NA—BEZA) - - - -
1,016 2,549 59 3,624
Independent non-executive directors: BUERTES:
Mr. LEE See Barry (appointed on TREE(RW-F=-=F
31 March 2022) =“R=+-HEZ@E) 181 = = 181
Mr. WANG Ning (appointed on TEEE(R-Z--F
8 April 2022) mANBEEL) 175 - - 175
Prof. HUANG Ci Bo (appointed on BERHR (KRB
8 April 2022) MANBEZ) 175 - - 175
Mr. TAM Ho Leung Simon (resigned on BEREERZT=ZF
11 April 2022) MA+—HET) 80 - - 80
Ms. WANG Weixia (resigned on TREZL(RZZT==%F
7 April 2022) mA+HRET) 65 - - 65
Mr. Chai Nan (resigned on SREE(RZZZZFD
7 April 2022) AtABT) 65 - - 65
i - - 7
Total Bt 1,757 2,549 59 4,365
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 1. EERRSTHRAEHFM®)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
Salaries, Pension
allowances and scheme Total
Fees benefits in kind contribution remuneration
¥4 28 RIS E
we RENEH 3 S
HK$'00 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THER FHER THER
2021: —BC--f:
Executive directors: WTESE:
Mr. YAN Li SR - 600 21 621
Ms. CAQ Xie Qiong ERxut = 600 19 619
Mr. YEUNG Siu Keung BLREE = 61 2 63
Mr. LI Jiuhua (resigned on FREXE(NZZZ—F
10 January 2021 and reappointed on —ATBEHERR
8 December 2021) “Z-—%+ZR
NBESHZL) = 82 = 82
Mr. WANG Hongxin (appointed on TREREN=E_—F
1 May 2021 and resigned on TA-REZAERR
8 December 2021) “Z-—%+ZR
NBEE) = 800 12 812
Mr. LI Xiaoshuang (appointed on FNERE(R-T-_—F
31 August 2021) NA=Z+—-REZFT) - 200 6 206
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Ms. CHOI Ngai Wah mEELL 240 = L 240
Ms. YU Yang (resigned on #HEZL(RZF=—%
1 May 2021) TA-BEE) - = - -
Dr. HE Yiwu (appointed on AR EL(R=F=—F
13 August 2021) NAT=BEZH) - - - -
240 2,343 60 2,643
Independent non-executive directors: BUFRTES:
Mr. TO Langa Samuelson HBEMEE(R-T=—&
(resigned on 1 May 2021) AA-BEE) 40 = = 40
Mr. CHAN Wai Dune BémrE(R=E=—F
(resigned on 16 March 2021) =R+ AER) 50 = = 50
Mr. MAK Ping Leung ERREER=F=—%
(resigned on 1 May 2021) AA-BEE) 80 = = 80
Ms. Ho Man Wai (appointed as WXEBLT(R=T=—F
16 March 2021 and resigned on ZRATABEZARR
1 May 2021) —Z--f1A-B
Bt fE) 31 = = 31
Ms. WANG Weixia (appointed on TRELT(R=B=—%
16 March 2021) ZA+ A REZME) 191 = = 191
Mr. TAM Ho Leung Simon (appointed on BERAE(RZT=—F
1 May 2021) HR-AREA) 160 = = 160
Mr. Chai Nan (appointed on EErE(R=F=—-%
1 May 2021) ER—AREE) 160 = = 160
712 = = 712
Total Fabs 952 2,343 60 3,355
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31 December 2022
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1.

12.

¢ 142

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.
The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services as directors of the Company
or its subsidiaries. The independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for their services as
directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year (2021: Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
two directors (2021: two directors), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 11 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2021:
three) highest paid employees who are neither a director
nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

1.

12.

EERESITRAEHM®

AT ESTHESEERNBEEIREEAR
RAEIRASEEHAE SRS - L5I3E
HOTESHE I BN BEFETARANK
HMBAREEMEREHORE - L7BT
FRTETHEEERRNBRFETARA
EEmREENRE -

FRAYBIVEEIHZSTHRASBER U
BMEXRERETAFMH 2 LH(ZF=
—F |\

IEREFHEES

FRALEESFEETEEMAESR(=F
—HE MEBEER)(EFMAFRBINLX
BiEE1) e BT =R (ZF=—F:=8)A1 ¥k
ARAEEXRRTRABZERHEE
FAZHEMFRBOT :

2022 2021

—E=-= —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

T T FH& T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e  EMEEWET 4,160 2,719
Pension scheme contributions g NC A K 62 45
4,222 2,764

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBWMERME

31 December 2022
T _H+-_R=+—H

12. ARBEFEEH

FHNFUTHREZFESNIRHITR

paid employees whose remuneration fell within the AEBZEREBHREEAHDOT
following bands is as follows:
Number of employees
A"
2022 2021
—EsE=-= T4
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001/ 7T £1,000,000/% 7T 3 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/% 7T £1,500,000/% 7T - 1
3 3

There were no non-directors and non-chief executive
highest paid employees being granted share option during
the year (2021: Nil).

13. DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2022,
nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the
reporting period (2021: Nil).

14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per
share are based on:

FABBFRESN RS TRABZE
SHEERLEBRE(CTE-_—F &)

13. B2

BE - ZTZ-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFERW
I A% [ AR &) 3 AR IR SRR S 2 2 R 1
BB BREHRARNEZZRMSEM
RE(ZE=—F:/|&)-

14. SR(EB) BF

BREARER(BER),/ BFNIERT

EHE:

2022 2021

—E=-= —E-_—4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FE T

(Loss)/Profit: (B58) R

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to ARIESRERREE
owners of the Company, used in the (BR)/BFZEBR
basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per ARARIBEBEAZFRN(E

share calculations 18) /& F (904) 6,055

TERSNERMEMRAT 143 ¢
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31 December 2022
T _H+-_F=+—H

14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 14. ER(EB) B @E)
Number of shares
gk 4=
2022 2021
—=Eg2-= —ET-—fF
Shares: B
Weighted average number of FREETEARK
ordinary shares in issue during the year hnkE 15 & 4,257,113,000  3,870,102,000
Mandatorily convertible notes R BT E R 10,912,000,000 10,912,000,000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R st E & IR E A & #58
in issue during the year used in the basic &% (E1#E)Z2F A
and diluted earnings/(loss) per share BETTBRMETHH
calculation 15,169,113,000 14,782,102,000
The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue METEIINERARBELZLMERT &
have been adjusted for the number of ordinary shares that HEZNEL T (BEE T TR LT
will be issued upon the conversion of the mandatorily BBREE) BETEBEROMETSHEE
convertible notes as the convertible notes were mandatorily KA - ARIIRRE R &Gl 8 a I
convertible into ordinary shares. Hence the ordinary shares B EEAANFT LA HEERMATR
that will be issued upon conversion are included in the AEARBEAFNNGTER -
calculation of basic and dilute earnings per share from the
date the contract is entered into.
The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year FEHE—E_—_F+ A=+ —HLHF
ended 31 December 2022 does not assume the exercise of E28REBEBEEVYEREARL G ERZE
the Company's share options because the exercise price of ETE AAZEERENTEESNS
those share options was higher than the average market T FHEHBRHTE -
price for shares for 2022.
The computation of diluted loss per share for the year FEHE_ TS F+A=+—HLHF
ended 31 December 2021 does not assume the impact of FZ#HXT%E%EHTE WM A ARITE 2 B
the exercise of share options outstanding since their BEETE2FZE REEBRITHEE
assumed exercise would result in a decrease in loss per BEREERD -
share.
‘) 144 Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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15.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. BMERRE

Leasehold
31 December 2022 improvements
HENE
—E-—f+-A=t-H £
HK$'000
TER
At 31 December 2021 and RZZZ—F
at 1 January 2022: +ZA=+-Bk
—T-Zf§—-R—H:
Cost [N
Accumulated depreciation 2t e
Net carrying amount FEHFE
At 1 January 2022, net of RZTZZ§—A—1"
accumulated depreciation BRI E
Additions NE
Depreciation provided during FNFRIME
the year
Written off B
Exchange realignment 5 A=
At 31 December 2022, net RZTZZF
of accumulated depreciation +=ZA=+-H8"
BNKREHNTE
At 31 December 2022: RZZEZZF
+ZA=+-8:
Cost A
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE
Net carrying amount BEHFE

Furniture,

Medical fittings and
machinery equipment
B £E

BREMN PET
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER

Motor
Vehicles Total
AE st
HK$°000 HK$°000
TER TER

hERENERAARAT
o T
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15.
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PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

15. MERRE @)

Furniture,
Leasehold Medical fittings and
31 December 2021 improvements machinery equipment  Motor Vehicles Total
HEME Rtk RE
—E-—%+ZR=1+—H K& BESM ST AE Fo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTET FTET THT THET
At 31 December 2020 and RZZZTF
at 1 January 2021: +ZA=+-HBk
“E--5-A-R:
Cost A 248 = 2,007 1,105 3,360
Accumulated depreciation 25t e (137) - (1,678) (175) (1,990
Net carrying amount BREFE M1 = 329 930 1,370
At 1 January 2021, net of RZZZ—5—-fA—-R"
accumulated depreciation EMGRIFNE 1M = 329 930 1,370
Additions HNE = 815 74 = 889
Depreciation provided during FRFHRTE
the year (77) (116) (164) (244) (601)
Written off B (35) - (4) = (39)
Exchange realignment AR 1 = 5 27 33
At 31 December 2021, net RZZBZ—F
of accumulated depreciation +=-A=+—-8"
BB R E = 699 240 713 1,652
At 31 December 2021 R-B-—%
+=-A=+-8:
Cost A - 815 1,769 1142 3,726
Accumulated depreciation it e = (116) (1,529) (429) (2,074)
Net carrying amount BRE 38 = 699 240 713 1,652

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Carrying amount at 1 January ®n—A

Net gain from fair value adjustments N EHEBUK

Exchange realignment e X 38 &

Carrying amount at 31 December R+=A=+—
RE S

Note: As at 31 December 2022, the Group's investment properties consist
of two commercial properties, and one residential property in
Mainland China and one leasehold land in the Island of Saipan. The
directors of the Company have determined that the investment
properties consist of three classes of assets, i.e. residential
properties, commercial properties and leasehold land, based on the
nature, characteristics and risks of each property.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
has discovered that the leasehold interest of the Property
was assigned by its indirect subsidiary Keen State Global
(CNMI), LLC (“Keen State Global Saipan”) to AC Pacific
Development, LLC and Katarina Saipan 1, LLC pursuant to
an Lease assignment dated 28 August 2022, being
recorded and executed under File No0:22-1362 at
Commonwealth Recorder’s, Saipan (“Lease Assignment”)
without any knowledge and authority of Zhong Ji, the
ultimate holding company of Keen State Global Saipan.

On March 2023, the Company conduct internal enquiries
including with ex-company internal legal counsel and ex-
Chairman whom remained until end of March 2023 as the
sole director of Keen State Global Limited BVI, parent
holding of Keen State Global Saipan.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iRE IS MR M T

31 December 2022
—E-__F+=-RA=+—H

16. REWHE

2021
— T —F
HK$'000
T
26,001 30,523
(314) (4,997)
(1,276) 475
24,411 26,001
it R—_E-——F+-_A=+—H KEHAZLE

MEBBRURTENL  MARENER—A
FEMEARMCRERSZ —EEELH - K
RAIEEEE  ERBEREMEZEE &
BERR REVESE=@EEER  IE
EME BEDERBE LM -

HE_ZT-__F#+_A=+—HLEEFEE &K
A A3 IR H B A flKeen State Global
(CNMI), LLC ([Keen State Global
Saipan ) REBEEHAAR T __FNA=-+
NENHEEERZMENHEEREE
T AC Pacific Development, LLC } Katarina
Saipan 1, LLC ' % E & ZEERH I E
50 Bz (Commonwealth Recorder’s, Saipan)
([FAEEE ) FE22-13629 X T L8 &
% v M & & % M Keen State Global
Saipan M) &KX ER AR PR EL T HE - I8
R o

RZZTZ=F=H ARRHETABEN -
BERAARATS EEBERRAIERE(E
E-F= =% = AIE{AKeen State Global
Limited BVI (Keen State Global SaipanZ
EREGRRZHE—FER)ETRNBER °
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31 December 2022
T _H+-_F=+—H

16.

148

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

All these internal enquiries confirmed none of Company
staffs or directors or ex-directors have effectuated any
changes to this unlawful and unauthorized assignment of
leasehold interest. At same times, Hong Kong and Saipan
law firm were engaged in conduct extensive company and
property search on Keen State Global Saipan, has revealed
and reported in conclusion:

(i) without meeting filed by Keen State Global Saipan with
Department of Commerce on 15 August 2022
removal of ZHENG Dong Ting as director of Keen
State Global and appointed Mr. CHI Howyo as new
director; whereby the said ZHENG Dong Ting was
signing as the director of Sole member, Keen State
Global BVI, such action and consent was unlawful and
unauthorized (“First Forged Consent”) because Mr.
ZHENG was not sole director of sole member Keen
State Global Limited BVI and has no authority to
appoint Mr. CHI Howyo as director of Keen State
Global Saipan to execute any sale.

(i) without meeting filed by Keen State Global Saipan with
Department of Commerce on 15 August 2022, by Mr.
CHI in connection with the sale of its interest in the
Property. (“Second Forged Consent”).

This CHI Howyo purported to signed on behalf of the sole
member of Keen State Global Saipan. Yet, in the signature
section the sole member is referred to as “Keen State
Global (CNMI) LLC" and the said Howyo CHI was signing
on behalf of the sole member.

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
2022 Annual Report

16.

REWE )

FEZEANRERNGER  AAFIE T K
EEYNESHMEHHEEEIRRERE
MEERERERELEMER - B LR
B BEREMSEMEHFTEKeen State
Global Saipan#71TTEZH ARG R HEH
R UWHEERTPEBERRS:

(i)  Keen State Global Saipani A =& = —
FNATHBREBRGH TR KL
EZRENXH RAE B RERK
ZHENG Dong Ting £ Keen State
Global #) # = B 7% - W % £ CHI
Howyot £ R ¥TE E: Bt - kit
ZHENG Dong TinJhLAME —fk & A )
Keen State Global BVIZE =1 & 5%
EFZTHMREBIEERRERE
([E—mHRERESE]) B AZHENG
% & 37 FE ME — K B A &) Keen  State
Global Limited BVIK) M —E = + IR
# Z £ CHI Howyo st 4 AKeen State
Global SaipanZE E A ITEMHE -

(i)  Keen State Global Saipani A =ZF = —
FNAA+TLBREEEB IR RE
ERRENXH  ATEBHEER
ZWEER(E-NRERE

gD

CHI Howyoltt AE2 X & Keen State Global
SaipanWME—K B RARIEE - AT » £F
ZEy - ME—RK B AR ¥ T8 A Keen State
Global (CNMI) LLC] 18 EitHowyo CHIJ3
REE—KERFEE -



16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The said ZHENG Dong Ting and Howyo CHI have never
been known to ZhongJi and other members of the
subsidiaries of ZhongJi. Such Lease Assignment was
therefore a document forged by the alleged director of Keen
State Global Saipan, who was never lawfully and properly
appointed as director of Keen State Global Saipan. The First
Forged Consent and the Second Consent are also forged as
the Signatory on behalf of Keen State Global BVI has no
capacity to act for Keen State Global BVI, thereby this
transfer was unlawful and unauthorized transaction.

Up to the date of the approved consolidated financial
statements, the Company has authorized the Saipan law
firm commence legal actions for invalidate this forged Lease
Assignment, recover possession of leasehold interest, trace
the consideration provided by the assignees under the
Lease Assignment; rectify the record of Keen State Global
Saipan filed with Department of Commerce; and report the
case on behalf of ZhongJi to the Police of Saipan or other
appropriate authority.

As at 31 December 2022, in view of director of the
Company, the Group still have the ownership of the
investment properties was still valid.

16.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iRE IS MR M T

31 December 2022
—E-__F+=-RA=+—H

REWME®)

%t ZHENG Dong Ting & Howyo CHIE &
ABRERFEWBAREMK B -
It % M & & & J) Keen State Global
SaipanWFTBESHERNXMHF - ZESHK
BEREE iﬂl?%?f?’c%Keen State Global
SaipanMESE - F—HHEEREERF
mHRAZERBHE - AABMNKKeen State
Global BVIH) % & A I £ g8 11 X & Keen
State Global BVIfTE « E % E:% & IEE
MAERERENRS -

HEKSEANGEEUBHREABH - A2 A

EREENRSEMEBHAIBEEEFL
NEZHBENHEEEREN  WEAS#
mHGERE EMITBEABRBRHEHEEZEIE
HE KB 44 IEKeen State Global Saipan
FTEBEEERERODE RRRFER
ENSEHHEMBERFIRE -

Eé7777¢+ A=+—H ARAES
RE AEEHEEVNENEBREDAE
5(5("

FERSMEBEERRAT 149

—BCCEER



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A
B

B 75 R Y R

31 December 2022
T _H+-_F=+—H

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group's investment properties in Mainland China and
Island of Saipan were revalued on 31 December 2022
based on valuations performed by Royson Valuation
Advisory Limited, an independent professionally qualified
valuer. The properties in Mainland China were revalued at
RMB12,300,000 (equivalent to HK$13,725,000) (2021:
RMB10,800,000 (equivalent to HK$13,251,000)) and the
leasehold land in the Island of Saipan was revalued at
USD1,370,000 (equivalent to HK$10,686,000) (2021:
USD1,700,000 (equivalent to HK$12,750,000)). Each vyear,
the Group’s management decide, to appoint which external
valuers to be responsible for the external valuation of the
Group's properties. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group's
management has discussion with the valuers on the
valuation assumptions and valuation result when the
valuations are performed for financial reporting purpose.

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties are as
follows:

Location Use

8 R&

Units 101 and 102, Block 7, No. 18, Chengshousi Commercial
Middle Road, Fengtai District, Beijing City, Mainland
China

FEIERTEARKSFFRISHK7IKEIE101KX102 FE

Unit 604, Block 33, Shiyuan Southern District, Shunyi  Residential
District, Beijing City, Mainland China

FEIERMIEE R AR RIIFIECE1E T604 =

Tract Numbers 22845-6 located in Capitol Hill, the Residential
Island of Saipan

fiz 7 Capitol Hill, the Island of SaipanZ F=

I 58 4% 55 22845-6

150 Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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16. REWZE(#)

R-EBE - —_F+-_A=+—H ' "&EB
RAEERNRERS 2 REMETERE
ReFEZRAERAB(BLEESERMG
B ETZHEEMG - NAFRERM 2
) ¥ J5 % A R 12,300,000 (A8 & R
13,725,000 mI(Z T = —F AR %
10,800,000 (48 % 713,251,000/ L)) B
B MAEUREHRS2HEE £ 5%
1,370,000 jt (48 & 710,686,000 7L (=
T — — 411,700,000 TG £ »
12,750,000 7)) Eff - BF - ~EBE
BEEREZIIEGHEMASHETAER
MEZIINBHEE - HEEERBEMH A
HOBE CBUMNDELMEIETEEZE -
AEECERED BGHERM AV S
WEMETHERZHEREIMGEEER -

AEEREMEZFHBWT

Attributable
interest of the

Tenure Group
BEREAEE

7 A 2R

Medium term lease 100%

FHIEE

Long term lease 100%

RHEE

Medium term lease 100%

RHIEE



16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group's investment properties:

REWE@E)

AFEER
TRETEAEEREMEZLATEHNER
P

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2022 using

R-ZE--F+-A=1+-HERTIBEEZALEFTE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
5B EXTHE EATTEE
ik BAZE BAHE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(E—%) (E=#) (B=#) B35t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT THERT TERT THERT
Recurring fair value mEMATEHE:
measurement for:
Commercial properties GEXIES = = 9,184 9,184
Residential property FEME - - 4,542 4,542
Leasehold land HELH - - 10,685 10,685
= = 24,411 24,411
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2021 using
RZBZ—F+ZA=T—-REATIBEZATEFE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
s B BERABE EARTUHE
M5 RE BABE BAHE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(F—4H) (B=&) (B=#) &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TET TET
Recurring fair value BEUNFEFE:
measurement for:
Commercial properties mENE = = 8,773 8,773
Residential property FEME = = 4,478 4,478
Leasehold land HELH = = 12,750 12,750
= = 26,001 26,001
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there BHe_ZT—-— —E—F+=-A=+

were no transfers of fair value measurements between
Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level
3.

—ALFE AFEAEF-REEF_H
ZEYEBER  TEBEAXELE=H -
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16.

¢ 152

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. REWHE (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) ’D\${EJ§ (&)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised ANTEEAEEBRFE=HFAD B2 ATE
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: §+%¥¢E§ :
Commercial Residential Leasehold
properties property land Total
MENE TENE HELH @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THET FAEL FAEL
Carrying amount at RZEZTF 4= ﬂ
31 December 2020 and =y il = ) G 3
1 January 2021 —A—-BZEALE 10,005 5,518 15,000 30,623
Net loss from fair value R EEEERZATE
adjustment recognised in HE EBTSE
consolidated profit or loss (1,542) (1,205) (2,250) (4,997)
Exchange realignment R 310 165 = 475
Carrying amount at I
31 December 2021 and =y i = ) e S 2
1 January 2022 s = A T 8,773 4,478 12,750 26,001
Net loss from fair value NEEEREERZATE
adjustment recognised in AR EBTSE
consolidated profit or loss 1,261 490 (2,065) (314)
Exchange realignment fE X% (850) (426) - (1,276)
Carrying amount at RZEZZF+=R
31 December 2022 =T-BZEESHE 9,184 4,542 10,685 24,411

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and
the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

Investment properties Valuation
held by the Group techniques
AEEMBREME fiy (B £ fig

Units 101 and 102, Block 7, Sales comparison

No. 18, Chengshousi method
Middle Road, Fengtai
District, Beijing City,
Mainland China
FEItATEA R HE L&A

= FrhER185R 757 12
1/Z101 %102

Unit 604, Block 33,
Shiyuan Southern District,
Shunyi District, Beijing
City, Mainland China

Sales comparison
method

PR R EE &
A E B33 E
6/E 188 7L604

&t BOA

Tract Number 22845-6
located in Capitol Hill,
the Island of Saipan

Sales comparison
method

fiZ 7 Capitol Hill, the Island 3% kb 8%
of Saipan Z i 2 43 5%
22845-6

Fair value of the Group's

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iRE IS MR M T

31 December 2022
T _F+=R=+—8H
16. REWHE (&)
NFEERE)
HEMEGHEFMAGESRMTEEEH A
EMENOT:

Range or
Significant weighted Relationship of
unobservable inputs average input to fair value
HEH WABRE

BANAERE A BB MHEFE EATEZEER

Estimated market price 44,000— The higher the
per square meter 60,814 market price, the
(RMB) (2021: higher the fair

42,500 value
—-42,660)

mEABFARATE 44,000- MEHS  AFE

(AR¥) 60,814 M=
—E -4
42,500
—-42,660)

Estimated market price 27,600— The higher the
per square meter 30,433 market price, the
(RMB) (2021: higher the fair

24,107 value
—-27,909)

et B R ATE 27600- ME#E  AFE

(AR®) 30,433 M=
—ET-—F:
24,107
—=27,909)

Estimated market price 199-218 The higher the
per square meter (2021: market price, the
(US$) 208- higher the fair

273) value

et 8 F AR ATE 199-218 MEMS ' A FE

(Z£7T) —E-—fF: =
208-
273)

investment properties are

generally derived using comparison approach based on

market comparables of similar properties.

REEREVWEZATFE-REREUD
EZMBAELRERNBLEBOEEH -
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. REWHE (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AFEEBRE)
The sales comparison method is adopted by making HELBEDBERARTBEEYMELATE
reference to comparable market transactions in the R2EMELBRMBERSGEM - &ZAED
assessment of the fair value of the investment properties. LMERIEECEMNEEEEEAA
The approach rests on the wide acceptance of the market W UWEELEERSHBH EERER
transactions as the best indicator and pre-supposes that SNREBMKRNENEREZR HEMER
evidence of relevant transactions in the market place can be SBRBAERAREUDE -
extrapolated to similar properties, subject to allowances for
variable factors, including the transaction date, level of
floor, environmental atmosphere, size of apartment and etc.
17. LEASES 17. &
The Group as a lessee KEBEREABEA
The Group has lease contracts for various items of office AEBERSERAYMESBMNIEREIIEHE
property units which generally have lease terms of 2 years. GH - HEB—RA2F - —MME A&E
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and WRE T ERANEEUINEZERSHEE
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. BE
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) FHEEZE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use AEEFREEECFASBERE
assets and the movements are as follows: E R INE
2022 2021
—E=-= T —4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHE T FE T
At 1 January R—A—H 4,832 1,156
Additions = - 7,429
Depreciation e (3,550) (3,776)
Exchange realignment E X 8% (17) 23
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1,265 4,832
‘) 154 Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited



17. LEASES (Continued)

17. HE®)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBEEREBAE)
(b) Lease liabilities b) HEEE
2022 2021
—E-=F —E_—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Lease liabilities payable: EREEBE:
Within one year —F R 1,472 3,718
Within a period of more than one —F A EBETEBME
year but not more than two years ZHEA = 1,472
1,472 5,190
Less: Amount due for settlement with & : B AEHE
12 months shown under B~ 1218 B A 2 28
current liabilities AR 8 (1,472) (3,718)
Amount due for settlement after 12 SJERBABE [
months shown under non-current B 7~ 1218 A 1% 2 &5
liabilities FER ROl = 1,472

The incremental borrowing rates applied to lease
liabilities range from 11.8% (2021: 9.4% to 11.8%).

HERARNHEEEZHEEERRA118
E(ZZE-—F:94EZ118E) -

PERSHEKERRAE

TR FR
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17. LEASES (Continued)

¢ 156

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
(c) The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss in relation to leases are as follows:

17. HE®)
AEEEREBEAGE)

lc) RAERKRABRERBERZEEN

T

2022 2021

—E-= —E_—4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FH& T

Interest on lease liabilities HEBGERNE 334 678
Expense relating to short-term leases %2 8170 & 5% = 1,651

(d) Total cash flow for leases
Total cash outflow for

included in the

(d) HERELREH

AAAREHRERERZHEER TR

consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows: WEWT
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Within operating activities LETEBA 334 2,229
Within financing activities BB IEB A 3,696 3,482
4,030 5,711

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited

2022 Annual Report
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBWMERME

31 December 2022
—E-__F+=-RA=+—H

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18. REELEZESR
2022 2021
—s=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FE& T
Share of net assets i FEE 80 5,310
Goodwill on acquisition g S = 443
80 5,783
The Group's loan and interest receivable balances due from REBEREERPHEZEREFELEHBR
the joint ventures are disclosed in note 21 to the AV BRERWF21HEE -
consolidated financial statements.
Particulars of the Group's joint ventures are as follows: AEEBEGELEZFBOT:
Place of
Particulars of issued  registration and Percentage of
Name shares held business ownership interest Principal activities
=g FBERTROFEE ZEREEHE REREGEIL FEEHR
Chongging Juquan Business RMB1,020,000  PRC/ 51* Business Information
Information Consulting Co., Limited Mainland China Consulting
(“Chongqing Juquan”)*
ERERABERHAETRAA AR#¥1,020,000c HEHEAM BB E SRS
((EEERD"
Wuxi Juguan Outsourcing Service Co., RMB1,020,000  PRC/ 51* Business Information
Limited (“Wuxi Juquan”)* Mainland China Consulting
EHERNMBRBEERLDA AR#¥1,020,000 HEHEAM BB E RS
([E\eER]) *
Tian Xing Ji Yuan (Tianjin) Service RMB1,5630,000  PRC/ 51* Business Information
QOutsourcing Co., Limited Mainland China Consulting
("Tian Xing Tianjin")* (Note)
AL T(RR)VRBEINE AR#1,630,00000 FEHERM BHESRS
BRAR(TRITRED (47 )
Mailyard Health Technology Group RMB10,000,000  PRC/ 30%* Health consulting and
(Hubei) Co., Limited (“Mailyard Mainland China technical services

Health Technology”)*

XAEREMREECHIL)BERAA AR¥10,000,0007T  HEHRER M

(XEEREMRK]

8 B 7% & % B i AR 75

The above investments are indirectly held by the Company.

ARFIRERFBLAKE -
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B

B 75 R Y R

31 December 2022
T _H+-_F=+—H

18.

158

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of
loss of a joint venture, Chongging Juquan because the
share of loss of the joint venture exceeded the Group's
interest in that joint venture and the Group has no
obligation to take up further losses. The amount of the
Group’s unrecognised share of loss of this joint venture for
the current year and cumulatively were of approximately
HK$1,028,000 (2021: approximately HK$1,028,000) and
HK$3,155,000 (2020: approximately HK$3,155,000),
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
dividend received from Chongging Juquan which is
accordingly recognised as other income. (2021:
approximately HK$900,000)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the goodwill of
joint venture of approximately HK$433,000 was recognised
due to poor performance of Wuxi Juguan (2021: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the investment
in Mailyard Health Technology was withdraw and the loss
of withdrawal in joint venture was of approximately
HK$202,000 was recognised in the consolidated income
statements. (2021: Nil).

The Group’s joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method.

Note: Tian Xing Tianjin was deregistered on 6 September 2021.

# The English name of the Chinese entitle is translation of the Chinese
name and is included herein for identification purpose only.

* Under the joint venture agreement, none of the joint venture partners

has unilateral control over the economic activities of Chongging
Juquan, Wuxi Juquan, Tian Xing Tianjin and Mailyard Health
Technology and hence, the Group's interest is accounted for as joint
ventures.

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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REBLEZED(E)

AEEERIBREEBGEEECEEER
RZEE RAAEBEZAECEZEIE
BBAEERZAEELEZET  MAS
BUrEEFBHE—SPEBER AEBLRF
EREBHZAERELZAELCEBES
R4 51,028,000 L (ZE=-—F: 4
1,028,000 7t ) 3,155,000/ 8 L (ZE ==
£ #93,155,00078 7T) °

BE-F-—F#+-A=+-ALFE A&
B A E R R RS AR
R A E A (= =— % : #1900,000%
7E) °

BHE2—_ZT- "+ -_A=+—HIFE " &
REGERRRXE  GELEREER
RHA433,0008 L (ZE=_—F F) -

HE_Z-__F+-_A=+—HLFE
THEREREMNEEHREE  BEaeE
PEEBREARARERRLE202,000
BL(ZE=_—F:F)-

>

AN S

Jid

ZERELEREREDRAAR -

B RIRERZZEZ—FNANERETM -
# RAXH  FHEBZAXEEREF XA
ZHEE - EHEA -

* REGELEWNSE  AEBHBENEESE
RoEHER ROREREBREREMKRZ
KEBEHHEAETHEGE  FHANEE 2%
s ARIIEEEDRE -



18.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBWMERME

31 December 2022
—E-F+=ZA=+—H

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 18. R—BEELEEREH)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TERBINEEER  BHEZTRTRER
information of Chongging Juquan, Wuxi Juguan, Tian Xing TRRERBECTBER (ERFEE
Tianjin and Mailyard Health Technology, adjusted for any ARREEAERTHENYERR ZER
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the SREYEEKR)
carrying amount in the financial statements:
Mailyard
Tian Xing Health
Chonggqging Juquan Wuxi Juquan Tianjin Technology
ZEE
BEEER BIGER RTREZ BEME
2022 2021 2022 2021 2021 2021
—E-C —E-—-&% Z—E-C —E--% ZEZE-—4F Z—TE-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET THT FET FET FET
Cash and cash equivalents BeRkREEEY 2,143 2,356 1,450 1,695 = 3,956
Other current assets HitRn® & & 11,063 12,229 9,599 10,592 = 9,129
Total current assets RBEELE 13,207 14,585 11,049 12,187 = 13,085
Non-current assets kRBEE 65 8 - - - -
Goodwill on acquisition of the WEAZ L EKZ
joint ventures kS = = - 443 = =
Current liabilities REARE (21,061) (20,780) (10,893) (9,311) = (144)
Net (liabilities)/assets (BEFHE)/EEFE (7,789) (6,187) 156 3,319 = 12,941
Net (liabilities)/assets, BEFRE)/BE
excluding goodwill FE TEERE (7,789) (6,187) 156 2,876 = 12,941
Reconciliation to the Group's ~ BEASERAE %
interest in the joint venture: ZRmE R
Proportion of the Group's AEBBEEELD
ownership 51% 51% 51% 51% 51% 30%
Group's share of net assets of AEEEGEEELE
the joint venture BEFHE - = 80 1,467 - 3,882
Share of net assets included in sTAREEESHEZ
carrying amount of the BEFEE
investment - - 80 1,467 - 3,882
Revenue W &= = 4,168 = 6,025 332 2,122
Tax I - (4) - (20) 1 (17)
{Loss)/profit and total F/HR(EER)/&F
comprehensive (loss)/ REE(ER)/
income for the year/period Wi B (2,259) (77) (1,137) 1,586 (217) 660
Dividends paid to the Group BERAREERE = (900) - (589) = =
TERSNSRMEMRAT 159 ¢
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19.

20.

¢ 160

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

19.

BRATEHEBHMZEREAKRZ
TREE

2022 2021

—E—-= —ET-—F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FH& T

Listed equity investments, at fair value EIRAKRE  ZATE 9,859 56,877

The above equity investments are investments in
companies listed on the Stock Exchange and were
irrevocably designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.

During the vyear, Group sold certain of its equity
investments as these investments no longer coincided with
the Group’s investment strategy. The aggregate fair value
on the dates of sale was HK$14,102,000 (2021:
HK$5,673,000) and accumulated loss recognised in other
comprehensive loss of HK$11,365,000 (2021:
HK$8,559,000) was transferred to accumulated losses.

HRASER Al R EWm AR Z KR
ARERRBUERE  HRZERESTH
BEEEREATEESBEME2E S
N

FR AEEBLERETRAKE  RAA
ZEERETBRAAEE L EREE -
REEER 2 AFELRTE A14,102,000%8 7T
— T - —%:5,673,0008 L) MR EAM
2HEEEERZ 25 E51811,365,0007% 7T
—E - —4:8,559,0008 ) D EEEZR
AT Es 18 -

INVENTORIES 20. &
2022 2021
=== —T-—fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TH T F#& T
Health and medical products RRrEEEER
— Finished goods — BURK 3,809 1,020

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iRE IS MR M T

31 December 2022
—E-__F+=-RA=+—H

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES EWREREFE
2022 2021
=== —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt T T
Non-current FRE
Loan and interest receivables JE W E 3R LT B 150,434 147,953
Less: Impairment B RE (12,299) (2,368)
138,135 145,585
Current B
Loan and interest receivables JE U E 3R KA B 668,969 706,651
Less: Impairment B ORLE (634,815) (634,372)
34,154 72,279
172,289 217,864

The terms of loans entered with its customers are on
credit. The credit period is generally within four years,
extension can be made after monitoring assessment and
further creditworthiness analysis on the debtors reviewed
by senior management. The loan receivables carried interest
at fixed interest rate ranging from 6%-18% (2021: 6% to
18%) per annum. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group held
collateral or other credit enhancements over certain of its
loan and interest receivable balances. Please refer to note
40 for concentration of credit risk.

Included in the Group's loan and interest receivables are
amounts due from the Group's joint ventures of carrying
amount of HK$22,329,000 (2021: HK$25,206,000), which
are unsecured, bearing interest at 12% (2021: 12%) per
annum and repayable in between 2024 to 2025. As at 31
December 2022 and 2021, the loss allowance was
assessed to be minimal.

AEBEHRFIVZERERBLER - &
HERBEANE KafREREYHER
ANETERTHRE-—FEAINETE
K -BRERZEBEEEFEN F6EZE18E
TE-—F:6EZRIBE) - AEBB Y
HEARWE z EWRIBARFREERE - M&
%%ﬁFA*%%@@%M% NEE R
ETEREFREMNEZHRIFERARIHE
MEEMEENR - B2HH 40 + LATHR
EERRETRZHIE -

AEEBRKEREFEFRIEERAEER
A& MENRIE RHEEA22329,000% T
— =~ — 25,206,000 7T) » A EIK
%ﬁiﬁiﬂfmﬁ._;_ & 128) 5

CWAHRZE_NFE_T_RAFEE -
\_g:: F—_ZT-_—F+_-_A= +—
H AEETEEREEBUTREE

PEREHBRAFRAT
S R
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¢ 162

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes:
As at 31 December 2022, the balances included:

(i) Loan and interest receivables with net carrying amount of
approximately HK$112,903,000 (2021: HK$127,637,000), which are
secured by share charge of borrowers, carried at fixed interest rate
at 6% (2021: 6%) per annum;

(ii) Loan and interest receivables with net carrying amount of
approximately Nil (2021: 26,606,000), which are unsecured, carried
at fixed interest rate at 12% (2021: 12%) per annum;

(iii) Loan and interest receivables with net carrying amount of
approximately HK$355,000 (2021: HK$331,000), which are secured
by financial assets, carried at fixed interest rate at 15.6% (2021:
15.6%) per annum;

(iv) Loan and interest receivables were fully impaired (2021: fully
impaired), which are secured by consumable goods of a borrower,
carried at fixed interest rate at 12% per annum; and

(v) Loan and interest receivables with net carrying amount of
approximately HK$59,030,000 (2021: HK$63,290,000), which are
unsecured, carried at fixed interest rate ranging from 6% to 18%
(2021: 6% to 18%) per annum.

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
2022 Annual Report
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EEREREFE (@

Bt -
R-ZTE-_—F+-—A=+—8 " &&eE:

(i) FEWE R R A B AREFE 4 A112,903,000/ 7T
(=% ——4%:127,637,0008 7T)  UERAZ
BROWEIEER BEFHNERAE(-T=—
F6E) :

(ii) BUREREFEREFENTERNFABEM
E(=Z=—1% 126,606,000 T) * BEIKHF
BEEMERRE(ZE-—F:128) :

(i)  ERERRFSEEFELA355000%8 T (=
T =—4% :331,000/70) * LAEFEEEEF
B EEMREI5E(ZT_—4:1656F) ;

(ivi EBREFRERMNSEBHERE(CE-_—F 2%
BORME) MERAZHEERERR  BEF
R EB12E ]

(v) FE W E R & FI 2 AR R 5 4959,030,0005%8 7T (=
T —— 4 163,290,000/ 70) - AEER - B
EFENFEEIBE(ZT=—F:6EF18
E) -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBWMERME

31 December 2022
T _H+-_R=+—H

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21. BEWEREF B (&)
An ageing analysis of the loan and interest receivables as at ERFTE] M B 5 &% 2 7 44 B B & fE &t F
the end of the reporting period, based on the BWAEABHERAMEKEREZ  BERE
commencement of loan agreement entered and the date of HAEFERBERRZER>TAOT
interest income accrued, and net of provisions, is as
follows:
2022 2021
—E-= —E - —F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Within 30 days 30K N 667 652
31-90 days 31E£90K 1,999 1,284
91-180 days 91E180K 1,998 1,936
181-365 days 1812 365K 3,329 109,159
Over 365 days 365K A £ 164,296 104,833
172,289 217,864
The Group applies the general approach to measuring AEBERA—MAEA2EABEHREER
expected credit losses which uses a 12-month basis ECL B ERKERENE - Al EFER
for loan and interest receivables. However, when there has R ERB AR KIEIEINE - Z2HEHE
been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, EEETRER -
the allowances will be based on the lifetime ECL.
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of FE U E SR R F) B E B 1R R 1R 2 B B an
loan and interest receivables are as follows: ™
2022 2021
—s=-= ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FHETT
At beginning of year REA] 636,740 656,119
Impairment losses, net (note 9) BB BB EE (M 79) (11,077) (21,465)
Exchange realignment ME ¥ 38 & 21,451 2,086
At end of year RER 647,114 636,740

hEESRMESEEAERAT 163 @
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBWERME

31 December 2022
T _H+-_F=+—H

21.

¢ 164

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The table below shows the credit quality and maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's internal credit
rating system and period-end stage classification. The
amounts presented are gross of impairment allowances.

21. EWERKFE (&)

TRINFERAKERNBEEFLERRK
HREBRDBEAZEELEREREAEER
RiRA - A2 2B ARMEREARE -

12-month ECLs

31 December 2022
—E-_—_F+-A=+—H
Lifetime ECLs

1218 B 8 &

EEEE 2HEHEEEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FE1ME B FE 2P EX EIRER 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT FTHET THT

Loan and interest receivables &4 & 3 & 7 &

Performing (good) (i) & %9 (R &7) (i) = - - -
Performing (bad) (ii) & 4 (R R (i) - 188,445 - 188,445
Non-performing (iii) & #9 (i) = = 630,915 630,915
Total st = 188,445 630,915 819,360

12-month ECLs

31 December 2021
—¥-_—%+=-A=t—H
Lifetime ECLs

121 A 78 &1
FEEBE >HEHEEBRE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1PEER F2RE B FIMER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T FH&T FHET
Loan and interest receivables [EUW & 7 & 5 B
Performing (good) (i) B # (R 4F) () 141,521 - - 141,521
Performing (bad) (ii) B # (TR (i) - 52,910 - 52,910
Non-performing (iii) & #9 (i) = - 660,173 660,173
Total “ET 141,521 52,910 660,173 854,604
(i) Performing (good) (i) refer to exposures which credit risk has not (i) BAO(RE) (Va2 EERKREVEER

increased significantly since initial recognition.

(ii) Performing loans (bad) refer to exposures which credit risk has
increased significantly.

(iii) Non-performing loans refer to exposures with objective evidence of
impairment.

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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21.

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and
the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to loan and
interest receivables is as follows:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBWMERME

— = — —

=

21. EWERKFE (&)

31 December 2022
F+=-A=+—A”

LIRHAREEH 2 M IARE BEKEK
EMBEZHERHAEEHEFGHENT:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1R R F2ME & E3M R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T FHE T FH& T FHB T
At 1 January 2021 N-E-—F
—H—H 164,807 49,753 608,999 823,559
New g 99,175 13,855 - 113,030
Derecognised (excluding BIEER(TRE
write-off) &) (84,725) (3,055) - (87,780)
Transfer to Stage 1 HEEFIEE - - - -
Transfer to Stage 2 HE S BORER (38,696) 38,696 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 RS EIRE = (46,698) 46,698 -
Exchange realignment b 5, 38 & 960 359 4,476 5,795
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F
+=A=+—H 141,521 52,910 660,173 854,604
New g = 14,641 = 14,641
Derecognised HIEER(TBIE
(excluding write-off) i 8H) - - (37,217) (37,217)
Transfer to Stage 1 HEREEIEE - - - -
Transfer to Stage 2 RS MR (135,034) 135,034 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 HEREEIRE = (17,715) 17,715 -
Exchange realignment b 5 38 & (6,487) (3,425) (2,756) (12,668)
At 31 December 2022 RZZTZ=F
+=ZRA=+—H = 181,445 637,915 819,360
TERSNSEMEMRAT 165 @
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBWERME

31 December 2022

—F-——&%t+t=HA=+—H

21. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21. BEWERKFE (&)
rEEERAEARHEECENEEBER
# - FTEER W E R RH S e -
EFAREGE RTHHEVHREE - &
AR B I A TRER - RE DT
LA R 9 7] g2 52 28 JE W & 30 R ) B AT W el 1
ZARREGHREEBFR ZEA

The Group determines the provision for ECL by exercising
significant judgements to evaluate the collectability from
individual loan and interest receivables after taking into
account their creditworthiness, whether they have financial
difficulties, experience of default or delinquency in interest
or principal payment, ageing analysis and forecast of future
events and economic conditions which may impact the
recoverability of loan and interest receivables.

BHEEERBENEFHNT

Movements in allowance for ECL are as follows:

&) 166

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1R B H2M R EIMER et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FAET FET

At 1 January 2021 N —F
—H—H 637 46,482 609,000 656,119

Net charge of the A L FRE
impairment 1,648 3,520 = 5,168
Derecognised BUOH #E R (27) = (26,606) (26,633)
Transfer to Stage 1 EEREFIRE - - - -
Transfer to Stage 2 BT FORER (32) 32 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 B FE3M R = (47,425) 47,425 -
Exchange realignment & 5% A & 51 9 2,026 2,086

At 31 December 2021 R-_ZT——

+=—A=+—8 2,277 2,618 631,845 636,740

Net charge of the WA L FRE
impairment = 25,011 = 25,011
Derecognised BUH #E R = = (36,088) (36,088)
Transfer to Stage 1 e B = = = -
Transfer to Stage 2 RS oMK (2,830) 2,830 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 T FEIMR = (16,028) 16,028 -
Exchange realignment RS 553 4,608 16,290 21,451

At 31 December 2022 R-_T-—4F
+=—A=+—8 = 19,039 628,075 647,114

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited

2022 Annual Report



21.

22.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iRE IS MR M T

31 December 2022
—E-__F+=-RA=+—H

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21. BEWEREF B (&)
The Group has sent numerous demand letters to the AEBEEZRMABRARERAZDKR
borrowers and guarantors but the loan and interest BHEEHARKRERLFBINAREEEE
receivables were still outstanding and in default position, WEE R EL MR EE  NEE G EEZRKER
the Group will continue to demand repayment from the ARBERAER - NREB IS ZEEAD (A
borrowers and guarantors. The Group has engaged the BERARERAZBEZME  EREKX
lawyer to issue legal letters to the borrowers and NREEEXREMNE - AEBEBDRHAEE
guarantors demanding for immediate payment of B RMZEAERARERAZLHENS
outstanding loan and interest. The Group has commenced Mo REBRESKERZMZER  N#E
legal proceeding and issued the Writ of Summons to TEREFREFRARBERAEERER
several borrowers and guarantors. The Group is currently BEZHBE-
seeking advice from the lawyer to proceed with legal
procedures for taking over the ownership of pledged assets
from the borrowers and guarantors.
TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. EWER
2022 2021
—=2=-= —E-—1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHE T FHET
Trade receivables JE U BR 5K 663 13,451
Less: Impairment BB (9) (13,432)
654 19

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit. The credit period is generally 30 to 90 days (2021:
30 to 90 days) for its trade receivables. For the Longevity
science business, the Group generally requests for deposits
in advance from customers (note 29). The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables to
minimise credit risk and overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

AEBEZFZESEREBEARLE - &
WER 2R BN TI0E0OXR(ZF
Z—F 30890K) c HRESH B -
AEE—RERXTEFRAIIRMIES (M
29) o AE BB N E KRB 2 &K RIE
HRBREE  UWBEEERRBRERE -

ShEEEerPENABER - A&
BrEsdEEREREREEEAEER
R EMEEMNEEE - BRERETE

B o
/Tn

FEREMEEEARAE
RO _FER
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBWERME

31 December 2022
T _H+-_F=+—H

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables, based on the

22.

FE Ui B R ()

ERBEEAMAERR

MEkEER - B

invoice date and net of provisions, was as follows: R ZRROTAT
2022 2021
—s=-= —T-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH FE& T
Current to 30 days BMEAZE=+H 23 19
31-90 days 31£90H = =
91-180 days 91£180H 8 -
181-365 days 181%365H 623 -
654 19

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of

trade receivables are as follows:

KEFREBEREE 2ZEFHMT :

2022 2021

=== —ET-—fF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAET

At beginning of year 4 7] 13,432 12,983
Impairment losses, net (note 9) BEEEFENFI) 9 10
Amount written off as uncollectible i 58 &~ AJ Y Bl 2 £ %8 (13,432) -
Exchange realignment & 5 38 & = 439
At end of year RER 9 13,432

¢ 168

The Group applies simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables. The Group determines
the provision for expected credit losses by grouping
together trade receivables with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assessing them for likelihood
of recovery, taking into account prevailing economic
conditions.

The increase in loss allowance for the current year was
mainly due to an increase in trade receivables which were
past due over 365 days.

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Set out below is the

information about the credit risk

exposure on the Group's trade receivables using a provision

matrix:

As at 31 December 2022

22. EWERFR (&)

BREREEHIZARERYERERER

RARIT

R-E-_—_F+=ZHA=+—H

Past due
8 3
Not Less than 30 to 91 to 181 to Over
past due 30 days 90 days 180 days 365 days 365 days Total
91Z 181 365K
REH DPH30KX 30F90X 180k 365X Bk e
Expected credit losses rate FEHEEEEX 0% 0% 0% 0% 1.42% 0%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 42 8EmE & %8
(F#&xT) 23 - - 9 631 - 663
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) FEHI(ZEE1E
(Fi#7T) - - - - 9 - 9
As at 31 December 2021 R=B=Z—-%+=HA=+—H
Past due
Less than 30 to 91 to 181 to Over
Current 30 days 90 days 180 days 365 days 365 days Total
9ME 181% 365K
B A R30Kk 30FE90K 180K 365K Ak e
Expected credit losses rate EHEEFIEX 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 100% 99%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 4 BRE & %8
(F&xT) 19 = 10 = = 13,422 13,451
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) FEHi{z B8
(F#&RT) = = 10 - - 13,422 13,432
HERSHEEEERAT 169 @
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022

T _H+-_F=+—H

23. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

23. & - AAREREMERRE

2022 2021
ShisS= —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Prepayments Ta K| 34,824 2,849
Deposits re 3,025 15,508
Other receivables H fth & 5K IE 239,247 215,057
Impairment BB (93,113) (57,056)
183,983 176,358

Deposits and other receivables under FERBEEIMND 2
non-current assets portion =& Rk HMERIE = i
Current assets portion mMENE EE D 183,983 176,358

The financial assets included in the above balances were
categorised in Stage 1 for the measurement of expected
credit losses. Where applicable, an impairment analysis is
performed at each reporting date by considering the
probability of default and the timing and amount of future
cash flows.

Deposits mainly represent rental deposits and deposit paid
for a trust investment. Given the Group has not
experienced any significant credit losses in the past, the
directors of the Company considered that the allowance for
expected credit losses for these deposits are not
significant.

Other receivables mainly represent the receivables from an
independent third party with net carrying amount of
approximately HK$78,482,000 (2021: HK$84,779,000) which
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.
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23. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 23. BE& -FEARNREREMERIIE
RECEIVABLES (Continued) (%)
The movements in impairment allowance of other Ht R R IEREEE c ZF8mT:
receivables are as follows:
2022 2021
—E-C—F —E-—F
HK$°’000 HK$'000
FHE T FHET
At beginning of year REH 57,056 38,769
Impairment losses (note 9) BB &S 1B (A 2 9) 39,374 16,981
Exchange realignment E 5 38 (3,317) 1,306
At end of year RER 93,113 57,056

24.

Expected credit losses on the other receivables balances
are estimated by applying a loss rate approach with
reference to historical loss record of the Group. The loss
rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate. The
loss rate as at 31 December 2022 was 39.8% (2021:

HttEW R BEHRZEREEBERIKLS
ZAEBBACEBELEREREBEX)

it o BERESEAE  URMBREAARR
RERREER DL ZIEN(EA) - K=
T —F+-_A=+-—HZEIEXAE398%
(ZE=—1%F :26.5%) °

26.5%).
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24. REeRREEZEEY
2022 2021
—E-CF T —4F
HK$°’000 HK$'000
THExT FET
Cash and bank balances Be MIBITHE S 60,069 19,437
hEREREBKERRAT
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022
T _H+-_F=+—H

24.

25.

§ 172

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated in
RMB amounted to HK$13,760,000 (2021: HK$13,760,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for others currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rate based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
period of seven days depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interests at the
respective short term time deposits rates. The bank
balances and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

TRADE PAYABLES

24. RERBSSEWE

RBEHR  AEEBUAARBAHEZES
K SR1T #E 87 A B TE B3 17 53X /$13,760,00078
T (ZEZ—4% :13,760,0008 7T) - AR¥E
TAEHRARBEMER  ERETERA
WHNEE RGO R AEE  EERNEEE
ME AKEEAFEBEAELTINESR
BZRITBARELBSEMER -

RITBESRBARTERMNIRIUE B A
B BRYEHERATFAKRENERET
Z GBRERLA REBEHETHEX
R ERENK B o $R1T 4 88 ) E 3 17 5K 17 1K
PRIy EROLEBEBAIE R -

25. AR

2022 2021

—E-= —T-—4F

HK$°000 HK$'000

TH T FH& T

Trade payables FE {<F B 3K 1,087 254

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on invoice
date, is as follows:

ENEREEZAHE D RESITAT

2022 2021

—=-= —E-—4F

HK$°000 HK$'000

T#E T FHT

Current to 30 days BNEIZ=30H 923 254
31 to 60 days 31£60H 12 =
61 to 90 days 61290H 9 -
Over 90 days BiEI0H 143 -
1,087 254
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27.

28.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBWMERME

31 December 2022
T _H+-_R=+—H

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26. HitlENRERESTEHR
2022 2021
—E-= —E_—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHE T FAE T
Other payables H th & 1 3R 4,611 7,934
Accruals EETEH 6,700 3,665
11,311 11,599
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an HMWENREBEAR2E  FHHRA—FA
average term of less than one year or on demand. IREK
OTHER BORROWINGS 27. EMEE
The loans are obtained from independent third parties to ERREAEE —RBILE=FH A~&H
the Group of principal amounts of approximately o Bl 4 A7,361,0008 w(H A R
HK$7,361,000 (approximately to RMB6,000,000) (2021: 6,000,000 7T =& =—4F : 7,740,000 7T.)
7,740,000) and HK$3,168,000 (2021: HK$ nil) are 53,168,000 T (ZZE=—F TEFT)A
unsecured, bearing interest from 5% and 25% per annum AR HFER KRB E2EFE(UAR
which denominated in RMB and HK and payable on MERABILETE) TERERKEREEER
demand, includes an unsecured HK$3,168,000 loan for only ¥ B A 4 T B B A R S B A Y B KR
6 months during the COVID-19 city isolation period B 53,168,000 - HEARZ-ZT-_=Fh
repayable on 22 May 2023 respectively. A-+=-HBEE)-
AMOUNT(S) DUE FROM/(TO) RELATED 28. W (BB AT—BESNE

COMPANIES/A DIRECTOR

The amount(s) due from/(to) related companies/a director
were unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed term of
repayment.

Mr. Yan Li is a director and beneficial owner of the related
companies.

B (MMEBAR,/ —2EEREARE
ER 2B REETEERY -

BYRERBEBARNEERESESR
/\0
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31 December 2022
T _H+-_F=+—H

29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 29. EHEE
2022 2021
—s=-= T —4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TH T FAET
Provision of diagnostic and RHZER
medical test services EEANH RS 23,662 1,126
The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance GEREEZTZHEREDE REFNH R
consideration received from customers for provision of MEEFPKEMENREER  EkaR
diagnostic and medical test services, for which revenue is E— AR EER - LR 2EoREBE
recognised at point in time. This will be recognised as BAHABRBRETEPHERR K S -
revenue when the diagnostic and medical test services are
provided to the customers.
30. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 30. EEEHEEE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are FRRERBAEGE 2 ZHWOT
as follows:
Fair value
adjustment of
investment
properties
REWEZ
NEEHAE
HK$'000
FAET
At 1 January 2021 R-—E-_—F—H—H 1,207
Charged to profit or loss M8 =Bk (473)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 8 B 32
At 31 December 2021 R-_TE_—F+-_H=+—H 766
Credited to profit or loss FFA B &= (63)
Exchange realignment e W 38 & (66)
At 31 December 2022 R-E__—_F+-H=+—H 637
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30.

31.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

The Group has tax losses of HK$36,324,000 (2021:
HK$46,994,000) that are available for offsetting against
future profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax asset has not been recognised in respect of
these losses as the utilisation of these tax losses is
uncertain.

MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE NOTES

In October 2015, the Company issued zero coupon rate
mandatory convertible notes with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$2,400,000,000 (“MCN"), for the purpose of
satisfying the consideration of HK$2,400,000,000 (subject
to adjustment) pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement
dated 20 May 2015 entered into between the Company,
the controlling shareholder of the Company (the “Vendor")
and the guarantor, under which the Company acquired 96%
equity interest of the Katar Global Group.

The MCN bear no interest and will mature on 19 October
2020 (the “Maturity Date"”). The Company may not redeem
the MCN at its option while the holder of the MCN has the
right to convert their MCN into shares of the Company at a
conversion price of HK$0.2 per share at any time during the
issue date to the Maturity Date, and the MCN is freely
transferrable by the holder of the MCN provided that they
may not be transferred to any connected person of the
Company without written consent of the Company and
compliance of any applicable Listing Rules. Any outstanding
MCN at the Maturity Date will automatically convert to
shares of the Company.

The summarised information of the MCN is set out as
follows:

20 October 2015
Maturity date 19 October 2020
Original principal amount HK$2,400,000,000
Coupon rate 0%
Conversion price per ordinary share HK$0.2

Issuance date

Further details regarding the principal terms and conditions
of the MCN are contained in the circular of the Company
dated 29 September 2015.

30.

31.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iRE IS MR M T

31 December 2022
—E-__F+=-RA=+—H
EEBEEEE)

A& B A TEE 836,324,000 L (=2 =
—4F 1 46,994,000/ 7T) AT A A K H E A B
BRI ZARHKER - HRNEEREZSM
BEENSABRL  WHERZEEER
RIELEFTBE E -

ME T RERREE

R-_ZE—AF+A RRAIETAERAHE
/£2,400,000,0007%8 70 2 = B of il 14 7] #2 J%
ZR((REAMETRREE])  UBREARQ
RIEAQNRERBRE(ES]) RERAR
AIVESA_E—RFRA-THEZESE
Wiz (AR BRI W BB I EIR B EE 2 96%
A% #E) 1& 1~ X {8 2,400,000,00078 7T (7] ¥ 3

=)

BEERTRARRENFEESR-F_F
FTATABTEHAD B - KRR A
REFEZBE @RS AR FEE - Mokl
HAREREFRBEARRREITAZEH
BHMERERZERESR.2ETH
HBFMEARRERER R ARARD -
HaflEr 2Bk REREATEAEER
HIMETHRRER  EEREARREER
ERETEMERLTRAUNZBERLT &
BEFTARRMEMNEEAL - XREHA
ERRRTE2RHETREZERED
BHRASARRRRG -

BEERRBEREBE CENB RSN

#®17H e o s B o =
ZIH B —E-ZEF+ A+ 1A
RA % 5 2,400,000,0007 7T
EHEEX 0%
ERETARERE 0.28 7T

B2 U T4 B R R M
E—FEBERARTNBH AT —HE
NAZ-Zt+hBZBX -

PFERSMEBEERRAT 175
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31.

176

MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

The MCN was classified under equity and no present value of
the fixed interest payment was represented during the life of
the MCN, therefore, no effective interest for the financial
liability element being calculated. The acquisition of the Katar
Global Group was completed on 20 October 2015 and on the
completion date, the fair value of the MCN was
HK$2,341,896,000, based on valuation performed by BMI
Appraisals Limited, independent qualified valuer.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the MCN with
a nominal value of HK$217,600,000 was converted into
1,088,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a
conversion price of HK$0.2 per share. Immediately after
the conversion, the outstanding principal amount of the
MCN amounted to HK$2,182,400,000, with its fair value
of HK$2,129,564,000 was included in equity component of
convertible notes as at 31 December 2016 and 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
and the Vendor entered into the modification deed dated
27 August 2016 (as amended and supplemented by the
supplemental modification deed dated 4 October 2016 and
the second supplemental modification deed dated 7 June
2017) pursuant to which the Company and the Vendor have
conditionally agreed to amend certain terms of the MCN
with an aggregate principal amount of HK$2,182,400,000
(the “Amended and Restated MICN").

The summarised information of the Amended and Restated
MCN is set out as follows:

Issuance date 31 August 2017

Maturity date 20 April 2020
Principal amount HK$2,182,400,000
Coupon rate 0%
Conversion price per ordinary share HK$0.2

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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HERMPMABETEBRAFETZMHE
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31.

MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Further details regarding the principal terms and conditions
of the Amended and Restated MCN are contained in the
circular of the Company dated 5 July 2017.

The fair value of the Amended and Restated MCN was
HK$1,228,455,000, based on the valuation performed
by BMI Appraisals Limited, independent professionally
qualified valuer. During year ended 31 December 2018, the
board of directors passed a resolution on 16 March 2018
to approve that the difference of HK$901,109,000 between
the fair value of the Amended and Restated MCN and the
fair value of the MCN with outstanding principal amounted
to HK$2,129,564,000, was transferred from the equity
component of convertible notes to accumulated losses. As a
result, the fair value of HK$1,228,455,000 was remained in
equity component of convertible notes as at 31 December
2019 and 2018.

On 20 April 2020, the Amended and Restated MCN was
extended for four years and the maturity date shall be
extended to 20 April 2024. Save for the automatic
extension, all other terms and conditions of the Amended
and Restated MCN remain unchanged.

The fair value of the Amended and Restated MCN on 20
April 2020 was HK$1,755,856,000 based on the valuation
performed by Royson Valuation Advisory Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuer. The difference
of HK$527,401,000 between the fair value of the Amended
and Restated MCN after extension and the fair value of the
Amended and Restated MCN before extension amounting
to HK$1,228,455,000, was transferred from the equity
component of convertible notes to accumulated losses. As
a result, the fair value of HK$1,755,856,000 was remained
in equity component of convertible notes as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.
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—E-__F+=-RA=+—H

8 H R RRREE S

BREETREI RAFENRRERER
R MR ZE—FFBHNARRAH
R-E—LtFLtARBZAER-

LRBLEES B ER RN EFTE
ERARIZEERZER  £IEFTREY| R
MR R R 2 A FE51,228,455,000%
TeREE_T—N\F+_A=+—A801
FE -BEeA_T—\FE=ZA+HA
BRE R E LB ET R E S 58 14 AT R AR
EE AT EEKREZRSRE2,129,564,000
Bz s AT RBEREREATFE S BHE
%8901,109,000 B TR AT IR =K 2 S 5
PEBREZRGEERE B RZZE—NLF
F—_E-NF+_A=+—H A[BERKRE
Bz RS R A F{E1,228,455,00078
e

R-ZE-_ZTHFMA=-1+A  EEIRES
BHMTRRERCHISE  JHALE
E-ZMENOA-FR - KEBERN
BT R BRI R EE > i &
i A5 3R B AR A M 3 N o

R-CZE-_TEFENA_+H ERBIUEZE
AERGEMERTGZDNER QA E
TZIEE  EIBET R EY & H IR E
& 2 N {E A1,755,856,00058 7T ° KLIEET
REY R HETRREBERCEHE 2A
A HE LS 5T & B 5 58 6 M AT AR R E
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7= $8527,401,000/%8 T B 1 7 2 fx = 15
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SHARE CAPITAL fig 2
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET F& T
Authorised: ERE
400,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.001 400,000,000,000 /% & %
each E{E0.0018 7T 2 K 5 400,000 400,000
Number
of shares Share
in issue capital
BR1T
B#%&AE i 2
‘000 HK$'000
F & FAT
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 and RZE-_—%—fF—H"
1 January 2022 R4+ A=+T—HK
—“E-—_#—8F—H 3,870,102 3,870
Shares issued in respect of prepayment of RENERRBEMZETRD
consultancy service fee (Note) (K7 #t) 387,010 387
At 31 December 2022 RZZE-_—_F+-A=+—H 4,257,112 4,257

Note:

On 24 June 2022, the Company entered into the consultancy services
agreement and the settlement agreement with the consultant, an
independent third party to the Company. Pursuant to the settlement
agreement, the consultant agreed to settle the prepayment of consultancy
fee by way of issuing the shares of the Company subject to the conditions
and on the terms contained in the settlement agreement. The prepayment
of approximately HK$42,571,129 have been paid by way of Shares and
387,010,265 shares were issued at price of HK$0.055 per share.

The final settlement of such prepayment shares and residual payment was
on 31 December 2024 pending to this consultant organised and/or
introduced sale revenue.
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33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

During the annual general meeting held on 12 June 2012
(the "AGM"), the shareholders of the Company duly
approved the relevant resolutions to adopt a new share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) by authorising the directors
to allot and issue up to the 10 percent of the issued share
capital of the Company under the Scheme. The directors or
an authorised committee were authorised, at their/its
absolute discretion, to grant options to any person,
subjected to the selection criteria, being an employee,
officer, agent, consultant or representative of the Group,
including any executive or non-executive directors, in order
to provide incentives to the guarantee to contribute to the
Group and to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre
employees and attract resources that were valuable to the
Group. Under the Scheme, the Company might grant
options to any participant, in the absolute discretion of the
Board, who had made valuable contribution to the business
of the Group. The subscription price would be a price
determined by the Board and at least the highest of (a) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of grant of
the option, which must be a business day; (b) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and
(c) the nominal value of the shares.

On 29 July 2022, the Company adopted of a new share
option scheme of the Company (the “New Share Option
Scheme”). the New Share Option Scheme was set up for
the primary purpose to enable the Group to motivate the
participants of the New Share Option Scheme to utilise
their performance and efficiency for the benefit of the
Group and to attract and retain or otherwise maintain an
ongoing relationship with the participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long term
growth of the Group, it is important that the Group should
be permitted to provide them, where appropriate, with an
incentive by offering them an opportunity to obtain an
ownership interest in the Company and to reward them for
contributing to the success of the business of the Group.
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

¢ 180

33. EBREFTE @

The following share options were outstanding under the

Scheme during the year:

PATT B A 00 6 P 1) R AR BB BT 81 7T 2

2022 2021
—E-= —E_—F

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number exercise  Number of
price of options price options

hn #& ¥ 15 niEFEHT
TEE BEREHE FE BREZHE

HK$ per HK$ per
share ‘000 share ‘000
BRER T % FlET T
At 1 January ®n—A—AH 0.40 386,800 0.40 386,800
Granted during the year FRFE = = = =
Cancelled during the year F N 0.40 (348,120) - -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 0.40 38,680 0.40 386,800

No share option was granted during the years ended 31 BE-_T-_—_FR-_FT=-_—F+=-A=+

December 2022 and 2021.

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial

statements,

the Company had 38,680,000

(2021:

386,800,000) share options outstanding under the Scheme,
which represented approximately 1% (2021: 10%) of the

Company's shares in issue as at that date.
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PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 34.

AR ETEWMBRAR ZFBWT :

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and registered share attributable to the
Name business capital Company Principal activities
HEMARL BRTLE/ ARATE R
8 BN E SR = il B A< EHRASL TEEH
Direct Indirect
BE %
Best Harvest Asia Limited British Virgin Islands United States Dollars 100% - Securities trading
EBTEMERAR (“BVI")/Hong Kong ("USD") 1 EHEE
EBRZBE/BE 1ERT
Joy Wealth Finance Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Dollars 100% - Money lending
EMMBAERAF B ("HK$") 1 E
1787
Shanghai Yugong Financial Consulting Co., People’s Republic of Renminbi ("RMB") - 96% Money lending
Limited*! China (the “PRC") 1,050,000 B8
LRGN B FRAERAR FEARKME A R ¥1,050,0007T
([ E))
Beijing Huiju Wealth Management PRC RMB50,000,000 - 96% Money lending
Consultant Company Limited s A R#50,000,0007T B &
(“Beijing Huiju")*?
TREEMEERZABRAA
(MEFER]) #3
Sky State Holdings Limited BVI USD1 = 100% Investment holding
RAZEBREBRAF HERENES 1%E7T REZEK
Tian Xing Ji Yuan (Beijing) Financial PRC RMB12,069,500 = 100% Provision of financial and
Consultancy Limited* 2 B AR %12,069,5007T investment consulting services
AT R)HBEEMERRA? and property investment
REMBHREEBERRS
IRETHERE
Keen State Global (CNMI) LLC North Mariana Islands  USD100 - 100% Property investment
LEETHES 100 7T MEKRE
Blooming Faith Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Health consulting service and
ZRERBRAA &% 17T medical product trading
BRAAREEERES
RYITHERERNZERRA PRC RMB5,000,000 = 100% Health consulting service and
H AR #5,000,0007T medical product trading

BREZARERERES
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34. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The English names of the Chinese entitles are translation of their
Chinese names and are included herein for identification purpose
only.

These entities are registered as limited liability companies under PRC
law.

These entities are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises
under PRC law.

No equity interests of Beijing Huiju was held by the Group. The Group
entered into the VIE agreements with Beijing Huiju and its
shareholders. Notwithstanding the lack of equity ownership, through
the VIE agreements, the Group is able to exercise control over
Beijing Huiju by way of controlling the voting rights of Beijing Huiju,
governing their financial and operating policies, appointing and
removing the majority of the members of their controlling
authorities, casting the majority of votes at meeting of such
authorities and deriving economic benefits from Beijing Huiju.
Accordingly, Beijing Huiju is accounted for as subsidiaries of the
Group since the VIE agreements signed by both parties. As all
shareholders of Beijing Huiju were contracting parties to the VIE
agreements, 100% of the financial results of Beijing Huiju is
attributable to the Group.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company

which,

in the opinion of the directors, principally affected

the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

§ 182

Major non-cash transactions

(i) During the last year, the Group had non-cash
additions to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of HK$7,429,000 and HK$7,429,000
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements
for leasehold land and buildings.

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
T A MR M

31 December 2022
—E-__F+=-RA=+—H

35. MEREHRERKT(®)
(b) MMEETEBFELEE2EH

Other Lease Amount due
borrowings liabilities to a director
Ed—F
Hihfg & HEAE EENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FH& T FA& T
At 1 January 2021 R-_E-_—F—H—H 7,487 1,217 =
New leases FHE = 7,429 6,926
Changes from financing cash &t & 3 & i &
flow = (3,482) -
Interest expenses M ERX 14 678 -
Interest paid classified as DEAKER TR
operating cash flows B F A = (678) -
Exchange realignment & X 38 & 239 26 =
At 31 December 2021 and W-_ZE—_—4F+=-A=+—H
1 January 2022 ZZTE-__F—H—H 7,740 5,190 6,926
New leases FHE - - -
Changes from financing cash &t & 3 & i &
flow 3,168 (3,695) (6,926)
Interest expenses A ERX 83 334 -
Interest paid classified as DEARKER SR
operating cash flows B F A - (334) -
Exchange realignment P& X 8 (701) (23) -
At 31 December 2022 KRB _F+-_HA=+—H 10,290 1,472 -

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

(a)

During the year, loan interest income of HK$2,161,000
(2021: HK$2,180,000), HK$1,088,000 (2021:
HK$938,000) and nil (2021: HK$90,000) were
received from Chongging Juquan, Wuxi Juquan and
Tian Xing Tianjin respectively, the joint ventures of the
Group. Details are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

36. EBEARS

BRAMBHREREMTESFL 2RXHI - K
SENFRNEBEBTETUATERARS

@) FAEBKRAEEGECXEESLHEZR
ﬂf%ﬂi%&iﬁ%/iié RF B U A
% 512,161,000 (= & = — &
2,180,000;‘%-5 7T) + 1,088,000 JT(—
T —4:938,0008 L) RE(ZE=
— & :90,000 L) c FHEBHREE
B 5k R M 5E18 o
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

184

(b)

During the last year, dividend income of HK$900,000
and HK$589,000 were received from Chongging
Juquan and Wuxi Juquan respectively, the joint
ventures of the Group. Details are set out in note 18
to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, no loan interest income (2021:
HK$37,000) was received from a related company, &
BAUAMPXERAARBERAR("EEE"), a partner
of joint ventures in Chongging Juquan and Wuxi
Juquan.

During the vyear, cost of services of Nil (2021:
HK$1,490,000), HK$Nil (2021: HK$5,771,000), HK$NIil
(2021: HK$242,000) were received from Chongging
Juquan, Wuxi Juquan and Tian Xing Tianjin,
respectively.

Outstanding balances with related parties:

(i) The Group had no outstanding balance due to
Zhong Ji International Medical Group (Hong
Kong) Limited, a related company of which Mr.
Yan Li, an executive director of the Company in
common as at the end of the reporting period
(2021: HK$3,887,000). Details are set out in
note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(i)~ The Group had no outstanding balances due to
Chongging Juquan, (2021: HK$1,350,000) Wuxi
Juquan (2021: HK$2,895,000) respectively as at
the end of the reporting period. Details are set
out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

In the opinion of the directors, the directors and chief
executive represented the key management personnel
of the Group and details are included in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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RE—FE AKEIFBEEEDLE
EEERNMEHERWERR S S A
900,000/% 7t %589,000/% 7T ° 7 1§
HNREMBHRERMFI8 -

F A URCER B B N R R SS ALM
*XERERARBERAA (&S]
EEREEEERRERER Y
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FREWREESER EHEIREX
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REEZ R B

() RBEHR AEBTEKRE
BrEMNBETRIFHBERE
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BB AREBR(CE—F:
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B IS | R M 5E28 -
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The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

2022

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

37. RENESzEMIA

REEMAZENEMTAZRES B

T

—s=-=

Financial assets
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income — Equity

Financial assets
at amortised

Financial assets investments cost Total
BATEEBHM
2EKRZARZ
SHMEE REHERETAR

SRMEE - REAKRE ZEMEE @zt
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FEx FHT FHT

Financial assets at fair value through other HEAFEZBHME2E
comprehensive income WRARZeREE 9,859 - 9,859
Loan and interest receivables FEWE R R A B - 172,289 172,289

Financial assets included in deposits, FPARS BRHE
prepayments and other receivables Ko Ho B W R IE 2
TREE = 149,159 149,159
Amounts due from related companies 4] NGIE O - 30,325 30,325
Trade receivables JE AR 3K - 654 654
Cash and cash equivalents RekRE&EEY - 60,069 60,069
9,859 412,496 422,355
Financial
liabilities at
Financial liabilities amortised cost
& # 8 B A
EMEE ARzcREE
HK$°000
FHET
Trade payables FE 11 BR 3K 1,087
Other payables H e 3B 4,611
Other borrowings HEmEE 10,290
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,472
17,460
FEREHNEBEEFRAT 185 ¢
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37.

(Continued)

2021

BERNE S 2EM TR

—_E_—F

Financial assets
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income — Equity

Financial assets
at amortised

Financial assets investments cost Total
FEREARZ
CHMEE RBREBEKAAR
CREE — BRAKE ZERMEE BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
Financial assets at fair value through other & QA FEFEBEMEEKE
comprehensive income ABZEREE 56,877 = 56,877
Loan and interest receivables R ER R L - 217,864 217,864
Financial assets included in deposits, FPAERS - BRFIEREM
prepayments and other receivables BRREBEZBREE - 173,509 173,509
Amounts due from related companies gl NG E O] = 3,610 3,610
Trade receivables JE W2 BR 3K = 19 19
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkAeEEY - 19,437 19,437
56,877 414,439 471,316
Financial
liabilities at
Financial liabilities amortised cost
% 8 55 A AR
ERB R A RzcRB8E
HK$'000
FHT
Trade payables FE - BR 3K 254
Other payables H e 5k IE 7,934
Other borrowings HEmEE 7,740
Lease liabilities HEAE 5,190
Amount due to related companies FE S BB R R R IE 7,817
Amount due to a director B —REERNE 6,926
35,861

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited

2022 Annual Report



38.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed the fair values of the Group's
financial assets and financial liabilities are approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short maturities of
these instruments.

The Group’s finance department is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance
department reports directly to the directors and the audit
committee. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
directors. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and
annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices.

38.
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 38.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

EMIRZAFERAFERE
(4)

D ER B
TRELAEESRTIAZATFEAER
Al :

BAVEAEZEE:

Fair value measurement using

RATIGABB 2R VEFTE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
As at 31 December 2022 markets inputs inputs
& BB T % EXAATEHE EAFTTEE
R-ZB-—f+=-A=+-—H BE WAHE WAHE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(F—%4) (B=EH) (B=%H) #t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT TET
Financial assets at fair value  RAFEEBEMD
through other comprehensive 2 H 25 A BR
income ZERMEE 9,859 = = 9,859
Fair value measurement using
KATH@ASE 2 AT EFE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
As at 31 December 2021 markets inputs inputs
Vi BE T 3% EXRAEE BRIAIBEE
RZEZ—F+=-A=+—H wE A BUR AR
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(F—%4%) (F=%8H) (F=%#H) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FET FAET
Financial assets at fair value ~ RZAFEEBEMD
through other comprehensive 2 # z5 A BR
income JERMEE 56,877 = = 56,877
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at AEEBR-_ZT - —E=—F+=A

fair value as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

During the vyear, there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1

2 and no

transfers into or out of Level 3 for the financial assets

(2020: Nil).
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments are used to raise
finance for the Group's operations and investments. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as loan and interest receivables, trade and other
receivables, trade payables, other payables, other
borrowings, amount due from/to related companies, amount
due to a director and lease liabilities which arise directly
from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are interest rate risk, equity price risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's interest-
bearing financial assets and liabilities. Interest-bearing
financial assets of the Group are the loan receivables and
deposit with banks. Interests on deposits with banks are
based on deposit rates offered by bank while interests on
loan receivables are based on fixed rates set out in the loan
agreements. Interest-bearing financial liabilities of the Group
are the other borrowings. Interest on other borrowings are
based on fixed rate. Therefore, changes in interest rate
would not affect the profit or loss of the Group.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual securities. The
Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income. The Group's listed investments are
listed on the Stock Exchanges and are valued at quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting period.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. B REBREEBEERBE (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Equity price risk (Continued) RAER R (E)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every TRETETMBRAKEEZ AFEEL% (=
5% (2021: 5%) change in the fair values of the listed equity T —F 5% )R CHRE (A HEM
investments, with all other variables held constant and BHUBTIERRFTAEARBELE) - T)
before any impact on tax, based on their carrying amounts EREPRCEESETE - RADHTA -
at the end of the reporting period. For the purpose of this REARAFEFEBAEMEZAEKEARZ
analysis, for the listed equity investments included in PREECLELTRAKEMS  HEASX
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive FEEBEALNTFTEMBE(CTAER) -

income, the impact is deemed to be on the fair value
reserve (non-recycling).

Carrying Decrease
amount of Change in other
equity in profit components
instruments before tax of equity
RATHZ R i Al Hfth #E &5
RESE i # B a2
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T FAET
2022 —E-
Equity investments listed in: LA T T EH 2 KA
®E:
Hong Kong — BE —
Financial assets at fair value IZAFEBBEMEME
through other WHmARZEREE
comprehensive income 9,857 = 21,552
2021 —E_—F
Equity investments listed in: LA T 75 B 2 BEAR
wE:
Hong Kong — BE—
Financial assets at fair value IZRAFEZEBEMEE
through other WHARZEREE
comprehensive income 56,877 - 2,236
The Group’s management manages the above exposure by AEEEEEBRERSEZZ L 2TE
maintaining a well-diversified investment portfolio. HEEBRE DRk -
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group’s
credit risk is primarily attributable to the loan and interest
receivables, trade receivables and other receivables. In
order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has established
policies and systems for monitoring and control of credit
risk. The management has delegated different divisions
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring processes to ensure that
follow up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, management reviews the recoverable amounts of
loan and interest receivables and trade receivables and
other receivables individually or collectively at each
reporting date to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
management considers that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk on loan and interest
receivables as 85% (2021: 58%) and 100% (2021: 99%) of
the carrying amounts of loan and interest receivables were
in relation to the Group's largest loan borrower and the five
largest loan borrowers, respectively.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 December. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets.
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AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022

39. BIXEREEEERBE®E)

FERE(E

R-E-__F+-HA=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A & 8
FEER 2HEHEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
4 ERE EZER Bt & st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FTEx FTHER FTHER FTEx FTHER
Trade receivables* JE W AR R = = = 663 663
Loans and interest e E R RAE
receivables = 181,445 637,915 = 819,360
Amounts due from related  J& U B8 Bt A 7] 30 1B
companies
— Normal** — MEE == 23,183 = . = 23,183
Financial assets included FAKRSE - BN
in deposits, prepayments I8 K& H i fE UL
and other receivables REZEBMEE
— Normal** — IEE** 149,159 = = = 149,159
— Doubtful** — RER** = 84,259 8,854 = 93,113
Cash and cash equivalents BR& KB E&EEY 60,069 - - - 60,069
232,411 265,704 646,769 663 1,145,547

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. i EREEEBEEREE (&)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

EERRE)
R-ZE-_—F+-F=+—H

Credit risk (Continued)
As at 31 December 2021

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
121 A 78 &
FEEE > HBEHEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FE—PEER BB FE=PEER 51k % o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T FA&T FHAT F& T FA T
Trade receivables* JE U5 BR SR = = = 13,451 13,451
Loans and interest W E R RF A
receivables 141,521 52,910 660,173 = 854,604
Amounts due from related  J& U B8 Bt A 7] 3k 1B
companies
— Normal** — IEF** 3,610 = = = 3,610
Financial assets included in s Az & - FENM K
deposits, prepayments TH R H i FE R
and other receivables BHZeMmEE
— Normal** — IIE g 173,509 - - - 173,509
— Doubtful** — RER** = 17,296 39,760 = 57,056
Cash and cash equivalents BR& RkEESEEY 19,437 = = = 19,437
338,077 70,206 699,933 13,451 1,121,667
@ For trade receivables to which the Group applied the simplified a HRASEEABCREEZERERTS

AERBHERZENNEA B RERNE22
BE -

approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix
is disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

IR EER AR 2 EMEE R RFABRNK
T RS N Hoh FE YRR IR DA K FE UK B B 2 R R
BEzeRMEENAAHAYEENBETRANN
WMANKEREEZERABRARBE N - BIRZ
EeMEECERERMAA/IES] - BAI
EMEEZEEAZBEERIRE] -

*x The credit quality of the financial assets at amortised costs, financial **
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables and
amounts due from related companies is considered to be “normal”
when they are not past due and there is no information indicating
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial
assets is considered to be “doubtful”.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. i EKREEEEREE (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) FEEREE)
Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure AEERZERBREELE 2EERR 2
to credit risk arising from these receivables are disclosed in HE—TELBBEREE M RRME21 R
notes 21 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements. 2285 F& o
Liquidity risk REBE S @R
Internally generated cash flows are the general sources of NEBELEZRESREN AAEEZE BN
funds to finance the operations of the Group. The Group Be 72— MESRR - AEBTEHBRTH
regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure it FEEaMA UBRBEHUBERE
has adequate financial resources in meeting its financial THBER AEEELEBEFATHD
obligations. The Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding RAZEREEEBERTBIRITER R
by keeping committed credit lines available and sufficient BRESZEEN UNENECHREFE -
bank deposits to meet its short term cash requirements. RAEBZzRBESRBREREBRESZ TILE
The Group's liquidity risk management includes diversifying B RIR o
the funding sources.
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the AEERGHRURFEBEE 22/ EE
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual RBERRZHBBERAT
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
2022 —P2_-
Weighted Total
average  On demand contractual
effective or within One to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate one year two years cash flow amount
AEREHN
mAEYH REXRTY ReERE
- FES R—FR —ZmE i REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THER THER THER
Trade payables JE T BR 3K - 1,087 - 1,087 1,087
Other payables Ho b fE 1 3R - 4,61 - 4,61 4,61
Other borrowing Hitg & 25% 11,221 - 11,221 10,290
Lease liabilities HEARE 11.8% 1,500 - 1,500 1,472
18,419 = 18,419 17,460

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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39. KEBEEREERBX @)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESERE(E)
2021 —E -
Weighted Total
average  On demand contractual
effective or within one One to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate year two years cash flow amount
REEBREH
NHE 1 BER, Reng
B RRA = R—FR —EMF Fok REAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET FAET
Trade payables J& 1 BR 3K = 254 - 254 254
Other payables H b & < FIE = 7,934 = 7,934 7,934
Other borrowing HiEE 5% 8,127 = 8,127 7,740
Lease liabilities HEafE 6.67% 4,061 1,500 5,561 5,190
Amounts due to JE {<F B Bt X | SRR
related companies = 7,817 = 7,817 7,817
Amount due to B —2EEHIE
a director - 6,926 - 6,926 6,926
35,119 1,500 36,619 35,861
Capital risk management EXE R EE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
cash and cash equivalents and total equity comprising
issued share capital and reserves.

The directors review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost
of capital and the risks associate with each class of capital,
and take appropriate actions to adjust the Group’s capital
structure.

AEBEEBREER  UERAEEETE
BREAFELE RAREEE(LERA
Batl BRRESZALDR AKE
ZEBRBEEETFMER -

AEBZEAGEBRARFE R kR
THEEVNREZER(BIERTRAR
fff ) HELPX

EXTHRIELRERE - FRUILRT TIE
—®D EEEREARANBAZEREN
MEZRAR AREGEETHAFABLRE
BzERGERE -
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40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

196

(i)

On 18 February 2022, Excel Sonic Holdings Limited
("Excel Sonic”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and Mr. Yau King Kwok Andrew (“Mr.
into the acquisition agreement,
pursuant to which Excel Sonic conditionally agreed to
acquire, and Mr. Yau conditionally agreed to sell the
entire issued share capital of Fame Star Properties
Limited (“Fame Star”) and the shareholder’s loan
from the Mr. Yau in the amount of HK$5,250,000, for
a total cash consideration of HK$12.6 million. Upon
indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. For details,
please refer to the Company’'s announcement on 19
February 2022. This Acquisition proposal has ceased.

Yau"”) entered

completion, Fame Star will become an

case letter on non-compliance with Rule

HK$0.02 million in Year 2018 (the

level of operations in compliance to Rule
therefore warrant a suspend
Company shares herein (the

Pursuant to same rule on subsequent 5 July 2022
appeal hearing by Listing Review Committee with a
final outcome received and announced on 25 July
2022, considering all the announced outlined facts and
trading decision was
overwhelmingly overthrown with a resume of trading

reasons, this suspend

decision therein (the “resume trading decision”).

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
2022 Annual Report

During 11 November 2021 and 17 December 2021,
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange has issued a show
13.24
demonstrated by the Company acquired Caijia P2P
loans Business revenue has significantly declined from
HK$490.7 million of operating year 2015 to minimal
“Caijia P2P
Business”), thereby has failed to maintain a sufficient
13.24
in trading of the
“suspend trading
decision”). Thereafter on 15 March 2022 hearing with
the Listing Committee has upheld this Suspend
Decision pursuant to rule 6.01(3) of the Listing Rule.
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40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

The considered facts, not limited to, the Company
submitted that its circumstances fell within paragraph
8(b) of GL106-19 which sets out that an
experiencing a temporary reduction or suspension of
operations due to market conditions would not be
considered to have failed Rule 13.24(1) only because
of temporary circumstances and transition in the
sector. The Company also referred to the Listing
Issuer Regulation Newsletter of December 2020. The
Company stressed that the changes in loan interest
income derived from the P2P Business were mainly
due to the compliance requirements introduced under
national policies issued to gradually phase out or
prohibited Caijia P2P Business in the PRC. The
Company’s position accordingly was that changes in
its Caijia P2P Business income should not have been
taken into account in the overall assessment of the
Company’'s Money Lending Business based on the
principles outlined in GL106-19 and the newsletter.

issuer

Also, as submitted The Company had never
terminated or run-down its principal Money Lending
Business (with Financial Advisory) , nevertheless a
difficult transition between Years 2019, 2020 (and
2021) under regulatory environment, which the PRC
authorities after curbing P2P internet finance loans
since Year 2015 now had also promulgated a new
policy to transform existing non-defaulting P2P loan
business to small loans for companies. The
Company’'s Money Lending Business (including the
Financial and Investment Advisory Services) had been
reformed accordingly to meet the requirements of
financial policies and regulations in the PRC now in
Year 2021. Hence, the Company its Money Lending
Business (including the Financial and Investment
Advisory Services) remained a key business segment
of the Company and was carried out under two
models:— (i) lending to corporate customers, and (ii)
providing secured loans byway of strategic
cooperation with three PRC fund companies (the
Strategic Partners) that hold lending licenses via the
broad customer base of the Strategic Partners should
be regarded as customers of the Group.
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40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(Continued)

198

(i)

(Continued)

Further, the Company has diversified into Longevity
Science Business in second half of Year 2020,
involved: (i) the provision of diagnostic consultations
and testing (Testing Services); (ii) the production and
distribution of longevity biological products. The
Company also planned to expand its product portfolio
through its research and development capabilities
(R&D) and efforts developing new formulae through
improving its existing formulae. One of its major
products (ZJ1) containing nicotinamide
mononucleotide (NMN) which had a unigue formula
and was one of the world’s first NMN supplement
packaged in soft capsules received FDA certification
and PDR certification. In addition the Company was
selling timed-release vitamin C (VC) products with the
Group’s formula both in the PRC and Hong Kong. The
Longevity Science Business consisted of 32 people
including research and development (R&D) staff,
doctors, nurses, and laboratory staff. The Company
outlined it had a number of distinguished persons
acting as advisers on R&D to the Longevity Science
Business including notably a Nobel Prize winner. With
respect to the Testing Services, the Company set out
that the two examination centres of the Group had
obtained approval of the Department of Health of
Hong Kong and had commenced operations, with one
operated as a daily license clinic as well.

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 41. XA R Z & AR R |k

COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the ARRRBEBRR BN TR E RN
Company at the end of reporting period is as follows: T
2022 2021
—E-= —E -4
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FH T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Plant and equipment % B R & 20 67
Right-of-use assets FREEE 1,265 4,481
Investments in subsidiaries REBAR Z™E 15,288 15,288
Interest in a joint venture REELEZHER - 3,843
Due from subsidiaries JE U B 8 A Rl 3R IR 22,749 38,833
Amount due from a related company JE Wy — B B8 Bt R B SR TE 13,680 -
Financial assets at fair value through other EAVTEBEBHEMEE
comprehensive income WRARZEREE 146 38,432
Total non-current assets EmBEELE 53,148 100,944
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Deposits and prepayments e RN RIE 20,985 1,499
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFED 12,008 1,775
Total current assets MEBEELE 32,993 3,274
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE
Other payables and accruals H fth fE - 5IE &
&R 5,499 2,091
Due to subsidiaries JE 1< Bt B8 A &) 3R IR 285,705 290,740
Amount due to a director R —RESZHRIE - 8,100
Amount due to a related company FE A — R B Bt R B 3R 1B - 3,887
Lease liabilities HERE 1,472 3,266
Other borrowings HMER 3,251 -
Total current liabilities mEBEEAE 295,927 308,084
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFE (262,934) (304,810)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EE#&ERABAE (209,786) (203,866)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBERE
Lease liabilities HEBa®E - 1,473
Total non-current liabilities ERBEELRTE = 1,473
NET LIABILITIES EEFE (209,786) (205,339)
EQUITY =
Share capital & AR 4,257 3,870
Reserves (note) & () (214,043) (209,209)
Capital deficiency & N8 A (209,786) (205,339)
Yan Li Yan Yifan
A B—il
Director Director
EF o
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 41.

COMPANY (Continued)

RPE 2 B # AR R (8)

Note: Bt -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RARZEERENT ¢
Equity
Share Share  component of
premium Fair value  Contributed option convertible Accumulated Total
account reserve surplus reserve notes losses reserves
R4 TRREEZ
BER ATERE 4B BRERE [ $:3:50) 2 BB wEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR THT TR THR TR THET
1 January 2021 R-Z-—-%-F—H 932,470 (51,869) 277,102 72 1,755,856 (3,102,251) (188,620)
Loss for the year FREB - - - - - (48) (48)
Other comprehensive (lossl/  FREM 2 (F1E)/
income for the year: i -
Changes in fair value of RATEBREMEZERR
equity investments at fair ARZRATIAZAYE
value through other 28 (BRHR)
comprehensive income,
net of tax = (20,541) = - - = (20,541)
Total comprehensive loss for FRZ2EEEAE
the year - (20,541) = - - (48) (20,589)
Transfer of fair value reserve REERATEBBEMS
upon disposal of equity EREARZBRAR AR
investments at fair value BRNTEREE
through other
comprehensive income = 8,559 = = - (8,559) -
At 31 December 2021 RZZ-—%+-A=+-H 932,470 (63,851) 277,102 72 1,755,856 (3,110,858) (209,209)
Loss for the year FRER = = = = = - -
Other comprehensive (loss)/ FREM2E(EE),/
income for the year: Yo g :
Changes in fair value of BATEEREMR2EY A
equity investments at far ~ ABZBRATEZATAE
value through other LENCTEI)
comprehensive income,
net of tax = (24,184) = = = = (24184)
Total comprehensive loss FRE2EBELE
for the year = (24,184) - = = - (24,184)
Shares issued in respect of  FLENBEMEMETRA
prepayment of
consultancy fee 19,350 = = = = = 19,350
Transfer of fair value reserve RHERATEEB
upon disposal of equity Hip2EREARZBRA
investments at fair value RENERATEERE
through other
comprehensive income - 11,365 - - - (11,365) -
At 31 December 2022 WZE--%+-A=1-H 951,820 (76,670) 277,102 72 1,755,856 (3,122,223) (214,043)

Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited
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